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Part |
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaaibking statements” as defined under securities.|desy of these statements can be
identified by the use of terminology such as “bedi®” “expects,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “may,” “Wj” “projects,” “continues,” “estimates,”
“potential,” “opportunity” and similar expressioriBhese forward-looking statements may be foundRisk Factors” “ Business” and other
sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Ouwuatresults or experience could differ signifidaritom the forward-looking statements.
Factors that could cause or contribute to thederdifices include those discussed Risk Factors” as well as those discussed elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. You should cangfebnsider that information before you make aregtment decision.

You should not place undue reliance on these stttnwhich speak only as of the date that thegweade. These cautionary statements
should be considered in connection with any writtenral forwardlooking statements that we may issue in the futfe.do not undertake a
obligation to release publicly any revisions tosthéorward-looking statements after completiorheffiling of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K to reflect later events or circumstances or fteot the occurrence of unanticipated events.

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catijpim with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhtis Annual Report on Form 10-K. In additionthe other information in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, investors should carefullysidaer the following discussion and the informatiorder “Risk Factors’ when evaluating
us and our business.

Iltem 1. Business
Overview

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (BioMarin, we, us arpdevelops and commercializes innovative pharmécads for serious diseases and
medical conditions. We select product candidatesliieases and conditions that represent a signifitnmet medical need, have well-
understood biology and provide an opportunity tditst-to-market or offer a significant benefit avexisting products. Our product portfolio is
comprised of five approved products and multipieichl and pre-clinical product candidates. Ourrappd products are Vimizim (elosulfase
alpha), Naglazyme (galsulfase), Kuvan (saproptditigdrochloride), Aldurazyme (laronidase) and Fpsk (amifampridine phosphate).

Vimizim received marketing approval in the Unitetaigs (the U.S.) in February 2014, in the Europdaion (the EU) in April 2014 and
subsequently in several other countries. Naglazygoeived marketing approval in the U.S. in May 208%he EU in January 2006 and
subsequently in other countries. Kuvan was gramtarketing approval in the U.S. and the EU in Decen#®07 and December 2008,
respectively. Aldurazyme, which was developed itlaboration with Genzyme Corporation (Genzyme), @wpproved in 2003 for marketing in
the U.S. and the EU, and subsequently in othertdesnin December 2009, the European Medicinesndgéthe EMA) granted marketing
approval for Firdapse, which was launched in thelgginning in April 2010.

We are conducting clinical trials on several inigefonal product candidates for the treatmentasfous diseases including: drisapersen, a
exonb1 skipping compound for the potential treatmerDothenne muscular dystrophy (DMD); pegvaliasenffenly referred to as PEG PA
an enzyme substitution therapy for the treatmempheiylketonuria (PKU); reveglucosidase alfa (fafdgneeferred to as BMN 701), an enzyme
replacement therapy for Pompe disease, a glycdgesige disorder; talazoparib (formerly referreédi$oBMN 673), an orally available poly-
ADP ribose polymerase (PARP) inhibitor for the tneent of patients with certain cancers; BMN 11pgeptide therapeutic for the treatment of
achondroplasia, the leading cause of dwarfism; BdAM, BMN 045 and BMN 053 for the treatment of DNEEXons 44, 45 and 53); and
cerliponase alfa (formerly referred to as BMN 18@)the treatment of late infantile neuronal cenrgdfuscinosis (CLN2), a lysomal storage
disorder primarily affecting the brain. We are coaiihg or planning to conduct preclinical developinef several other product candidates for
genetic and other metabolic diseases including BMB and BMN 250. BMN 270 is a Factor VIII gene #my drug development candidate,
an AAV VIl vector, for the treatment of hemophilla We expect to initiate a Phase 1 study for BMIN 2 the first half of 2015. BMN 250 is
a novel fusion of alpha-N-acetyglucosaminidase (NAGBwith a peptide derived from insulin-like growthctor 2 (IGF2), for the treatment of
Sanfilippo B syndrome, or MucopolysaccharidosietyiB (MPS IIIB). We expect to initiate a Phasstlidy for BMN 250 in the second half
of 2015.




Recent Developments
Equity Offering

On January 27, 2015 we completed an underwrittédfigaffering of 9,775,000 shares of our commorcktat the public offering price of
$93.25 per share pursuant to an effective registratatement previously filed with the SEC. Our m@ceeds from the offering were
approximately $888.2 million after deducting comsiosis and estimated offering expenses payable by us

Paragraph IV Notice Letter from Dr. Reddy’s Labomties

As previously disclosed, we have received a papmgbPd notice letter, dated October 3, 2014, from Reddy’s Laboratories, Inc. and
Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, Ltd. (collectively, DRIfetifying us that DRL has filed an abbreviated rdrwg application (ANDA) seeking
approval of a proposed generic version of Kuvaprgaterin dihydrochloride) 100 mg oral tablets ptimthe expiration of our patents listed in
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration’s (the FDApkoved Drug Products with Therapeutic EquivaleBealuations (the Orange Book).

On November 17, 2014, we, together with Merck & Qierck), filed a lawsuit against DRL in the Unit&lates District Court for tl
District of New Jersey alleging patent infringeméamt our patents relating to Kuvan. On January 285, we, together with Merck, filed
Amended Complaint requesting a declaratory judgrtteattDRL has no legitimate basis to trigger theD¥Nprocess, alleging that DRL did 1
have a proper ANDA because, upon information ariefpé did not submit proper bioequivalence dataupport of its purported ANDA.

Paragraph IV Notice Letter from Par Pharmaceutic

We have received a paragraph IV notice letter,ddadgmuary 22, 2015, from Par Pharmaceutical, Par)( notifying us that Par has filed an
ANDA seeking approval of a proposed generic versibiuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) 100 mg deddlets prior to the expiration of our

patents listed in the FDA’s Orange Book.
Declaratory Judgment Actiol

On January 16, 2015, we filed a lawsuit in the UDBtrict Court for the Southern District of New Mo seeking a declaratory judgment that
we are under no legal obligation to sell or otheeyprovide samples of Kuvan (sapropterin dihydmrmgtié) to DRL. DRL seeks such samples
to conduct bioequivalence testing in support opitsposed generic Kuvan (sapropterin dihydroch&rjgroduct.

Acquisition of Prosensa Holding N.V.

On December 12, 2014, we commenced a tender diffeiffer) to acquire all of the ordinary shard® (Prosensa Shares) of Prosensa
Holding N.V. (Prosensa), a public limited liabilitpmpany (NASDAQ: RNA) organized under the lawgbé Netherlands in an all cash
transaction for $17.75 per Prosensa Share for fiontgpurchase price of approximately $680.0 miilitn addition, for each Prosensa Share
purchased, we have issued one non-transferablangent value right (the CVR), which representsabetractual right to receive a cash
payment of up to $4.14 per Prosensa Share, or sppately $160.0 million, upon the achievement ata® product approval milestones.

On January 15, 2015, we closed the initial offefpegiod relating to the Offer and purchased appnaxely 93.4% of the Prosensa Shares.
We immediately launched a subsequent offering pahiat expired on January 29, 2015. As of the exjpin of this subsequent offering peri
we paid approximately $620.7 million for 34,970, Frbsensa Shares, representing approximately 96f&%outstanding Prosensa Shares.
Additionally, we paid approximately $38.6 millioorfthe options that vested pursuant to the defmitiurchase agreement. On February 12,
2015 we completed the asset transfer and paid diticathl $20.8 million to the remaining Prosensarsholders that did not tender their share
under the Offer. We funded the acquisition with auailable cash balances.

Effective February 12, 2015, Prosensa has beealdégband is in liquidation under Dutch law.
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Prosenss was an innovative biotechnology company engagéuki discovery and development of ribonucleic acid
(RNA)-modulating therapeutics for the treatmengehetic disorders. Prosensa’s primary focus wasien
neuromuscular and neurodegenerative disordersandhge unmet medical need, including subsets tdta with
DMD, myotonic dystrophy and Huntington’s diseas@sensa’s clinical portfolio of RNA-based produahdidates
was focused on the treatment of DMD. Each of PregerDMD compounds has been granted orphan drugsstathe
U.S. and the EU. Prosensa’s lead product, drisapeis currently under a rolling review as paraablling new drug
application (NDA) with the FDA. As previously annoed by Prosensa we expect to complete the filingi®
application in April 2015. We expect to file a matikg authorization application (MAA) for drisaperswith the EMA

in the summer of 2015.

The transaction will be accounted for as a busigestbination. We will maintain operations at Prass headquarters, based in Leiden,

The Netherlands and integrate Prosensa persommeltfrat office.

Summary of Commercial Products and Major DevelopmenPrograms

A summary of our various commercial products angbmdevelopment programs, including key metriceflBecember 31, 2014, is

provided below:

Orphan 2014 2014
Drug Total Net Research &
Exclusivity Orphan Product Development
Expiration Drug Exclusivity Revenues Expense
Commercial Products Indication U.S. Expiration EU (in millions) (in millions)
Vimizim MPSIVA @ 2021 2024 $ 773 $ 63.6
Naglazyme MPS VI @ Expired September 201 $ 3344 % 12.1
Kuvan PKU ®) June 201 NA @4 $ 203.C $ 13.5
Aldurazyme®) MPS | (6) Expired Expired $ 105.€ $ 1.6
Firdapse LEMS () NA 8 2019 $ 181 $ 4.6
2014
Research &
Developmen
Expense
Orphan Orphan
Products in Development Target Indication Designation US Designation EU Stage (in millions)
Drisapersel DMD ©) Yes Yes Clinical Phase : N/A
BMN 044 (PRO 044 DMD ©) Yes Yes Clinical Phase : N/A
BMN 045 (PRO 045 DMD ) Yes Yes Clinical Phase : N/A
BMN 053 (PRO 053 DMD ©) Yes Yes Clinical Phase 1/ N/A
Pegvaliase (PEG PAl PKU Yes Yes Clinical Phase: $ 70.5
Reveglucosidase alfa (BMN 70  Pompe (20) Yes Yes Clinical Phase 2/ $ 51.1
BRCA breast
Talazoparib (BMN 673(11) cancel No No Clinical Phase: $ 59.8
BMN 111 Achondroplasi: Yes Yes Clinical Phase: $ 22.5
Cerliponase alfa (BMN 19( CLN2 @2 Yes Yes Clinical Phase 1/ $ 39.5

(1) Mucopolysaccharidosis IV Type A, or MPS I\

(2) Mucopolysaccharidosis VI, or MPS"

(3) Phenylketonuria, or PKI

(4) Merck Serono S.A. markets Kuvan in the E

(5) The Aldurazyme total product revenue notedvalie the total product revenue recognized by waordance with
the terms of our agreement with Genzyme CorporaBee “Commercial Products—Aldurazyme” below fatlier
discussion

(6) Mucopolysaccharidosis I, or MP¢

(7) Lambert Eaton Myasthenic Syndrome, or LE

(8) Firdapse has not received marketing approvtié U.S. and we have licensed the North Ameniiggis to develop
and market Firdapse to a third pau

(9) Duchenne muscular dystrophy, or DMD, acquired ffarmsensa in January 20

(10) Pompe disease, a glycogen storage disc




(11) Talazoparib is an orally available poly (ADP-ribbpelymerase, or PARP inhibitor for the treatmefnpatients with
certain cancer:
(12) CLNZ2, or late infantile neuronal ceroid lipofuscéig is a lysosomal storage disorder primarily cffey the brain

Commercial Products
Vimizim

Vimizim is an enzyme replacement therapy for tieatiment of MPS IV A, a lysosomal storage disortl?S IV A is a disease
characterized by deficient activity of Nacetylgateamine- 6-sulfatase (GALNS) causing excessiveslysal storage of glycosaminoglycans
such as keratan sulfate and chondroitin sulfates @kcessive storage causes a systemic skelefalbdiss short stature, and joint abnormalit
which limit mobility and endurance. Malformation thie chest impairs respiratory function, and loessrof joints in the neck cause spinal
instability and potentially spinal cord compressi@ther symptoms may include hearing loss, coroleaiding, and heart disease. Initial
symptoms often become evident in the first fivergad life. The disease substantially limits bdik guality and length of life of those affect
We have identified approximately 1,650 patientsldwide suffering from MPS IV A and estimate tha¢ tiotal number of patients suffering
from MPS IV A worldwide could be as many as 3,000.

Vimizim was granted marketing approval in the Lh8d the EU in February 2014 and April 2014, respelst, and subsequently in several
other countries. We immediately began marketingi¥iim in the U.S. using our own existing sales foaoel commercial organization and h,
completed our first commercial sales in the U. 2l hie EU as well as several other countries. Wi fa@ursue registration and/or market
Vimizim on a named patient basis in other regidsany countries allow for named patient or othelhyeaccess sales based on the FDA
approval. We plan to institute sales in these aoesitvhere appropriate.

Vimizim net product revenues for the years endedeb®er 31, 2014 and 2013 totaled $77.3 million&hd million, respectively; there
were no sales of Vimizim prior to 2013.

Naglazyme

Naglazyme is a recombinant form of N-acetylgalaatose 4-sulfatase (arylsulfatase B) indicated ffgmts with mucopolysaccharidosis
VI (MPS VI). MPS VI is a debilitating life-threatérg genetic disease for which no other drug treatroarrently exists and is caused by the
deficiency of arylsulfatase B, an enzyme normadiguired for the breakdown of certain complex caylolohtes known as glycosaminoglycans
(GAGSs). Patients with MPS VI typically become preggively worse and experience multiple severe abdithting symptoms resulting from
the build-up of carbohydrate residues in tissughébody. These symptoms include: inhibited growfinal cord compression, enlarged liver
and spleen, joint deformities and reduced rangaaifon, skeletal deformities, impaired cardiovaactlinction, upper airway obstruction,
reduced pulmonary function, frequent ear and lurfigctions, impaired hearing and vision, sleep apmedaise and reduced endurance.

Naglazyme was granted marketing approval in the 1o.$lay 2005, in the EU in January 2006, and sqbently in other countries. We
market Naglazyme in the U.S., the EU, Canada, Latirerica, Turkey and other areas using our owrsdalee and commercial organization.
Additionally, we use local distributors in seveo#ther regions to help us pursue registration anuérket Naglazyme on a named patient basi:
Naglazyme net product revenues for the years eDdedmber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $334lbmi$271.2 million and $257.
million, respectively.

Kuvan

Kuvan is a proprietary synthetic oral form of 6R-BH naturally occurring enzyme co-factor for pHelanine hydroxylase (PAH),
indicated for patients with phenylketonuria (PKWuvan is the first drug for the treatment of PKUhigh is an inherited metabolic disease tha
affects at least 50,000 diagnosed patients undeade of 40 in the developed world. We believe éipgiroximately 30% to 50% of those with
PKU could benefit from treatment with Kuvan. PKUceused by a deficiency of activity of an enzym&HPwhich is required for the
metabolism of phenylalanine (Phe). Phe is an eisgamino acid found in all protein-containing f@dVithout sufficient quantity or activity
of PAH, Phe accumulates to abnormally high levelthe blood, resulting in a variety of serious méngical complications, including severe
mental retardation and brain damage, mental illr@=gures and other cognitive problems. As a tesulewborn screening efforts
implemented in the 1960s and early 1970s, virtually’KU patients under the age of 40 in developmehtries have been diagnosed at birth.
Currently, PKU can be managed by a Péstricted diet, which is supplemented by nutrigloreplacement products, like formulas and spsc
manufactured foods; however, it is difficult for stgatients to adhere to the strict diet to thembmeeded for achieving adequate control of
blood Phe levels. Kuvan has been demonstratediteeblood Phe levels by 30% in approximately 30%atients.
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In December 2013, the FDA approved the use of Kyn@amder for oral solution which will be providedandose sachet packet allowing
faster dissolution of powder in solution comparedhe current tablet form. This new dosage formxigected to have increasing appeal for
young patients in the-7 year age range. We commenced the commerciathaoifthis new form of Kuvan on February 28, 2014.

Kuvan was granted marketing approval for the treatnof PKU in the U.S. in December 2007 and inEhkein December 2008. We market
Kuvan in the U.S. and Canada using our own sales fand commercial organization. Kuvan has beentgdeorphan drug status in the U.S.,
which confers market exclusivity in the U.S. foe tineatment of PKU, expiring in June 2015. We ekfleat our patents will provide market
exclusivity beyond the expiration of orphan statsvan net product revenues for the years ende@mber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled
$203.0 million, $167.4 million, and $143.1 milliorgspectively.

In 2005, we entered into an agreement with Merakise S.A. (Merck Serono) for the further developireemd commercialization of Kuve
and any other product containing 6R-BH4, and pegsalfor PKU. Through the agreement, as amend2@Qii, Merck Serono acquired
exclusive rights to market these products in afitteries outside the U.S., Canada and Japan, antained exclusive rights to market these
products in the U.S. and to market Kuvan in Caratthpegvaliase in Japan. Merck Serono markets Kunvtdre EU and several other
countries outside the U.S., Canada and Japan. Wnel@igreement with Merck Serono, we are entitbegteive royalties, on a country-by-
country basis, until the later of the expiratiorpatent rights licensed to Merck Serono or tengyaéter the first commercial sale of the licen
product in such country. Over the next severalgjeae expect a royalty of approximately four petaannet sales of Kuvan by Merck Serono.
We also sell Kuvan to Merck Serono at or near aed, Merck Serono resells the product to end-useisde the U.S., Canada and Japan. Th
royalty earned from Kuvan product sold by Merckd®erin the EU is included as a component of nedpcorevenues in the period earned.
During 2014, 2013 and 2012 we earned $2.2 mil&n0 million and $1.9 million, respectively, in meyalties on net sales of $55.5 million,
$51.0 million and $46.8 million of Kuvan by Mercle®no, respectively. We recorded collaborative exqgent revenue associated with shared
Kuvan development costs in the amounts of $0.9amill$1.0 million, and $1.8 million in 2014, 201862012, respectively.

Aldurazyme

Aldurazyme has been approved for marketing in tl& ,Uhe EU and in other countries for patientdiwitucopolysaccharidosis | (MPS I).
MPS | is a progressive and debilitating life-thesahg genetic disease, for which no other drugnneat currently exists, that is caused by the
deficiency of alpha-L-iduronidase, a lysosomal eneynormally required for the breakdown of GAGsidtdas with MPS | typically become
progressively worse and experience multiple seaatkdebilitating symptoms resulting from the buijol-of carbohydrate residues in all tissue:
in the body. These symptoms include: inhibited ghowlelayed and regressed mental developmentédisgtiere form of the disease), enlargec
liver and spleen, joint deformities and reducedyeaof motion, impaired cardiovascular function, eipgirway obstruction, reduced pulmonary
function, frequent ear and lung infections, impaihearing and vision, sleep apnea, malaise anateeldendurance.

We developed Aldurazyme through collaboration v@gnzyme, now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sanofider our collaboration
agreement with Genzyme, we are responsible for faatwring Aldurazyme and supplying it to Genzymen@yme records sales of
Aldurazyme and is required to pay us, on a quartsakis, a 39.5% to 50% royalty on worldwide netdorct sales. We recognize a portion of
this royalty as product transfer revenue when produreleased to Genzyme and all of our obligatioave been fulfilled. Genzyme’s return
rights for Aldurazyme are limited to defective puotl The product transfer revenue represents xieel imount per unit of Aldurazyme that
Genzyme is required to pay us if the product iolthby Genzyme. The amount of product transfer meeewill eventually be deducted from
the calculated royalty when the product is solddgnzyme. Additionally, Genzyme and we are membeBaMarin/Genzyme LLC (the
LLC), a 50/50 limited liability company that: (1pkis the intellectual property relating to Aldurazs and other collaboration products and
licenses all such intellectual property on a royfilee basis to us and Genzyme to allow us to éseiaur rights and perform our obligations
under the agreements related to the LLC, and @a@ss in research and development activities teahatually selected and funded by
Genzyme and us.

Aldurazyme net product revenues for the years efidamber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $103l@®mi$83.6 million and $82.2
million, respectively. The net product revenuesdach of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2@l 3Gk? include $97.0 million, $88.5
million and $80.4 million, respectively, of royaltgvenue on net Aldurazyme sales by Genzyme. Net sd Aldurazyme by Genzyme totaled
$228.8 million, $212.4 million and $193.1 millioarfthe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and g&dpectively. Aldurazyme net prod
revenue included incremental Aldurazyme net prothactsfer revenue of $8.6 million in the year enBetember 31, 2014, previously
recognized product transfer revenue of $4.9 mililothe year ended December 31, 2013 and incremngnatduct transfer revenue of $1.8
million in the year ended December 31, 2012. Inenatal/previously recognized product transfer reeerailects incremental shipments of
Aldurazyme to Genzyme to meet future product dembnthe future, to the extent that Genzyme Aldyrag inventory quantities on hand
remain consistent, we expect that our total Aldynae revenues will approximate the 39.5% to 50% It@son net product sales by Genzyme
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Firdapse

Firdapse is a forrof 3,4-diaminopyridine (amifampridine phosphate8@t-DAP) for the treatment of Lambert
Myasthenic Syndrome (LEMS). Firdapse was origind#yeloped by AGEPS, the pharmaceutical unit oPes
Public Hospital Authority. Firdapse was granted keéing approval in the EU in December 2009. In &ddj Firdapse
has been granted orphan drug status in the EU hvdaoicfers ten years of market exclusivity in the. B¢ launched

Firdapse on a country-by-country basis in Europ20ih0.Firdapse net product revenues for the years endedibber 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 totaled $18.1 million, $16.1 millenmd $14.2 million, respectively. In October 2012, eensed to Catalyst Pharmaceutical
Partners, Inc. (Catalyst) the North American rigbtsevelop and market Firdapse. In exchange ®iNibrth American rights to Firdapse, we
may receive royalties of 7% to 10% on net prodatgsof Firdapse in North America. For the yeaeeihDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 we
recognized collaborative revenue of $0.7 millionl 2.9 million, respectively, related to our agreaiwith Catalyst.

LEMS is a rare autoimmune disease with the prinsgrgptoms of muscle weakness. Muscle weakness ind.EMaused by autoantiboc
to voltage gated calcium channels leading to aagtaluin the amount of acetylcholine released frmnve terminals. The prevalence of LEMS
is estimated at four to ten per million, or appmately 2,000 to 5,000 patients in the EU and 11208, 100 patients in the U.S. Approximately
50% of LEMS patients diagnosed have small cell loagcer. Patients with LEMS typically present witigue, muscle pain and stiffness. 1
weakness is generally more marked in the proximadaies particularly of the legs and trunk. Othabpems include reduced reflexes,
drooping of the eyelids, facial weakness and problevith swallowing. Patients often report a dry thoimpotence, constipation and feelings
of light headedness on standing. On occasion, {eddems can be life threatening when the weakime®dves respiratory muscles. A
diagnosis of LEMS is generally made on the basidinfcal symptoms, electromyography testing arelghesence of auto antibodies against
voltage gated calcium channels. Currently apprdxestments of LEMS can consist of strategies daekett the underlying malignancy, if one
is present. Therapy of small cell lung cancernmstid and outcomes are generally poor. Immunosggpe agents have been tried but succes
is limited by toxicity and difficulty administerinthe regimens. A mainstay of therapy has been3AR; but its use in practice has been

limited by the drug’s availability

Products in Clinical Development
Drisapersen

We acquired drisapersen, Prosensa’s lead candataiesubset of DMD, on January 15, 2015. See lteBusiness—Recent
Developments—Acquisition of Prosensa Holding N.V.

DMD is a rare genetic disease, affecting approxétyat in 3,500 boys globally, and is invariablyafatThere is currently no approved
disease-modifying therapy for DMD. The progressiugsclewasting that characterizes DMD is caused by inadegproduction of dystroph
a protein necessary for muscle function, as atresuhutations in the dystrophin gene. The diffémeutations, which are mostly deletions of
one or more exons found in the dystrophin geneytrasdistinct sub-populations of DMD patients.ifapersen aims to address a specific
mutation in the dystrophin gene that representscaqapately 13% of all DMD patients, or approximatél0,000 patients worldwide. In clinic
trials, drisapersen has been shown to induce gystiexpression and has shown a treatment effebt\dD patients.

Two of the Phase 2 trials of drisapersen investij@ahange in a six minute walk test (6MWT) as camgao a placebo. The first Phase 2
trial showed a mean 32-meter improvement for tiieagersen group compared to endter decline in the placebo group (p=0.014). Ew®sc
Phase 2 trial showed a mean 16-meter improvemettdadrisapersen group compared to a mean 11-metéine in the placebo group
(p=0.069). When the results of these trials weraltioed in a post hoc analysis, the trials showstan 20-meter improvement for the
combined drisapersen group compared to a mean 1dr-ahecline in the placebo group (p=.003). In thad® 3 trial, the drisapersen group
experienced a mean 43-meter decline compared ®ea B3-meter decline in the placebo group, althahghesult did not reach statistical
significance (p=0.415). In the open label extensily of 12 patients, which included patients Wdst ambulation, patients receiving 6 mg
of drisapersen experienced a mean 25-meter deatiiee 6MWT at 177 weeks as compared to an expédigedneter decline at 156 weeks,
based on the natural history database.

Based on this data and the results of the clirti@hb, in June 2014, Prosensa announced thatutdymrsue an NDA filing for drisapersen
with the FDA under an accelerated approval pathiagsed on existing data and in October 2014 Prosersaitted the first module for an
NDA regulatory filing for drisapersen to the FDAri€apersen was granted Fast Track status and hrealgh therapy designation from the
FDA, making it eligible for a rolling review of tHdDA. Breakthrough therapy designation is a processgned to expedite the development
and review of drugs that may demonstrate substamaovement over available therapy. We intenddmplete the submission of the NDA
for drisapersen in the first quarter of 2015 anhsii an MAA with the EMA in the second quarter @f15.
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Pegvaliase

Pegvaliase is an investigational enzyme substitutierapy that we are developing as a subcutarieaetion for the treatment of PKU. In
June 2009, we announced results from a Phase Halpeln single-dose, dose-escalation clinical wigbegvaliase for PKU. Significant
reductions in blood Phe levels were observed ipatients in the fifth dosing cohort of the Phaggal. In addition, there were no serious
immune reactions observed and mild to moderatetinje-site reactions were in line with our expeictas. In September 2009, we initiated a
Phase 2, open-label dose finding clinical triapegvaliase. The primary objective of this clinitiédl was to optimize the dose and schedule
that produces the most favorable safety profile Rinel reduction. The secondary objectives of thecdll trial were to evaluate the safety and
tolerability of multiple dose levels of pegvaliase evaluate the immune response to pegvaliasetcagnhluate steady-state pharmacokinetics
in all patients and accumulation of pegvaliase sulaset of patients enrolled in this clinical triateliminary results from this clinical trial were
presented in August 2010 and showed that of therspatients who received at least one mg/kg pek wEpegvaliase for at least four weeks,
six patients have achieved Phe levels below 60@amicles per liter. Mild to moderate self-limitingjéction site reactions are the most
commonly reported toxicity. In April 2011, we irEted an extension of the Phase 2 study to findeeshinduction and titration dosing
regimen to an efficacious maintenance dose. A PBatiaical trial of pegvaliase was initiated inn&u2013. This ongoing Phase 3 clinical trial
includes an open-label study to evaluate safetybdoatl Phe levels in naive patients and a randairinatrolled study of the Phase 2
extension study patients and patients from the dgleel trial to evaluate blood Phe levels and neagodive endpoints. The FDA has indica
that lowering Phe blood levels in adults could fdha basis for an accelerated approval and, additig that a favorable outcome on
prospectively-specified analyses of inattentiopatients with baseline problems with attention widikely be required for full approval. We
expect to report results from these trials in tha fuarter of 2016.

Talazoparib

Talazoparib is a PARP inhibitor, a class of molesuthat has shown clinical activity against cangerslving defects in DNA repair that \
are investigating for the treatment of certain emscln January 2011, we announced the initiatfanBhase 1/2 clinical trial for talazoparib
the treatment of patients with solid tumors. THisical trial is an open-label study of once daibyally administered talazoparib in
approximately 105 patients ages 18 and older vdttaaced or recurrent solid tumors. The study eistadd a preliminary dose that is gener
well-tolerated and reaches steady state with repeddily doses. The study has focused on patidtiidmeast and ovarian cancers
characterized by deleterious BRCA-1 and -2 mutati&@wing’s sarcoma and small cell lung cancer,lmslbeen expanded to include patients
with prostate and pancreatic cancers. In June 20&4resented an update on the study at the 20ishbmeeting of the American Society for
Clinical Oncology. As presented, among 14 enrofjednline BRCA (gBRCA) mutated breast cancer pasiémrgtated at the recommended
Phase 3 dose of 1mg/day, the confirmed RECIST resprate was 50% (seven confirmed objective regsonsie complete and six partial)
addition, there were five patients with stable diselasting at least 24 weeks for an overall dirienefit response (CBR) rate at this dose of
86% (12/14). In the complete cohort of 18 gBRCA atexd breast cancer patients, which included siempit from the dosescalation cohort
doses ranging from 900 pg/day to 1100 pg/day angblignts from the dose expansion cohort at a db%e® mg/day, the RECIST response
rate was 44% (8/18), with one complete and seveimpeesponses. The CBR rate was 72% (13/18), fithpatients having stable disease in
excess of 24 weeks. The median progression-fregvali{PFS) was 32 weeks in this heavily pre-trdatdvanced breast cancer population.
Safety data continue to show that talazoparib iegaly well tolerated with the most common drutaied toxicities being myelosuppression
(including thrombocytopenia, anemia and neutrogemnidd to moderate fatigue, nausea and alopecia.

Based on the results of this Phase 1/2 study, itiated a Phase 3 trial in patients with gBRCA ntedisbreast cancer in October 2013. The
Phase 3 trial is an open-label, 2:1 randomizedlighrtwo-arm study of talazoparib as compareth&oprotocol-specified physicianshoice of
chemotherapy in gBRCA mutated locally advanced @miketastatic breast cancer patients who havevegt@io more than two prior
chemotherapy regimens for metastatic disease. flldg & enrolling approximately 429 patients andefng conducted at approximately 140
sites in sixteen countries. The primary objectif/éhe study is to compare PFS of patients treatitld talazoparib as a monotherapy relative to
those treated with protocol-specified physiciaf®ice. The secondary objectives are to evaluatctig response rate (ORR), overall
survival (0S), safety and the pharmacokineticalazoparib. We expect to complete enroliment of Btiase 3 trial in the second half of 2015

Additionally, we initiated a Phase 2 trial in patie with gBRCA mutated breast cancer at the beggof 2014. The purpose of thisstage
2-cohort Phase 2 trial is to evaluate the safetyedficacy of talazoparib in patients with locadlgvanced or metastatic breast cancer with a
deleterious gBRCA mutation. Patients are assigoeither cohort 1 or 2 based on prior chemothefapynetastatic disease: cohort 1) Patient:
who have previously responded to a platinum-coimgiregimen for metastatic disease with diseasgrpssion > 8 weeks following the last
dose of platinum; or cohort 2) Patients who haeeired > 2 chemotherapy regimens and who have dguior platinum therapy for
metastatic disease. The primary objective of thdysts to determine the ORR for each cohort ofguasi. The secondary objectives are to
evaluate CBR rate, the duration of response foeathje responders, the PFS and the OS.

Talazoparib is also being studied as monotheragyiranombination with chemotherapy agents in cafation with the U.S. National
Cancer Institute under a cooperative research amelabment agreement in a series of clinical trials
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Reveglucosidase alt

Reveglucosidase alfa is a novel fusion proteincid alpha glucosidase (GAA) with a peptide derifredn IGF2. We acquired the
reveglucosidase alfa program in August 2010 in ectian with the acquisition of ZyStor Therapeutics;. (ZyStor). In January 2011, we
announced the initiation of a Phase 1/2 clinidal for reveglucosidase alfa. This clinical triahgvan open-label study to evaluate the safety,
tolerability, pharmacokinetics, pharmacodynamic eliical activity of reveglucosidase alfa admieigd as an intravenous infusion every twc
weeks at doses of up to 20 mg/kg. We have compbgteallment of this study with 22 patients betwéemages of 13 and 65 years old with
late-onset Pompe disease for a treatment peri@d ofeeks. The primary objectives of this studytarevaluate the safety and tolerability of
reveglucosidase alfa as well as determine the @dibesponse to reveglucosidase alfa. The secomdhgegtives of the study are to determine
the single and multifose pharmacokinetics of reveglucosidase alfa atetmiine mobility and functional exercise capatitpatients receivin
reveglucosidase alfa. Pompe disease is a lysossiorabe disorder caused by a deficiency in GAA pinavents cells from adequately
degrading glycogen. This results in the storagglyafogen in lysosomes, particularly those in muselés, thereby damaging those cells and
causing progressive muscle weakness, which indamrresult in death due to pulmonary or cardiagffitsency.

Results from the Phase 1/2 clinical trial, releaseiarch 2013, exceeded our prespecified requiresd he results showed that in the 20
mg/kg every other week dose cohort, three out gdténts, or 19%, had a greater than 75-meterdugonent in six-minute walk distance
(6MWD), and that there was a 14.1% relative improget in Maximal Expiratory Pressure (MEP) and @2¥relative improvement in
Maximal Inspiratory Pressure (MIP) from pretreatinesseline to week 24, two important measures efalrespiratory muscle function and
strength. Side effects for reveglucosidase alfeevgenerally consistent with those seen for otheyme replacement therapies.

Health authorities, including the FDA and the EM¥aye indicated that MIP is a potentially approvalienary endpoint for our Phase 2/3
switching trial with reveglucosidase alfa, assumntimg results of the trial are compelling and clitlig meaningful. This switching trial is
designed to enroll late onset Pompe patients wkie peeviously been treated with alglucosidase dlfe trial has been initiated with the first
patient enrolled in May of 2014. We are targetiogroll approximately 20 patients in the first qaaof 2015 to establish proof-of-concept.
We are currently working on improving the manufaictg process for reveglucosidase alfa, which weeekpill be our commercial
manufacturing process, and will target to enroltap0 additional patients in a trial to be adntiied the drug manufactured with this
improved process.

The reveglucosidase alfa program now includesdditan to the above studies, an observationalysasdwell as another Phase 2 study
which is designed to support MIP as a primary emp8oth of these studies are also currently acéimd enrolling.

BMN 111

BMN 111 is a peptide therapeutic in developmentlfiertreatment of achondroplasia. In September 20&2nnounced the results of a
Phase 1 clinical trial for BMN 111. The primary ebijive of the Phase 1 clinical trial was to assiessafety and tolerability of single and
multiple doses of BMN 111 in normal healthy adwtunteers up to the maximum tolerated dose. BMNWa4 generally well-tolerated over
the range of single and repeat doses studied. Ricakimetic data indicated that the dose levelsistuesulted in exposure levels that are
expected to stimulate growth based on non-clirfidings. In January 2014, we announced the indtiedf a Phase 2 clinical trial for BMN
111 for the treatment of children with achondrojala%his international clinical trial is an operbéd, sequential cohort, dose-escalation study
of BMN 111 in children who are 5-14 years old. Tmgnary objective of this study is to assess thetgand tolerability of daily subcutaneous
doses of BMN 111 administered for 6 months. Th@sedary objectives will include an evaluation of kfa in annualized growth velocity,
changes in absolute growth parameters, changexiyngroportions and other medically relevant amtfional aspects of achondroplasia, €
as sleep apnea and joint range of motion. Prientolling in the Phase 2 study, all patients wél’é participated in a six month natural history
study to determine baseline growth velocity date. 88mpleted enroliment in the first three cohoftthis study in November 2014. A total of
26 subjects have been enrolled in this study foeament duration of six months. The protocol wexently amended to allow subjects who
completed six months of treatment to be enrolleani8-month extension study. We plan to reportodvim data for the first three cohorts in
the second quarter of 2015.
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Cerliponase alfa

Cerliponase alfés a recombinant human tripeptidyl peptidase lemetbpment for the treatment of patients with CL
a form of Batten disease. CLN2 is an incurableidigprogressive disease that ends in patient deattD-12 years of
age. Patients are initially healthy but begin tolide at approximately the age of three. It isreated that 400-600
cases exist worldwide, but CLN2 is believed to bdardiagnosed. In September 2013, we announceditiagion of a
Phase 1/2 study faerliponase alfa This clinical trial is an open-label, dose-estialastudy in patients with CLN2. The
primary objectives are to evaluate the safety ateddbility of cerliponase alfand to evaluate effectiveness using a
CLN2-specific rating scale score in comparison wisttiural history data after 48 weeks of treatm®atondary
objectives are to evaluate the impact of treatroartirain atrophy in comparison with CLN2 naturatbry after 48
weeks of treatment and to characterize pharmacoés@nd immunogenicity. This study was fully efedlin
December 2014 with 24 patients. In January 2015anv@unced interim data from the study, which iat#s that in all
nine of the patients in the trial who have beetofeéd for at least six months and up to 15 morttresfreatment
appears to show stabilization of the disease coedp@arthe natural history based on a standardizabsare of motor
and language function. All patients are toleratimg therapeutic dose. These preliminary resulte liae potential to
support the feasibility of a single-study filingtiviregulatory authorities. We expect to announgepete results in the
fourth quarter of 2015 We may decide to enroll onenore additional cohorts in this study after weiew the data for
the first three cohorts and meet with regulatorghatities.

BMN 044, BMN 045, and BMN 05:

We acquired BMN 044, BMN 045 and BMN 053, Prosessandidates for the treatment of subsets of DMDJanuary 15, 2015. See Item
1, Business—Recent Developments—Acquisition of Praséoiding N.V.

BMN 044 (formerly referred to as PRO 04a)) exon-44 skipping compoundns to addressgpecific mutation in the
dystrophin gene that represents approximately 6%l @MD patientsProsensa initiated a dose-escalation trial, asgpssi
doses (0.5, 1.5, 5, 8, 10 and 12 mg/kg/week) iDUB patients in December 2009. Enroliment was catgal in the first quarter of 2013, and
an extension study has been initiated.

BMN 045 (formerly referred to as PRO 045), an edérskipping compound, aims to addregpecific mutation in the dystrophin
gene that represents approximately 8% of all DMbepés.Prosensa commenced a Phase 1/2 study of BMN O#& ifirst quarter
of 2013 in Europe, which is ongoing.

BMN 053 (formerly referred to as PRO 053), an e%@rskipping compound, aims to addresgpecific mutation in the dystrophin
gene that represents approximately 8% of all DMDepés.Prosensa commenced a Phase 1/2 study for BMN 0S8gtember
2013 which is ongoing.

Manufacturing

We manufacture Naglazyme, Aldurazyme, Vimizim, pdgse, BMN 111 and cerliponase alfa in our appto8eod Manufacturing
Practices (GMP) production facilities located invdto, California. Vialing and packaging are perfedrby contract manufacturers. We beli
that we have ample operating capacity to supperttdmmercial demand of both Naglazyme and Aldurazghmough at least the next five
years as well as the commercial requirements #irtitial launch of Vimizim

In August 2011, we acquired a bulk biologics mantifeang plant located in Shanbally, County of CdrkJand. This 142,000-square-foot
facility which was completed and validated in 20@&s approved by the Irish Medicines Board in 204/8.are not currently manufacturing
products in this facility. We currently intend tamufacture Vimizim in this facility. However, betowe can manufacture any product in this
facility, including Vimizim, we will need to requéy and validate certain systems in the facilitheTaddition of the Shanbally facility will
increase our operating capacity to support thesipatied commercial demand of Vimizim.

Our Novato, California facilities have demonstratedhpliance with GMPs to the satisfaction of theArthe European Commission (EC)
and health agencies in other countries for the ceroia production of Aldurazyme, Naglazyme and \zimi. All of our facilities and those of
any thirdparty manufacturers will be subject to periodigstions confirming compliance with applicable lamd must pass inspection bef
we can manufacture our drugs for commercial sales.

Both the Kuvan tablet and powder sachet are matwrizat on a contract basis by a third-party. Theeet&o approved manufacturers of the
active pharmaceutical ingredient (API) for KuvairdBpse, reveglucosidase alfa and talazoparibaake manufactured on a contract basis by
third-party. There is one approved manufacturghefAPI for Firdapse.
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In general, we expect to continue to contract wiitside service providers for certain manufactusagyices, including final product vialil
and packaging operations for our recombinant ensyane API production and tableting for Kuvan andi&pse. Third-party manufacturers’
facilities are subject to periodic inspections ¢mfirm compliance with applicable law and must bdRscertified. We believe that our current
agreements with third-party manufacturers and sergprovide for ample operating capacity to suppia anticipated commercial demand for
Kuvan and Firdapse. In certain instances, theoals one approved contract manufacturer for cerajmects of the manufacturing process. In
such cases, we attempt to prevent disruption gblggthrough supply agreements, maintaining safetgk and other appropriate strategies.
Although we have never experienced a disruptiosuipply from our contract manufacturers, we cannatide assurance that we will not
experience a disruption in the future.

Raw Materials

Raw materials and supplies required for the pradocif our products and product candidates ardaai in some instances from one
supplier, and in other instances, from multiple@igps. In those cases where raw materials are adjylable through one supplier, such
supplier may be either a sole source (the onlygeized supply source available to us) or a singlece (the only approved supply source for
us among other sources). We have adopted poliziadempt, to the extent feasible, to minimize i material supply risks, including
maintenance of greater levels of raw materialsnitwmg and implementation of multiple raw materisdsircing strategies, especially for critical
raw materials. Although to date we have not experd any significant delays in obtaining any rawerials from our suppliers, we cannot
provide assurance that we will not face shortages fone or more of them in the future.

Sales and Marketing

We have established a commercial organizationydhicl a sales force, to support our product lirie=ctly in the U.S., Europe, South
America and certain other significant markets. éiber selected markets, we have signed agreeméhtstiver companies to act as distribui
of Naglazyme. Most of these agreements generadlgtghe distributor the right to market the produadhe territory and the obligation to
secure all necessary regulatory approvals for camialeor named patient sales. Additional marketskaing assessed at this time and
additional agreements may be signed in the fuiie believe that with moderate additions in 201B,glze of our sales force will be
appropriate to effectively reach our target audéeincmarkets where Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan, aird&pse are directly marketed. We
utilize third-party logistics companies to storel afistribute our products.

Genzyme has the exclusive right to distribute, reaaind sell Aldurazyme globally and is requireghtiochase its requirements exclusively
from us.

Customers

Our Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan and Firdapse custameclude a limited number of specialty pharmaeied end-users, such as hospitals
and foreign government agencies. We also sell Mimand Naglazyme to our authorized European distoits and to certain larger
pharmaceutical wholesalers, which act as intermiedidetween us and end-users and generally detoak significant quantities of
Naglazyme and Vimizim. During 2014, 54% of our ¥&nizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan and Firdapse product rexes were generated by fc
customers. Genzyme is our sole customer for Aldum&zand is responsible for marketing and sellinduddzyme to third-parties. In certain
countries particularly in Latin America, governmeptace large periodic orders for Vimizim and Nagtae. The timing of these orders can
create significant quarter to quarter variatiolum revenue.

Competition

The biopharmaceutical industry is rapidly evolvargd highly competitive. Within the industry, theme many public and private
companies, including pharmaceutical companies @stddhnology companies that have or may soon teifigograms for the same indications
that our candidate drugs and commercial drugsraeaded to treat. Furthermore, universities angprofit research organizations may have
research programs, both early-stage and clinicahe same disease areas. Our competitors mayadaeatages over us due to greater
financial or scientific resources, lower labor arhber costs, or due to higher headcount and mdmasterganizational structures. Our
competitors have considerable experience in drugufaaturing, preclinical and clinical research,ulagory affairs, marketing, sales, and
distribution. They pursue broad patent portfohosl other intellectual property to protect the piid they are developing. Their products
outcompete ours due to one or more factors, inctuthster progress through preclinical and clindmlelopment, lower manufacturing costs,
superior safety and efficacy, lower pricing, strengatent protection, and better marketing, saled,distribution capabilities. In this event,
products, even if approved, could fail to gain figant market share, and as a result, our busjriesscial condition and results of operations
could be adversely affected.

Our commercial products have no direct approvedpagdition currently on the market, however, othenpanies are in the development
phase with new and generic products. The follgvigna summary of some of the primary possiblereuttompetitors for our approved
products.
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Naglazyme, Aldurazyme and Vimizi

In the mucopolysaccharidosis (MPS) field, seveoahpanies are researching treatments using smadlaulels, gene therapy, and other
novel technologies. These companies, howevelikalg a year or more away from commercial therapie

Kuvan and Pegvalias

There are currently no other approved drugs fotréetment of PKU. However, two companies hawefiparagraph 1V certifications and
submitted ANDAs to produce sapropterin dihydrocidertablets. See the ANDA discussion under “Thé&chiVaxman Act” for additional
information.

Firdapse

There are no other approved drugs for the treatofddEMS, and Firdapse is the only approved versib8,4-DAP. In some countries,
3,4-DAP is available, as a base, through variouspmunding pharmacies, as a special or magistraidtation, or through investigator
sponsored studies. One U.S. company has begumi@attrial of a compounded version of 3,4-DAPiteat LEMS.

Pipeline Products

Talazoparib, faces competition from several oth®RP inhibitors at a similar stage in developmert &lom AstraZeneca’s approved
product, Lynparza™ (olaparib), which is approveddatients with deleterious or suspected deletesrgRRCA mutated advanced ovarian
cancer. Reveglucosidase alfa has competition fe@mzyme’s marketed enzyme replacement producteziye® (alglucosidase alfa) and
Lumizyme® (alglucosidase alfa), and from a thirchn@gne product in development. Drisapersen, hagetition from Sarepta Therapeutics’
product eteplirsen, which is at a similar stagdemelopment. Our other pipeline products have citipn from earlier stage products, either
using similar technology to our programs or diffarreatment strategies.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Our success depends on an intellectual propertjotiorthat supports our future revenue streamsalsd erects barriers to our competitors
We are maintaining and building our patent portfdlirough: filing new patent applications; prosé@uyiexisting applications and licensing and
acquiring new patents and patent applications.heamore we seek to protect our ownership of kinmwr, trade secrets and trademarks thre
an active program of legal mechanisms includingstegtions, assignments, confidentiality agreemeantsterial transfer agreements, research
collaborations and licenses.

The number of our worldwide issued patents nowdsa approximately 500, including approximatelypddents issued by the U.S. Patent
and Trademark Office (the USPTO). Furthermore,pmutfolio of pending patent applications totals mpmately 458 applications, including
approximately 78 pending U.S. applications.

With respect to Naglazyme, we have 24 issued patamdiuding three U.S. patents. Claims cover duapureN -acetylgalactosamine-4-
sulfatase compositions of Naglazyme, methods atitrg deficiencies d -acetylgalactosamine-4-sulfatase, including MPSnwthods of
producing and purifying such ultrapuxe-acetylgalactosamine-4-sulfatase compositions agithoadls of detecting. These patents will expire
between 2021 and 2028.

With respect to Kuvan, we own, co-own or have Igggha number of patents and pending patent apphsahat relate generally to
formulations and forms of our drug substance, nathaf use for various indications under developnagwt dosing regimens. We have right
75 issued patents including 13 issued U.S. pateititsclaims to a stable tablet and oral solutiomfolation of 6R-BH4, methods of treating
PKU using a once daily dosing regimen, methoddafiaistration of Kuvan with food, crystalline forre§ 6R-BH4, and methods of producii
6R-BH4. These patents will expire between 20242028.

We have rights to 33 issued patents, includinds&. patents, related to Aldurazyme. These patavsr our ultra-pure alpha-L-
iduronidase composition of Aldurazyme, methodsedting deficiencies of alpha-L-iduronidase by aulstering pharmaceutical compositions
comprising such ultra-pure alpha-L-iduronidase,ethod of purifying such ultra-pure alpha-L-iduroasée and the use of compositions of ultra
pure biologically active fragments of alpha-L-idoidase. These patents will expire in 2019 and 208@re are U.S. patents on alpha-L-
iduronidase owned and controlled by a third-pafte have examined such issued U.S. patents, theddlhS. and foreign applications and
their file histories, the prior art and other infation. Corresponding foreign applications werediin Canada, Europe and Japan. The
European application was rejected and abandonedaambt be re-filed. The Japanese application lsadapsed and cannot befiled. Claims
in the related Canadian application issued in 200& believe that such patents may not survive #estge to patent validity but that it is
unlikely that a court in any country would ordertastop marketing the only life-saving drug tteaturrently approved for this disease.
However, the processes of patent law are unceatain
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any patent proceeding is subject to multiple urgpdied outcomes. We believe that it is in the bestest of our joint venture with Genzyme
to market Aldurazyme with commercial diligencepmder to provide MPS | patients with the benefité\lmurazyme. We believe that these
patents and patent applications do not affect bilityato market Aldurazyme in Europe.

We have patent protection in the European Pategdidzation countries for Firdapse for the treatnediitEMS. We have no issued patents
in the U.S. for Firdapse for the treatment of LEM&ese patents will expire in 2022.

With respect to Vimizim, we own or have licenseduanber of patents and pending patent applicattosisrelate generally to compositions
of matter, methods of use and methods of productdmhave rights to 11 issued patents including fsued U.S. patents with claims to
compositions of purified recombinant N-acetylgatsetmine-6-sulfate sulfatase (Vimizim) methods eéting Morquio Syndrome and
sulfatase-modifying factor | (SUMF1) polypeptidesianucleic acids used in the manufacture of Vimidzesued U.S. patents cover SUMF1
compositions (set to expire in 2019), purified mabinant Vimizim compositions (set to expire in 2D28d methods of treating Morquio
Syndrome (set to expire in 2029). We also haveeiddllS. and European patents that cover methopidtiction and are set to expire in 2(

With respect to our clinical product candidates,bgbeve we have the necessary intellectual prgpaghts to allowing us to undertake the
development of these candidates. Certain of owtymts candidates are in therapeutic areas thatbeamethe subject of many years of
extensive research and development by academiaiaeg@mns and third parties who may control patentsther intellectual property that they
might assert against us, should one or more opmduct candidates in these therapeutic areas eddeebtaining regulatory approval and
thereafter be commercialized. We continually evi@dhe intellectual property rights of others iegh areas in order to determine whether a
claim of infringement may be made by others agaissShould we determine that a third party hasladtual property rights that could impi
our ability to freely market a compound we consi@emumber of factors in determining how best tgpre for the commercialization of any
such product. In making this determination we cd@isiamong other things, the stage of developnfemtiioproduct candidate and whether we
and our outside counsel believe the intellectuapprty rights of others are valid, whether we imje the intellectual property rights of others,
whether a license is available upon commercialysomable terms, whether we will seek to challehgérttellectual property rights of others,
and the likelihood of and liability resulting froam adverse outcome should we be found to infrihgeritellectual property rights of others.

Government Regulation

Regulation by governmental authorities in the @&l other countries is a significant factor in deselopment, manufacture,
commercialization, pricing and reimbursement of praducts. Our industry is subject to significaeddral, state, local and foreign regulation.
Our present and future business has been, andamilinue to be, subject to a variety of laws inlthréted States and other jurisdictions.

Our products require approval from the FDA, the EBI#l corresponding agencies in other countriesrbdlfiey can be marketed.

Approval Process in the United States and Europemon

Pharmaceutical product development in the U.S.thedtEU typically involves preclinical laboratorydaanimal tests, the submission to the
applicable regulatory agency of an application.(eg investigational new drug application (IND)aoclinical trial application (CTA)), which
must become effective before clinical testing masnmence, and adequate and well-controlled humaitalitrials to establish the safety and
effectiveness of the drug for each indication fdvickh marketing approval is sought. Satisfactiof DA and EMA pre-market approval
requirements typically takes many years and theshtime required may vary substantially based upertype, complexity and novelty of the
product or disease.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluationwad as animal studies, to assess the charaatsrastd potential pharmacology,
pharmacokinetics and toxicity of the product. Theduct of the preclinical tests must comply withABnd/or EMA regulations and
requirements, including good laboratory practidé®e results of preclinical testing, along with athiormation, including information about
product chemistry, manufacturing and controls apdoposed clinical trial protocol are submittedhe applicable regulatory agency as part of
an IND or CTA. Long term preclinical tests, suchaagmal tests of reproductive toxicity and carcieoigity, may continue after the IND or
CTA is submitted. Until the CTA or IND is approveat,deemed approved following a waiting period,magy not start the clinical trial in the
relevant jurisdiction.

Clinical trials involve the administration of theviestigational new drug to healthy volunteers digps under the supervision of a qualified
investigator. Clinical trials must be conducteadiimpliance with applicable regulations, good ckhigractices (GCP), as well as under
protocols detailing the objectives of the trial ahd parameters to be used in monitoring safetytl@ffectiveness criteria to be evaluated.
Each protocol involving testing on patients andssgent protocol amendments must be submittedtBEA as part of the IND and to the
relevant regulatory agency in the EU as part ofw& G TA.
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The regulatory agencies may order the temporatyongdermanent discontinuation of a clinical taalany time or impose other sanctions if
they believe that the clinical trial is not beinpnducted in accordance with applicable requiremengsesents an unacceptable risk to the
clinical trial patients. The study protocol andamhed consent information for patients in clinité@ls must also be submitted to an institutic
review board (IRB) or ethics committee, for apptioyan IRB/ethics committee may also require thaickal trial at the site to be halted, either
temporarily or permanently, for failure to complythwthe IRB/ethics committee’s requirements, or nmagose other conditions.

Clinical trials to support NDAs, biologics licenapplications (BLAS), or MAAs for marketing approak typically conducted in three
sequential phases, but the phases may overlapaumbkined. In Phase 1, the initial introductiortle# drug into healthy human subjects or
patients, the drug is tested to assess metabgisangnacokinetics, pharmacological actions, sidect$fassociated with increasing doses and,
possible, early evidence on effectiveness. Phasually involves trials in a limited patient poptiga, to determine the effectiveness of the
drug for a particular indication or indications sdge tolerance and optimum dosage, and to idezgifynon adverse effects and safety risks. |
a compound demonstrates evidence of effectivemabamacceptable safety profile in Phase 2 evalositiPhase 3 trials are undertaken to
obtain the additional information about clinicaliedcy and safety in a larger number of patientgically at geographically dispersed clinical
trial sites. After completion of the required ctial testing, an NDA or BLA is prepared and submditie the FDA and an MAA is prepared and
submitted to the EMA. FDA approval of the NDA or Blis required before marketing of the product magih in the U.S. and approval of the
MAA by the EC is required before marketing of theguct may begin in the EU. The NDA, BLA or MAA niusclude the results of all
preclinical, clinical and other testing, a compdatof data relating to the product’s pharmacolatyemistry, manufacture and controls and
proposed labeling, among other things.

The FDA and the EMA initially review the applicati® for a threshold determination that it is suéfidly complete to permit substantive
review, typically within 30-60 days. The FDA or tB&A may request additional information rather tlaxcepting an NDA/BLA or MAA,
respectively, for filing or validation. Once thelsnission is accepted, the applicable agency begins-depth review. For the FDA, the review
period for standard review applications is typigah additional ten months and, for priority reviefadrugs, that is, drugs that the FDA
determines address a significant unmet need amdsept a significant improvement over existing &ipgr the review period is typically an
additional six months in duration. The review prexenay be extended by the FDA for three additiomaiths to consider new information
submitted during the review or clarification regaglinformation already provided in the submissibhe FDA may also refer applications for
novel products or products that present difficulestions of safety or efficacy to an advisory cotterj typically a panel that includes
clinicians and other experts, for review, evaluatmd a recommendation as to whether the applicatiould be approved. The FDA is not
bound by the recommendation of an advisory commithet it generally follows such recommendationf$ethe FDA evaluates the
information provided in the NDA/BLA, it issues ap@oval letter, or a complete response letter. mplete response letter outlines the
deficiencies in the submission and may require tsutisl additional testing or information in order the FDA to reconsider the application. If
and when those deficiencies have been addresseBDA will re-initiate review. If it is satisfiechat the deficiencies have been addressed, th
FDA will issue an approval letter. The FDA has coitbed to reviewing such resubmissions in two orrabnths depending on the type of
information included. It is not unusual, however, the FDA to issue a complete response letterdseca believes that the drug is not safe
enough or effective enough or because it doesel@ve that the data submitted are reliable or ke,

For the EMA, an application designated as standarigw typically lasts approximately eleven montlepending on the length of time
sponsors take to address EMA questions. The aeteteassessment procedure is applicable to magkatithorization applications for
medicinal products that are expected to be of najbtic health interest. For applications that ree@ccelerated assessment designation and
are able to remain on this timeline the reviewaghly lasts approximately seven months dependintherength of time sponsors take to
address EMA questions. It is not unusual, howdeerapplications that receive accelerated assedstesignation to revert to standard review,
typically because the EMA has determined that ifpeificance of the questions that the company néedsldress would be more appropriate
under the standard review timelines. At the enthefreview period, EMA will issue an opinion eithiersupport of marketing authorization
(positive opinion) or recommending refusal of a keding authorization (negative opinion). In the mvef a negative opinion, the company
may request a re-examination of the applicatiorthi%i60 days the company must provide the EMA dedagrounds for requesting re-
examination. Within 60 days of providing this infeaition, the EMA will issue an opinion either in popt of marketing authorization (positive
opinion) or recommending refusal of a marketindhatization (negative opinion). In the event of &ifige opinion, the EC will then grant
marketing authorization in approximately 67 dayise EC follows the recommendation of the EMA in asinall cases.

During the review period, the FDA and/or the EMAIwypically inspect one or more clinical sites &mdthe sponsor to assure compliance
with GCP regulations and will inspect the facilitiythe facilities at which the drug is manufactute@nsure compliance with GMP regulatic
Neither the FDA nor the EMA will approve the protlualess compliance is satisfactory and the apipdicacontains data that provis
substantial evidence that the drug is safe andt@eféein the indication studied.

A marketing approval authorizes commercial markgtifithe drug with specific prescribing informatifor specific indications. As a
condition of NDA or BLA approval, the FDA may regaia risk evaluation and mitigation strategy (REM8)help ensure that the benefits of
the drug outweigh the potential risks. REMS caride medication guides, communication plans foltheare professionals, and elements to
assure safe use (ETASU). ETASU can include, bubhatdimited to, special training or certificatidor prescribing or dispensing, dispensing
only under certain circumstances, special monitpand the use of patient registries. The
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requirement for REMS can materially affect the ptitd market and profitability of the drug. Moreayeroduct approval may require
substantial post-approval testing and surveillanamonitor the drug’s safety or efficacy. Once gealy product approvals may be withdrawn if
compliance with regulatory standards is not mangdior problems are identified following initial rkating.

Disclosure of Clinical Trial Information

Sponsors of clinical trials of FDA-regulated prothjéncluding drugs and biologics, are requiredegister and disclose certain clinical trial
information. Information related to the producttipat population, phase of investigation, studgs&nd investigators, and other aspects of th
clinical trial are then made public as part of tbgistration. Sponsors are also obligated to dstus results of their clinical trials after
completion. Disclosure of the results of thesddri@n be delayed until the new product or newdatiton being studied has been approved.
Competitors may use this publicly-available infotioa to gain knowledge regarding the progress ektigpment programs. The EMA
currently has proposed regulations that would megslibstantially more disclosure regarding clintdals, including individual patient level
data.

The Hatch-Waxman Act

Upon approval of a drug through an NDA, applicants required to submit to the FDA each patent¢baérs the applicant’s product or
FDA approved method of using this product. Thodemta are then published in the FDA’s Orange Baokgs listed in the Orange Book can,
in turn, be cited by potential competitors in supmd approval of an ANDA. Generally, an ANDA praols for marketing of a drug product 1
has the same active ingredients in the same sh)gtoute of administration, and dosage formhadisted drug and has been shown through
bioequivalence testing to be therapeutically edeivizio the listed drug. ANDA applicants are najuiged to conduct or submit results of pre-
clinical or clinical tests to prove the safety ffieetiveness of their drug product, other thanrdguirement for bioequivalence testing. Drugs
approved in this way are commonly referred to antgic equivalents” to the listed drug, and carrofie substituted by pharmacists under
prescriptions written for the original listed drug.

The ANDA applicant is required to certify to the ABoncerning any patents listed for the approvexdipct in the Orange Book.
Specifically, the applicant must certify that: tfie required patent information has not been fi{@pthe listed patent has expired; (iii) the &dt
patent has not expired, but will expire on a patticdate and approval is sought after patent akpir; or (iv) the listed patent is invalid or will
not be infringed by the new product. A certificatithhat the new product will not infringe the alrgabproved product’s listed patents or that
such patents are invalid is called a paragrapheification. If the applicant does not challenpe tisted patents, the ANDA application will
not be approved until all the listed patents claigtihe referenced product have expired. Alternbtj\fer a patent covering an approved metl
of use, an ANDA applicant may submit a statemenihé&FDA that the company is not seeking approwathie covered use.

If the ANDA applicant has submitted a paragraplcévtification to the FDA, the applicant must alsma notice of the paragraph IV
certification to the NDA and patent holders onae ANDA has been accepted for filing by the FDA. TMRA and patent holders may then
initiate a patent infringement lawsuit in respoteséhe notice of the paragraph IV certification €Tfiling of a patent infringement lawsuit witl
45 days of the receipt of a paragraph 1V certifamButomatically prevents the FDA from approvihg ANDA until the earlier of 30 months,
expiration of the patent, settlement of the lawsuia decision in the infringement case that i®falle to the ANDA applicant.

The ANDA application also will not be approved liaty non-patent exclusivity, such as exclusiviy débtaining approval of a new
chemical entity, listed in the Orange Book for therenced product has expired. Federal law prevideeriod of five years following approval
of a drug containing no previously approved acthaety, during which ANDAs for generic versionstbbse drugs cannot be submitted un
the submission contains a paragraph 1V challengelisied patent, in which case the submission beasnade four years following the original
product approval. Federal law provides for a peabthree years of exclusivity following approvdlalisted drug that contains previously
approved active ingredients but is approved inva desage form, route of administration or combiotior for a new condition of use, the
approval of which was required to be supportedday nlinical trials conducted by or for the sponghriing which the FDA cannot grant
effective approval of an ANDA based on that listiedg. Both of the five-year and three-year excligigeriods, as well as any unexpired
patents listed in the Orange Book for the listasgdcan be extended by six months if the FDA griveSNDA sponsor a period of pediatric
exclusivity based on studies submitted by the spoimsresponse to a written request.

Orphan Drug Designation

Vimizim, Naglazyme, Aldurazyme, Kuvan and Firdaps@e received orphan drug designations from the BBd\the EMA. Orphan drug
designation is granted to drugs intended to treatedisease or condition, which in the U.S. ndel as having a prevalence of less than
200,000 individuals in the U.S. and in the EU ifirderl as no more than five in 10,000 people inEkk which is equivalent to around 250,000
people or less. Orphan drug designation must beestgd before submitting a marketing application.
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Orphan drug designation does not shorten the regyleeview and approval process, nor does it gi®any advantage in the regulatory
review and approval process. However, if an orpivaiy later receives approval for the indicationvidrich it has designation, the relevant
regulatory authority may not approve any other impgibns to market the same drug for the same atidic, except in very limited
circumstances, for seven years in the U.S. angidars in the EU. Although obtaining approval to ket product with orphan drug
exclusivity may be advantageous, we cannot beioerta

« that we will be the first to obtain approval foryagrug for which we obtain orphan drug designation;
« that orphan drug designation will result in any coencial advantage or reduce competition; or

- that the limited exceptions to this exclusivity wibt be invoked by the relevant regulatory auttyori

Orphan drug exclusive marketing rights may be loster certain conditions, such as if the requastiésignation was materially defective
or if the manufacturer is unable to assure sufficgpiantity of the drug.

Breakthrough Therapy Designatio

The FDA is also required to expedite the developgraed review of the application for approval of gisuthat are intended to treat a serious
or life-threatening disease or condition whereiprielary clinical evidence indicates that the drugyndemonstrate substantial improvement
over existing therapies on one or more clinicaifyngicant endpoints. Under the breakthrough thgnarogram, the sponsor of a new drug
candidate may request that the FDA designate ting candidate for a specific indication as a breaktbh therapy concurrent with, or after,
filing of the IND for the drug candidate. The FDdust determine if the drug candidate qualifieshi@akthrough therapy designation within
60 days of receipt of the sponsor’s request.

Pediatric Information

Under the Pediatric Research Equity Act of 2007ERR NDAs or BLAs or supplements to NDAs or BLAs sticontain data to assess the
safety and effectiveness of the drug for the cldimneication(s) in all relevant pediatric subpoigias and to support dosing and
administration for each pediatric subpopulationvitiich the drug is safe and effective. The FDA rgegnt deferrals for submission of data or
full or partial waivers. Unless otherwise requitadregulation, PREA does not apply to any drugafeindication for which orphan drug
designation has been granted. The Best Pharmaalsuiic Children Act (BPCA) provides sponsors of Abwith an additional six-month
period of market exclusivity for all unexpired patt@r non-patent exclusivity on all forms of theidrcontaining the active moiety if the
sponsor submits results of pediatric studies sjpedlj requested by the FDA under BPCA within regditimeframes. The Biologics Price
Competition and Innovation Act of 2009 (BPCIA) pides sponsors of BLAs an additional six-month egiem for all unexpired non-patent
market exclusivity on all forms of the biologicantaining the active moiety pursuant to the BPCthé conditions under the BPCA are met.

Fast Track Designation

The FDA is required to facilitate the developmemd @xpedite the review of drugs that are intendedHe treatment of a serious or life-
threatening condition for which there is no effeettreatment and which demonstrate the potentiatititess unmet medical needs for the
condition. Under the FDA fast track program, the sponsor of a new drugidate may request that the FDA designate the dangidate for
specific indication as a fast track drug concureith or after the filing of the IND for the drugndidate. The FDA must determine if the drug
candidate qualifies for fast track designation witBO days of receipt of the sponsor’s request.

In addition to other benefits, such as the abilityse surrogate endpoints and have greater itimmaavith the FDA, the FDA may initiate
review of sections of a fast track drug’s NDA orMhbefore the application is complete. This rollimyiew is available if the applicant
provides and the FDA approves a schedule for then@sion of the remaining information and the aggoit pays applicable user fees.
However, the FDA'’s time period goal for reviewing @pplication does not begin until the last sectibthe NDA or BLA is submitted.
Additionally, the fast track designation may behaitawn by the FDA if the FDA believes that the desition is no longer supported by data
emerging in the clinical trial process.

Pos-Approval Regulatory Requirements

Following approval, the FDA and the EMA will imposertain post-approval requirements related toodyoet. For instance, the FDA
closely regulates the post-approval marketing anchption of approved products, including standanad regulations for direct-to-consumer
advertising, off-label promotion, industry-sponsbeeientific and educational activities and promiedl activities involving the Internet.
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Approved products may be marketed only for the @y indications and in accordance with the prowisiof the approved labeling.
Changes to some of the conditions established aparoved application, including changes in indaa, labeling, or manufacturing proces
or facilities, may require a submission to and appt by the FDA or the EMA, as applicable, befdre thange can be implemented. An
NDA/BLA or MAA supplement for a new indication tygally requires clinical data similar to that in ttiéginal application, and simile
procedures and actions in reviewing NDA/ BLA or MAfpplements as in reviewing NDAs/BLAs and MAAs.

Adverse event reporting and submission of perioglorts is required following marketing approvather the FDA or EMA may also
require post-marketing testing, known as Phasstihtg risk evaluation and mitigation strategie®] aurveillance to monitor the effects of an
approved product or place conditions on an apprihaicould restrict the distribution or use of greduct. In addition, quality control as well
as the manufacture, packaging, and labeling praesduust continue to conform to current Good Magiuféng Practices (cGMPs) after
approval. Drug and biological product manufactueerd certain of their subcontractors are subjepet@dic unannounced inspections by the
FDA or the EMA during which the agency inspects ofanturing facilities to access compliance with cBd1Accordingly, manufacturers
must continue to expend time, money and efforh@dreas of production and quality control to neamtompliance with cGMPs. Regulatory
authorities may withdraw product approvals or regpeoduct recalls if a company fails to complyhlwiegulatory standards, if it encounters
problems following initial marketing, or if previsly unrecognized problems are subsequently disedvin addition, prescription drug
manufactures in the U.S. must comply with appliegirbvisions of the Drug Supply Chain Security Actl provide
and receive product tracing information, maintgprapriate licenses, ensure they only work witreotbroperly

licensed entities and have procedures in placeetatify and properly handle suspect and illegitenatoducts.

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 20.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act@f@, as amended by the Health Care and EducatioonR#iation Act of 2010 (as
amended, the PPACA), is a sweeping measure intdndexpand healthcare coverage within the U.Smanily through the imposition of
health insurance mandates on employers and indildcand expansion of the Medicaid program.

The BPCIA, which was enacted as part of the PPAC@ated an abbreviated approval pathway for biokdgiroducts that are
demonstrated to be “biosimilar” or “interchangedbléth an FDA-licensed reference biological produBiosimilarity sufficient to reference a
prior FDA-licensed product requires that there balifferences in conditions of use, route of adstiaition, dosage form, and strength, and nc
clinically meaningful differences between the bgital product and the reference product in termsabéty, purity, and potency. Biosimilarity
must be shown through analytical studies, animaliss, and at least one clinical study, absentigenérom the Secretary of Health and
Human Services. In order to meet the higher huwtliaterchangeability, a sponsor must demonsttaethe biosimilar product can be
expected to produce the same clinical result asetfeeence product, and for a product that is agst@red more than once, that the risk of
switching between the reference product and bidaimroduct is not greater than the risk of maimteg the patient on the reference product.
No biosimilar or interchangeable products have leggroved under the BPCIA to date. Complexitieseiased with the larger, and often m
complex, structures of biological products, as waslthe process by which such products are manuéattpose significant hurdles to
implementation that are still being evaluated 3/ BDA. A reference biologic is granted twelve yaafrexclusivity from the time of first
licensure of the reference product and no apptiodtr a biosimilar can be submitted for four yefaoen the date of licensure of the reference
product. The first biologic product submitted unttes abbreviated approval pathway that is deterthiade interchangeable with the refere
product has exclusivity against a finding of inteangeability for other biologics for the same cdindi of use for the lesser of (i) one year after
first commercial marketing of the first interchaagke biosimilar, (ii) eighteen months after theffinterchangeable biosimilar is approved if
there is not patent challenge, (iii) eighteen meratfier resolution of a lawsuit over the patentthefreference biologic in favor of the first
interchangeable biosimilar applicant, or (iv) 42ntis after the first interchangeable biosimilappléication has been approved if a patent
lawsuit is ongoing within the 42-month period.

The PPACA also imposes a new fee on certain matwreas and importers of branded prescription dfegsluding orphan drugs under
certain conditions). The annual fee will be aportid among the participating companies based dnaanpanys sales of qualifying produc
to, or use by, certain U.S. government programsgduhe preceding year. Other provisions of the few which have varying effective dates,
may also affect us and will likely increase certairour costs. For example, the Medicaid rebate nats increased and the volume of rebated
drugs has been expanded to include beneficiaridketlicaid managed care organizations. Among ottiags, the PPACA also expands the
340B drug discount program (excluding orphan druigs)uding the creation of new penalties for nampliance and includes a 50% discount
on brand name drugs for Medicare Part D particpanthe coverage gap, or “donut hole.” The lave ats/ised the definition of “average
manufacturer price” for reporting purposes, whiohld increase the amount of the Medicaid drug ebphid to states. Substantial new
provisions affecting compliance also have been dddiich may require us to modify our business tixas with health care practitioners.
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In addition, drug manufacturers are required téectland report information on payments or trarsstérvalue to physicians and teaching
hospitals, as well as investment interests helgHygicians and their immediate family members dytire preceding calendar year. The
reported data are posted in searchable form oblicpueb site. Failure to submit required inforneatimay result in civil monetary penalties.
The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMSped regulations, which required manufacturetsein collecting required
information in 2013, with the first reports due2f@14. The reported data was posted in searchatmtedo a public website beginning
September 30, 2014.

Approval Outside of the United States/European Umi

For marketing outside the U.S. and the EU, we abgest to foreign regulatory requirements goverrtimgnan clinical testing and market
approval for our products. These requirements grjurisdiction, can differ from those in the U&d the EU and may require us to perform
additional pre-clinical or clinical testing. The aumt of time required to obtain necessary approvelg be longer or shorter than that required
for FDA or the EMA approval. In many countries adésof the U.S., coverage, pricing and reimbursdrapprovals are also required.

Anti-Corruption Legislation

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), tich we are subject, prohibits corporations andviddals from engaging in certain
activities to obtain or retain business or to iafiae a person working in an official capacitysliliegal to pay, offer to pay or authorize the
payment of anything of value to any foreign goveemtrofficial, government staff member, politicalyeor political candidate in an attempt to
obtain or retain business or to otherwise influem@erson working in an official capacity. Similaws exist in other countries, such as the
United Kingdom, that restrict improper paymentptblic and private parties. Many countries haveslgnohibiting these types of payments
within the respective country. Historically, phaeatical companies have been the target of FCPAotret anti-corruption investigations and
penalties.

Other Regulatory Requirements

In addition to FDA restrictions on marketing of pfmaceutical products, several other types of statefederal laws have been applied to
restrict certain marketing practices in the phamical industry in recent years. These laws ineladiti-kickback statutes and false claims
statutes. The federal healthcare program anti-kicklstatute prohibits, among other things, knowiragid willfully offering, paying, soliciting
or receiving remuneration to induce or in returngarchasing, leasing, ordering or arranging ferparchase, lease or order of any healthcare
item or service reimbursable under Medicare, Madioa other federally financed healthcare prografte PPACA amended the intent
requirement of the federal anti-kickback and criahinealthcare fraud statutes such that a persentidy no longer needs to have actual
knowledge of these statutes or specific intentistate them. This statute has been interpretegplyao arrangements between pharmaceutice
manufacturers on the one hand and prescribershasecs and formulary managers on the other. Variatof the anti-kickback statute are
punishable by imprisonment, criminal fines, civibnetary penalties and exclusion from participatiofederal healthcare programs. Although
there are a number of statutory exemptions andatgy safe harbors protecting certain common dies/from prosecution or other regulat
sanctions, the exemptions and safe harbors arendrawowly, and practices that involve remuneratidanded to induce prescribing,
purchases or recommendations may be subject torscifithey do not qualify for an exemption or edfarbor.

Federal false claims laws prohibit any person figrowingly presenting, or causing to be presentddisa claim for payment to the federal
government, or knowingly making, or causing to ke a false statement to have a false claim paelPPACA amended the statute so that
the government may assert that a claim includiegps or services resulting from a violation of taddral anti-kickback statute constitutes a
false or fraudulent claim for purposes of the fallséms laws. Recently, several pharmaceuticalathdr healthcare companies have been
prosecuted under these laws for allegedly inflatingg prices they report to pricing services, whickurn are used by the government to set
Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement rates, andlfegedly providing free product to customers wvtite expectation that the customers
would bill federal programs for the product. In #ghh, certain marketing practices, including tdbel promotion, may also violate false clai
laws. The majority of states also have statutasgulations similar to the federal anti-kickbacw land false claims laws, which apply to items
and services reimbursed under Medicaid and othée programs, or, in several states, apply regesdiethe payer. Sanctions under these
federal and state laws may include civil monetagaities, exclusion of a company’s products froomb&irsement under government
programs, criminal fines and imprisonment. Sevstaes now require pharmaceutical companies tatregpenses relating to the marketing
and promotion of pharmaceutical products and tontagifts and payments to individual physiciangtiase states. Other states prohibit
providing various other marketing-related actisti&till other states require the posting of infafion relating to clinical studies and their
outcomes. In addition, California, Connecticut, Béa and Massachusetts require pharmaceutical céesgarimplement compliance
programs or marketing codes. Currently, severaitiad@l states are considering similar proposatan@liance with these laws is difficult and
time consuming, and companies that do not comgly thiese state laws face civil penalties.

19




Good Manufacturing Practices.

The FDA, the EMA and other regulatory agencies l@guand inspect equipment, facilities and processed in the manufacture of
pharmaceutical and biologic products prior to apjimg a product. If, after receiving approval froegulatory agencies, a company makes a
material change in manufacturing equipment, locatioprocess, additional regulatory review and apairmay be required. All facilities and
manufacturing techniques used for the manufactiioeioproducts must comply with applicable reguas governing the production of
pharmaceutical products known as “Good ManufactuRractices,” or GMP.

The FDA, the EMA and other regulatory agencies atsrduct regular, periodic visits to re-inspectipqent, facilities and processes
following initial approval of a product. If, as asult of these inspections, it is determined thateguipment, facilities or processes do not
comply with applicable regulations and conditiofipmduct approval, regulatory agencies may issamimg or similar letters or may seek
civil, criminal, or administrative sanctions agdins.

Pricing and Reimburseme

Because the course of treatment for patients wmingroducts is expensive, sales of our produgieids, in part, on the availability and
extent of coverage and reimbursement from thirdygaayers, including governments and private inscegplans. Governments may regulate
access to, prices of or reimbursement levels fopoaducts to control costs or to affect levelsisé of our products, and private insurers may
be influenced by government reimbursement methajieto

Third-party payers, such as government or privatdth care insurers, carefully review and incregigichallenge the prices charged for
drugs. Reimbursement rates from private comparigs depending on the thinphrty payer, the insurance plan and other fac@usside of th
U.S. our products are paid for by a variety of payeith governments being the primary source ghpent. Reimbursement in the EU and
many other territories must be negotiated on a tgtby-country basis and in many countries the pmaannot be commercially launched
until reimbursement is approved. In many countitiesgovernment closely regulates drug pricing amahlboursement and often has a signific
discretion in determining whether a product willreénbursed at all and, if it is, how much will paid. Negotiating prices with governmental
authorities can delay patient access to and conafieation of our products. Payers in many cousttise a variety of cost-containment
measures that can include referencing prices ieratbuntries and using those reference pricesttimsie own price, mandatory price cuts and
rebates. This international patchwork of price tation has led to different prices across countaied some cross-border trade in our products
from markets with lower prices. Even after a pikeaegotiated, countries frequently request orirecadjustments to the price and other
concessions over time.

Government Programs for Marketed Drugs
Medicaid, the 340B Drug Pricing Program, and Media

Federal law requires that a pharmaceutical manufaGtas a condition of having its products recé@deral reimbursement under Medic
and Medicare Part B, must pay rebates to statedditprograms for all units of its covered outpattigrugs dispensed to Medicaid
beneficiaries and paid for by a state Medicaid pogunder either a fee-for-service arrangemertirmugh a managed care organization. This
federal requirement is effectuated through a Medidaug rebate agreement between the manufactndethe Secretary of Health and Human
Services. CMS administers the Medicaid drug rebgteements, which provide, among other things,ttieatirug manufacturer will pay rebe
to each state Medicaid agency on a quarterly laaglseport certain price information on a monthigd guarterly basis. The rebates are based
on prices reported to CMS by manufacturers fortbevered outpatient drugs. For non-innovator potsligenerally generic drugs marketed
under ANDASs, the rebate amount is 13% of the averagnufacturer price (AMP) for the quarter. The AMPhe weighted average of prices
paid to the manufacturer (1) directly by retail commity pharmacies and (2) by wholesalers for ddigibuted to retail community
pharmacies. For innovator products (i.e., drugsahamarketed under NDAs or BLAS), the rebate amh@uthe greater of 23.1% of the AMP
for the quarter or the difference between such Advilt the best price for that same quarter. Thepvest is essentially the lowest price
available to non-governmental entities. Innovatadpicts may also be subject to an additional retbetieis based on the amount, if any, by
which the product’'s AMP has increased since launch.

The statutory definition of AMP was recently amethdend there are many ambiguities in the revisedligion. In February 2012, CMS
published a proposed rule further defining AMP analviding clarification on other parts of the rebbarogram. Until the rule is finalized,
manufacturers are required to make reasonable asisun® when interpreting the statute and calculpfiviP.

The terms of participation in the Medicaid drugatbprogram impose an obligation to correct thegsrreported in previous quarters, as
may be necessary. Any such corrections could resaliditional or lesser rebate liability, depergdon the direction of the correction. In
addition to retroactive rebates, if a manufactwere found to have knowingly submitted false infation to the government, federal law
provides for civil monetary penalties for failing provide required information, late submissiomesfuired information, and false information.
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A manufacturer must also participate in a federagpam known as the 340B drug pricing program theoffor federal funds to be available
to pay for the manufacturer’s drugs under Medieaid Medicare Part B. Under this program, the padting manufacturer agrees to charge
certain safety net healthcare providers no mone #maestablished discounted price for its coverggatient drugs. The formula for determir
the discounted price is defined by statute andset on the AMP and the unit rebate amount aslatécunder the Medicaid drug rebate
program, discussed above.

Federal law also requires that manufacturers refaigt on a quarterly basis to CMS regarding thamgiof drugs that are separately
reimbursable under Medicare Part B. These are giyerugs, such as injectable products, that dreimistered “incident to” a physician
service and are not generally satfministered. The pricing information submittedrbgnufacturers is the basis for reimbursement tsigtans
and suppliers for drugs covered under Medicare BPafis with the Medicaid drug rebate program, fadléaw provides for civil monetary
penalties for failing to provide required informaatj late submission of required information, arldganformation.

Medicare Part D provides prescription drug benéfitsseniors and people with disabilities. MedicBeat D beneficiaries have a gap in t
coverage (between the initial coverage limit arelphbint at which catastrophic coverage begins) ehMedicare does not cover their
prescription drug costs, known as the coverage ldapever, by 2020 Medicare Part D beneficiarie$ paly 25% of drug costs after they re.
the initial coverage limit — the same percentagg there responsible for before they reached that # thereby closing the coverage gap. The
cost of closing the coverage gap is being bornmibgvator companies and the government throughidielss Beginning in 2011, each
manufacturer of drugs approved under NDAs or BLAS nequired to enter into a Medicare Part D covegap discount agreement and
provide a 50% discount on those drugs dispensitetiicare beneficiaries in the coverage gap, inofaleits drugs to be reimbursed by
Medicare Part D.

Federal Contracting/Pricing Requirements

Manufacturers are also required to make their aerugs, which are generally drugs approved uN@=ks or BLAs, available to
authorized users of the Federal Supply Schedul8)BSthe General Services Administration. The &so requires manufacturers to offer
deeply discounted FSS contract pricing for purchaseheir covered drugs by the Department of \éterAffairs, the Department of Defense,
the Coast Guard, and the Public Health Servicdu@ieg the Indian Health Service) in order for fealdunding to be available for
reimbursement or purchase of the manufacturergdunder certain federal programs. FSS pricingdsé four federal agencies for covered
drugs must be no more than the Federal CeilingeREEP), which is at least 24% below the Non-Fdderarage Manufacturer Price (Non-
FAMP) for the prior year. The Non-FAMP is the awggarice for covered drugs sold to wholesalersioeromiddlemen, net of any price
reductions.

The accuracy of a manufacturer’s reported Non-FAMAZPs, or FSS contract prices may be auditeddégdiwernment. Among the
remedies available to the government for inaccesais recoupment of any overcharges to the fourifspe federal agencies based on those
inaccuracies. If a manufacturer were found to Han@vingly reported false prices, in addition toertipenalties available to the government,
the law provides for civil monetary penalties 0D$1000 per incorrect item. Finally, manufacturaes @quired to disclose in FSS contract
proposals all commercial pricing that is equal téegs than the proposed FSS pricing, and subsetpaward of an FSS contract,
manufacturers are required to monitor certain corarakprice reductions and extend commensurate paductions to the government, under
the terms of the FSS contract Price Reductionsgelatimong the remedies available to the governfioer@ny failure to properly disclose
commercial pricing and/or to extend FSS contraicepreductions is recoupment of any FSS overchatggsnay result from such omissions.

Employees
As of January 21, 2015, we had 1,681 full-time eoyipes, 676 of whom are in operations, 540 of whoerraresearch and development,
206 of whom are in sales and marketing and 259%wmiware in administration.

We consider our employee relations to be good.gbyvloyees are not covered by a collective barggiagreement. We have not
experienced employment related work stoppages.

Research and Development

For information regarding research and developragpénses incurred during 2014, 2013 and 2012 tseed,Management Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations—Research and Development.

Geographic Area Financial Information

Our chief operating decision maker (i.e., our cleiedécutive officer) reviews financial information a consolidated basis, for the purposes
of allocating resources and evaluating financiafggenance. Accordingly, we consider ourselves teeha single reporting segment and
operating unit structure.
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Net product revenues by geography are based aenpsitlocations for Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan aniddapse, and are based on
Genzyme’s U.S. location for Aldurazyme. Althoughn@gme sells Aldurazyme worldwide, the royaltieseeened on Genzyme'’s net sales are
included in the U.S. net product revenues as amstctions are with Genzyme.

The following table outlines net product revenuggibographic area (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net product revenue
United State: $ 37571 $ 277,49 $ 249,74t
Europe 139,94( 116,89¢ 108,13¢
Latin America 118,56: 67,33¢ 74,39(
Rest of the worlc 104,20¢ 76,631 64,22¢
Total net product revenu $ 738,41¢ $ 538,36( $ 496,49]

Total revenue generated outside the U.S. was $37illion, $264.2 million and $251.0 million, in theears ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following table outlines non-monetary long-livessets by geographic area (in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Non-monetary lon-lived assets
United State: $ 820,35¢ $ 651,81t $ 574,52
International 104,081 82,13( 80,067
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 924437 $ 733,94t $ 654,58¢

The increase in non-monetary long-lived asset®izZompared to 2013 was primarily attributed tréases in property, plant and
equipment and deferred tax assets. The increasanimonetary long-lived assets in 2013 compare&Di® was attributed to increases in
property, plant and equipment and long-term defeofering costs.

Other Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in October 1996l@@gan operations on March 21, 1997. Our prin@gatutive offices are located at
770 Lindaro Street, San Rafael, California 9490d @ur telephone number is (415) 506-6700. Our dmeyparts on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, proxy statements, currerartepn Form 8-K and amendments to those repdets dir furnished pursuant to Section 13
(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are available tfkeharge at www.bmrn.com as soon as reasonaabtipable after electronically filing such
reports with the SEC. Such reports and other inédion may be obtained by visiting the SEC’s PuBlaference Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, D.C. 20549 or by calling the SEC abD-SEC-0330. Additionally, these reports are abddlat the SEC’s website at
http://www.sec.gov. Information contained in ourbsie is not part of this or any other report thatfile with or furnish to the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our securities involves a highrde@f risk. We operate in a dynamic and rapidlgrajing industry that involves numer:
risks and uncertainties. The risks and uncertasmtescribed below are not the only ones we fatieer risks and uncertainties, including the
that we do not currently consider material, may &npur business. If any of the risks discussedWwedctually occur, our business, financial
condition, operating results or cash flows couldnhaterially adversely affected. This could caugevailue of our securities to decline, and yol
may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

If we fail to obtain or maintain regulatory approval to commercially market and sell our drugs, or ifapproval is delayed, we will be
unable to generate revenue from the sale of thesegducts, our potential for generating positive castilow will be diminished, and the
capital necessary to fund our operations will be ioreased.

We must obtain and maintain regulatory approvah#wket and sell our drug products in the U.S. anjdrisdictions outside of the U.S. In
the U.S., we must obtain FDA approval for each dhay we intend to commercialize. The FDA apprqualcess is typically lengthy and
expensive, and approval is never certain. Prodiistebuted abroad are also subject to governnamilation by international regulatory
authorities. The approval process in the EU andratbuntries can also be lengthy and expensive and
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regulatory approval is also never certain. NaglazyAldurazyme and Kuvan have received regulatopr@aml to be commercially marketed
and sold in the U.S., the EU and other countrigsapse has received regulatory approval to be cermiadly marketed only in the EU.
Vimizim received regulatory approval in the U.S.Fegbruary 14, 2014, in the EU on April 28, 2014Cianada on July 7, 2014 and in Austr.
on December 2, 2014 but has not been approvedyiother jurisdiction and may never receive addaimegulatory approvals for any other
jurisdiction.

As part of the recent reauthorization of the Piipion Drug User Fee Act, new biologics are inclddie a new product review program
intended to enhance FDA-sponsor communicationsad to greater firstycle approval decisions. As part of this prograpplications for ne
biologics are subject to either a 12-month standai@ month priority review period that begins freéine date of application submission.
However, since this is a new product review progaant few products have completed this new reviewegss, the priority review period may
take longer than eight months and the standaréweperiod may take longer than 12 months. Similaithough the EMA has an accelerated
approval process, the timelines mandated by th@atgns are subject to the possibility of substdmtelays.

In addition, the FDA and its international equivakehave substantial discretion over the approraigss for pharmaceutical products. As
such, these regulatory agencies may in the endgree that we have demonstrated the requisite ¢éyebduct safety and efficacy to grant
approval and may require additional data. If wettabbtain regulatory approval for our product dalates, we will be unable to market and
sell those drug products. Because of the risksuaedrtainties in pharmaceutical development, oodpet candidates could take a significantly
longer time to gain regulatory approval than weestr may never gain approval. We also rely orepahdent third-party contract research
organizations (CROs) to file some of our ex-U.S1 ar-EU marketing applications and important aspetthe services performed for us by
the CROs are out of our direct control. If we failadequately manage our CROs, if the CRO eleqgtsidoitize work on our projects below
other projects or if there is any dispute or disiarpin our relationship with our CROs, the filio§ our applications may be delayed.

From time to time during the regulatory approvalgass for our products and our product candidategngage in discussions with the
FDA and comparable international regulatory autiesiregarding the regulatory requirements fordrwrelopment programs. To the extent
appropriate, we accommodate the requests of theategy authorities and, to date, we have genelabn able to reach reasonable
accommodations and resolutions regarding the uyidgrissues. However, we are often unable to deteritne outcome of such deliberations
until they are final. If we are unable to effectivand efficiently resolve and comply with the indges and requests of the FDA and other non-
U.S. regulatory authorities, the approval of owdurct candidates may be delayed and their valuebheagduced.

After any of our products receive regulatory apatpthey remain subject to ongoing regulation, Wwhian impact, among other things
product labeling, manufacturing practices, adversnt reporting, storage, expiration, distributiadyertising and promotion, record keeping
and import and export. If we do not comply with #yplicable regulations, the range of possible tiame includes issuance of warning or
untitled letters or adverse publicity, product tecar seizures, fines, total or partial suspensiohproduction and/or distribution, suspension o
marketing applications, and other enforcement astimcluding injunctions and civil or criminal gecution. The FDA and comparable
international regulatory agencies can withdrawadpct's approval under some circumstances, suttheasilure to comply with regulatory
requirements or unexpected safety issues. FuttieFDA often requires post-marketing testing amdaillance to monitor the effects of
approved products. The FDA and comparable integnatiregulatory agencies may condition approvawfproduct candidates on the
completion of such post-marketing clinical studiElsese post-marketing studies may suggest thaidupt causes undesirable side effects or
may present a risk to the patient. If data we cbliom post-marketing studies suggest that ormuofapproved products may present a risk to
safety, the government authorities could withdrawgroduct approval, suspend production or plaberanarketing restrictions on our
products. If regulatory sanctions are applied oegfulatory approval is delayed or withdrawn, théue of our company and our operating
results will be adversely affected. Additionallye wrill be unable to generate revenue from the afalese products, our potential for
generating positive cash flow will be diminishedldhe capital necessary to fund our operationshwilincreased.

If we fail to obtain or maintain orphan drug exclusvity for some of our products, our competitors maysell products to treat the sam
conditions and our revenues will be reduced.

As part of our business strategy, we intend to ldgveome drugs that may be eligible for FDA andd&phan drug designation. Under the
Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may designate a produetrasrphan drug if it is intended to treat a rasease or condition, defined as a patient
population of fewer than 200,000 in the U.S. Thempany that first obtains FDA approval for a destgdaorphan drug for a given rare disease
receives marketing exclusivity for use of that dfogthe stated condition for a period of sevenrge®rphan drug exclusive marketing rights
may be lost if the FDA later determines that thepuesst for designation was materially defectivef tihé manufacturer is unable to assure
sufficient quantity of the drug. Similar regulatiare available in the EU with a ten-year periochafket exclusivity.

Because the extent and scope of patent proteaimsoime of our drug products is limited, orphangdidesignation is especially important
for our products that are eligible for orphan ddggignation. For eligible drugs, we plan to relytloa exclusivity period
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under the Orphan Drug Act to maintain a competiggsition. If we do not obtain orphan drug exclitgivor our drug products that do not
have broad patent protection, our competitors rhap sell the same drug to treat the same conditidnour revenues will be reduced.

Even though we have obtained orphan drug designédiocertain of our products and product candislared even if we obtain orphan di
designation for our future product candidates, tdute uncertainties associated with developingh@omaceutical products, we may not be
first to obtain marketing approval for any parteubrphan indication, which means that we may itdio orphan drug exclusivity and could
also potentially be blocked from approval until fhiet product’s orphan drug exclusivity period égs. Further, even if we obtain orphan drug
exclusivity for a product, that exclusivity may redfectively protect the product from competitiogchuse different drugs can be approved for
the same condition. Even after an orphan drugpscyged and granted orphan drug exclusivity, the FIaA subsequently approve the same
drug for the same condition if the FDA concludest tine later drug is safer, more effective or makesajor contribution to patient care.
Orphan drug designation neither shortens the dpusnt time or regulatory review time of a drug, gives the drug any advantage in the
regulatory review or approval process.

We may face competition from biological products aproved through an abbreviated regulatory pathway.

Our Naglazyme, Aldurazyme and Vimizim products regulated by the FDA as biologics under the Fedewald, Drug, and Cosmetic Act
(the FDC Act) and the Public Health Service Ace(BPHS Act). Biologics require the submission ofléABand approval by the FDA prior to
being marketed in the U.S. Historically, a biologroduct approved under a BLA was not subject ¢ogibneric drug review and approval
provisions of the FDC Act. However, the PPACA ceeba regulatory pathway under the PHS Act for tl@eviated approval for biological
products that are demonstrated to be “biosimilarimterchangeable” with an FDA-approved biologigabduct. In order to meet the standard
of interchangeability, a sponsor must demonstfaethe biosimilar product can be expected to predhe same clinical result as the referenc
product, and for a product that is administeredeniban once, that the risk of switching betweernréfierence product and biosimilar product is
not greater than the risk of maintaining the pat@nthe reference product. Such biosimilars waeafdrence biological products approved in
the U.S. The law establishes a period of 12 yeldaia exclusivity for reference products, whicbtects the data in the original BLA by
prohibiting sponsors of biosimilars from gaining ARpproval based in part on reference to dataerotiginal BLA. Our products approved
under BLAs, as well as products in development thay be approved under BLAS, could be referencdymts for such biosimilar marketing
applications.

To obtain regulatory approval to market our products, preclinical studies and costly and lengthy preitlical and clinical trials are
required and the results of the studies and trialsrre highly uncertain.

As part of the regulatory approval process we rmastluct, at our own expense, preclinical studiglhénaboratory and clinical trials on
humans for each product candidate. We expect thauof preclinical studies and clinical trialstttfze regulatory authorities will require w
vary depending on the product candidate, the diseasondition the drug is being developed to askleand regulations applicable to the
particular drug. Generally, the number and sizeliofcal trials required for approval increase lthea the expected patient population that |
be treated with a drug. We may need to performiplalpreclinical studies using various doses amchidations before we can begin clinical
trials, which could result in delays in our abilitymarket any of our product candidates. Furtheemeven if we obtain favorable results in
preclinical studies, the results in humans mayidpeificantly different. After we have conducted plieical studies, we must demonstrate that
our drug products are safe and efficacious forigee targeted human patients in order to recedgelatory approval for commercial sale.
Clinical testing is expensive and can take manys/gacomplete, and its outcome is inherently uiager Failure can occur at any time during
the clinical trial process. The results of predalistudies and early clinical trials of our protlcandidates may not be predictive of the results
of later-stage clinical trials, and favorable dfatam interim analyses do not ensure the final itssofl a trial will be favorable. Product
candidates may fail to show the desired safetyedfichcy traits despite having progressed througitlmical studies and initial clinical trials,
or despite having favorable data in connection &iilinterim analysis. A number of companies inditogharmaceutical industry have suffered
significant setbacks in advanced clinical triale doi lack of efficacy or adverse safety profilestwithstanding promising results in earlier
trials. Our future clinical trial results may na¢ buccessful.

Adverse or inconclusive clinical results would stepfrom filing for regulatory approval of our pruoat candidates. Additional factors that
can cause delay or termination of our clinicall¢riaclude:

« slow or insufficient patient enroliment;

- slow recruitment of, and completion of necessastitutional approvals at, clinical sites;
« longer treatment time required to demonstrate &fic

« lack of sufficient supplies of the product candéjat

« adverse medical events or side effects in treadiéms;
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« lack of effectiveness of the product candidate ¢pé@sted; and

« regulatory requests for additional clinical trialspre-clinical studies.

Typically, if a drug product is intended to treathaonic disease, as is the case with some of muatupt candidates, safety and efficacy date
must be gathered over an extended period of tirheghacan range from nine months to three yearsaemNe also rely on independent third-
party CROs to perform most of our clinical studadsl many important aspects of the services perffioreus by the CROs are out of our
direct control. If we fail to adequately manage GROSs, or if there is any dispute or disruptiomin relationship with our CROs, our clinical
trials may be delayed. Moreover, in our regulatarpmissions, we rely on the quality and validitytteeg clinical work performed by third-party
CROs. If any of our CROs’ processes, methodologigssults were determined to het conducted in accordance with current GCF
invalid or inadequate, our own clinical data amslitss and related regulatory approvals could aghetse impacted.

If we continue to incur operating losses for a pedd longer than anticipated, we may be unable to cdimue our operations at planned
levels and be forced to reduce our operations.

Since we began operations in March 1997, we hage bagaged in substantial research and develomndrdperated at a net loss until
2008. Although we were profitable in 2008, 2010 #malthird quarter of 2014, we operated at a rest io 2009, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014.
Based upon our current plan for investments inareteand development for existing and new progravesexpect to operate at a net loss f
least the next 12 months. Our future profitabitigpends on our marketing and selling of Vimizimgayme, Kuvan and Firdapse, the
successful continued commercialization of Alduraeyioy Genzyme, the receipt of regulatory approvauwfproduct candidates, our ability to
successfully manufacture and market any approvegsdeither by ourselves or jointly with otherst spending on our development programs
and the impact of any possible future businessldpueent transactions. The extent of our futuredesand the timing of profitability are higt
uncertain. If we fail to become profitable or ar@hble to sustain profitability on a continuing Isashen we may be unable to continue our
operations at planned levels and be forced to educ operations .

If we fail to comply with manufacturing regulations, our financial results and financial condition wil be adversely affected.

Before we can begin commercial manufacture of eadypcts, regulatory authorities must approve mangedpplications that identify
manufacturing facilities operated by us or our cacttmanufacturers that have passed regulatorgatigm and manufacturing processes that
are acceptable to the regulatory authorities. titemh, our pharmaceutical manufacturing facilitsee continuously subject to inspection by the
FDA and international regulatory authorities, befand after product approval. Our manufacturingifes in the U.S. have been approved by
the FDA, the EC, and health agencies in other c@mstor the manufacture of Aldurazyme and Naglagym addition, our third-party
manufacturersfacilities involved with the manufacture of VimizjiNaglazyme, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapse hase aéen inspected a
approved by various regulatory authorities. Althlowge are not involved in the day-to-day operatiohsur contract manufacturers, we are
ultimately responsible for ensuring that our pradwsre manufactured in accordance with cGMP reiguist The manufacturing facility located
in Shanbally, Cork, Ireland that we purchased ih12Bas not yet been approved by the FDA or the EMianufacture any of our products.
We intend to make a substantial investment in thikelbout of the Shanbally facility in order to mdaature Vimizim and other products. If the
facility is not ultimately approved by the FDA dret EMA to manufacture any of our products, we wilt be able to manufacture Vimizim or
other products at this facility and we may not bkedo meet the anticipated commercial demand forixim which would have an adverse
effect on our financial results.

Due to the complexity of the processes used to faature our products and product candidates, weleaynable to continue to pass or
initially pass federal or international regulatamgpections in a cost-effective manner. For theesesason, any potential third-party
manufacturer of Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan, Aldurazy and Firdapse or our product candidates may &bleimo comply with cGMP
regulations in a cost-effective manner and mayriable to initially or continue to pass a federalmernational regulatory inspection.

If we, or thirdparty manufacturers with whom we contract, are tenabcomply with manufacturing regulations, we niysubject to del:
of approval of our product candidates, warning ritled letters, fines, unanticipated compliancpenses, recall or seizure of our products,
total or partial suspension of production and/doerement actions, including injunctions, and criadior civil prosecution. These possible
sanctions would adversely affect our financial hssand financial condition.

If we fail to obtain the capital necessary to fundbur operations, our financial results and financialcondition will be adversely
affected and we will have to delay or terminate somor all of our product development programs.

As of December 31, 2014, we had cash, cash equigaded short and long-term investments totaling43.1 million and long-term debt
obligations of $790.6 million (undiscountedin January 2015, we paid $620.7 million for 34,%4@, Prosensa Shares,
representing approximately 96.8% of all outstandingsensa Shares, and $38.6 million for the optioaisvested
pursuant to the
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definitive purchase agreement. In February 2015covepleted the Prosensa asset transfer and pai@ B@on to the
remaining Prosensa shareholders. We (through dirett wholly-owned subsidiaries) funded the acigjois with our
available cash balances. We expect to pay up t0.@8X6illion if certain development milestones aftaiaed. In
October 2013, we completed an offering of senitwosdinated convertible notes and received net padsef
approximately $696.4 million, after deducting coragibns, estimated offering expenses payable bydishe purchas
of the related capped calls. We will need caslotonly repay the principal amount of our 0.75%igesubordinated
convertible notes due 2018 and 1.50% senior subatell convertible notes due in 2020 (collectiviig, Notes) but
also the ongoing interest due on the Notes dutieg term. In March 2014, we completed an offend., 500,000
shares of our common stock at a price of $78.45Ipare and received net proceeds of $117.5 milliodanuary 2015,
we completed an offering of 9,775,000 shares ofcounmon stock at a price of $93.25 per share arelwed net
proceeds of approximately $888.2 million. We mayuiee additional financing to fund our future opéras, including
the commercialization of our approved drugs and ¢gmoduct candidates currently under developmegtlimical
studies and clinical trials, and potential licenaed acquisitions. We may be unable to raise amtditifinancing, if
needed, due to a variety of factors, includingfmancial condition, the status of our product peogs, and the general
condition of the financial markets. If we fail taise any necessary additional financing we may badelay or
terminate some or all of our product developmeagpams and our financial condition and operatirsyits will be
adversely affected.

We expect to continue to spend substantial amafrdapital for our operations for the foreseeahbterfe. The amount of capital we will
need depends amany factors, including:

« our ability to successfully market and sell VimiziMaglazyme, Kuvan and Firdapse;

« Genzyme'’s ability to continue to successfully comeraize Aldurazyme;

» the progress and success of our preclinical studidsclinical trials (including studies and the mfacture of materials);
» the timing, number, size and scope of our predinstudies and clinical trials;

« the time and cost necessary to obtain regulatgoyospls and the costs of pasarketing studies which may be requirec
regulatory authorities

» the time and cost necessary to develop commera@alfacturing processes, including quality systeans, to build or
acquire manufacturing capabilitie

« the progress of research programs carried out py us
« our possible achievement of milestones identifiredur purchase agreements with the former stoclknsldf LEAD
Therapeutics, Inc., ZyStor, Huxley Pharmaceutidals,, and Zacharon Pharmaceuticals Inc. thatérigglated milestone

payments

« any changes made to, or new developments in, astirex collaborative, licensing and other commdrm#ationships or
any new collaborative, licensing and other comna¢melationships that we may establish; .

« whether our convertible debt is converted to commstoak in the future.

Moreover, our fixed expenses such as rent, licpagenents, interest expense and other contractoahitments are substantial and may
increase in the future. These fixed expenses nmagase because we may enter into:

« additional licenses and collaborative agreements;
« additional contracts for product manufacturing; and
« additional financing facilities.
We may need to raise additional funds from equitgiabt securities, loans or collaborative agreeminte are unable to satisfy our
liquidity requirements. The sale of additional s#&tes may result in additional dilution to our skiolders. Furthermore, additional financing

may not be available in amounts or on terms satisfa to us or at all. This could result in thealglreduction or termination of our research,
which could harm our business.
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If we are unable to successfully develop and maintamanufacturing processes for our drug products tgproduce sufficient quantities
at acceptable costs, we may be unable to meet derdgor our products and lose potential revenue, haveeduced margins or be forced
to terminate a program.

Due to the complexity of manufacturing our produats may not be able to manufacture drug produatsessfully with a commercially
viable process or at a scale large enough to stigpsir respective commercial markets or at acddptaargins.

The development of commercially viable manufactyifimocesses typically is very difficult to achieasd is often very expensive and may
require extended periods of time. Changes in matwrfiaig processes (including manufacturing cekdipp equipment or facilities may require
us to complete clinical trials to receive regulgtapproval of any manufacturing improvements. Alge,may be required to demonstrate
product comparability between a biological produetde after a manufacturing change and the prodaderbefore implementation of the
change through additional types of analytical amttfional testing or may have to complete additiatinical studies. If we contract for
manufacturing services with an unproven processcontractor is subject to the same uncertainkiigg) standards and regulatory controls, an
may therefore experience difficulty if further pess development is necessary.

Even a developed manufacturing process can enadiiffteulties. Problems may arise during manufaictg for a variety of reasons,
including human error, mechanical breakdowns, pwisl with raw materials and cell banks, malfunctiohisternal information technology
systems, and other events that cannot always vemedl or anticipated. Many of the processes irchidlogical systems, which add
significant complexity, as compared to chemicaltlgnis. We expect that, from time to time, consistdth biotechnology industry
expectations, certain production lots will failgooduce product that meets our quality controlaséeacceptance criteria. To date, our historice
failure rates for all of our product programs, imdihg Naglazyme, Aldurazyme and Vimizim, have besthin our expectations, which are
based on industry norms. If the failure rate insesbsubstantially, we could experience increasstsclost revenue, damage to customer
relations, time and expense investigating the cande depending upon the cause, similar lossesresthect to other lots or products. If
problems are not discovered before the produaléased to the market, recall and product liabddgts may also be incurred.

In order to produce product within our time andtqueameters, we must continue to produce prodithtrmour expected success rate and
yield expectations. Because of the complexity afroanufacturing processes, it may be difficultrapossible for us to determine the caus
any particular lot failure and we must effectivédike corrective action in response to any failara timely manner.

Although we have entered into contractual relatigos with third-party manufacturers to produce dbtve ingredient in Kuvan and
Firdapse, if those manufacturers are unwilling mathle to fulfill their contractual obligations, weay be unable to meet demand for these
products or sell these products at all and we rosg potential revenue. We have contracts for tbdymtion of final product for Kuvan and
Firdapse. We also rely on third-parties for porsiaf the manufacture of Naglazyme and Aldurazyrm#hdse manufacturers are unwilling or
unable to fulfill their contractual obligations saitisfy demand outside of or in excess of the egtital obligations, we may be unable to meet
demand for these products or sell these productt and we may lose potential revenue. Further aihailability of suitable contract
manufacturing capacity at scheduled or optimum sifmsenot certain.

In addition, our manufacturing processes subjett @svariety of federal, state and local laws eeglilations governing the use, generatior
manufacture, storage, handling and disposal ofrdama materials and wastes resulting from their W& may incur significant costs in
complying with these laws and regulations.

If we are unable to effectively address manufantuissues, we may be unable to meet demand fgeroducts and lose potential revenue,
have reduced margins, or be forced to terminat®ogram.
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Our manufacturing facility for Naglazyme, Aldurazyme and Vimizim is located near known earthquake faulzones, and the
occurrence of an earthquake or other catastrophic idaster could cause damage to our facility and equinent, or that of our third-party
manufacturers or single-source suppliers, which cdd materially impair our ability to manufacture Nag lazyme, Aldurazyme and
Vimizim or our third-party manufacturer’s ability t o manufacture Kuvan or Firdapse.

Our Galli Drive facility located in Novato, Califoia is currently our only manufacturing facilityrfaglazyme, Aldurazyme and Vimizim.
It is located in the San Francisco Bay Area neamkmearthquake fault zones and is vulnerable toifsignt damage from earthquakes. We,
third-party manufacturers with whom we contract and single-source suppliers of raw materials, Whinclude many of our critical raw
materials, are also vulnerable to damage from dghpars of disasters, including fires, floods, povesis and similar events. If any disaster were
to occur, or any terrorist or criminal activity cad significant damage to our facilities or thelfées of our third-party manufacturers and
suppliers, our ability to manufacture Naglazymejuxhzyme and Vimizim, or to have Kuvan or Firdapsmufactured, could be seriously, or
potentially completely impaired, and our commeizgtion efforts and revenue could be seriously iingaa The insurance that we carry, the
inventory that we maintain and our risk mitigatjglans may not be adequate to cover our lossedirestriom disasters or other business
interruptions.

Supply interruptions may disrupt our inventory levels and the availability of our products and productcandidates and cause delays
in obtaining regulatory approval for our product candidates, or harm our business by reducing our reveues.

Numerous factors could cause interruptions in thaply of our products and product candidates, wtiolg:

« timing, scheduling and prioritization of productiby our contract manufacturers or a breach of geeements by our
contract manufacturer

« labor interruptions;
« changes in our sources for manufacturing;
« the timing and delivery of shipments;
« our failure to locate and obtain replacement mastufars as needed on a timely basis; and
« conditions affecting the cost and availability afw materials.
Any interruption in the supply of finished productsuld hinder our ability to distribute finishedoplucts to meet commercial demand.

With respect to our product candidates, produatioproduct is necessary to perform clinical triatgl successful registration batches are
necessary to file for approval to commercially ner&nd sell product candidates. Delays in obtainlimgcal material or registration batches
could adversely impact our clinical trials and galegulatory approval for our product candidates.

Because the target patient populations for our prodcts are small, we must achieve significant markeshare and maintain high per-
patient prices for our products to achieve profitahlity.

All of our products target diseases with small gratipopulations. As a result, our per-patient riceist be relatively high in order to
recover our development and manufacturing costsaahibve profitability. For Naglazyme and Vimizinewnust market worldwide to achieve
significant market penetration of the product. didition, because the number of potential patienthé disease populations are small, it is not
only important to find patients who begin therapyathieve significant market penetration of thedpiad, but we also need to be able to
maintain these patients on therapy for an extepeeidd of time. Due to the expected costs of treatnfor our products for genetic diseases,
we may be unable to maintain or obtain sufficiearket share at a price high enough to justify godpct development efforts and
manufacturing expenses.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of coveragand reimbursement for our drug products by third-party payers, the sales of our
drugs would be adversely affected or there may beoncommercially viable markets for our products.

The course of treatment for patients using our petslis expensive. We expect patients to needhtierdtfor extended periods, and for sc
products throughout the lifetimes of the patiek{® expect that most families of patients will netdapable of paying for this treatment
themselves. There will be no commercially viablekeafor our products without coverage and reimborent from third-party payers.
Additionally, even if there is a commercially viabharket, if the level of reimbursement is below expectations, our revenue and gross
margins will be adversely affected.
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Third-party payers, such as government or privatdth care insurers, carefully review and increglgichallenge the prices charged for
drugs. Reimbursement rates from private comparaes depending on the third-party payer, the inscegsian and other factors.
Reimbursement systems in international markets sigpyificantly by country and by region, and reimdmment approvals must be obtained or
a country-by-country basis.

Reimbursement in the EU and many other territariest be negotiated on a country-by-country basisimmany countries the product
cannot be commercially launched until reimburseneapproved. The timing to complete the negotiapicocess in each country is highly
uncertain, and in some countries we expect thatit exceed 12 months. Even after a price is negdti@ountries frequently request or req
adjustments to the price and other concessionstiorer

For our future products, we will not know what tieémbursement rates will be until we are ready toket the product and we actually
negotiate the rates. If we are unable to obtaificseiitly high reimbursement rates for our produtii®y may not be commercially viable or
future revenues and gross margins may be adveaffelsted.

A significant portion of our international sales are made based on special access programs, and changethese programs could
adversely affect our product sales and revenue ihése countries.

We make a significant portion of our internatiosales of Naglazyme through special access or “ngragent” programs, which do not
require full product approval. We expect to alstagt these programs for Vimizim. The specificstloé programs vary from country to count
Generally, special approval must be obtained fohgmatient. The approval normally requires an @gpithn or a lawsuit accompanied by
evidence of medical need. Generally, the apprdealsach patient must be renewed from time to time.

These programs are not well defined in some camund are subject to changes in requirementsumaihfy levels. Any change to these
programs could adversely affect our ability to selt products in those countries and delay sdléiselprograms are not funded by the
respective government, there could be insufficients to pay for all patients. Further, governménatge in the past undertaken and may in th
future undertake, unofficial measures to limit gnaases of our products, including initially denyitmyerage for purchasers, delaying orders
denying or taking excessively long to approve austalearance. Any such actions could materiallpygler reduce our revenues from such
countries.

Without the special access programs, we would t@edek full product approval to commercially marked sell our products. This can be
an expensive and time-consuming process and mggcsutur products to additional price controls. 8&se the number of patients is so small
in some countries, it may not be economically fielasio seek and maintain a full product approvadi therefore the sales in such country
would be permanently reduced or eliminated. Foofihese reasons, if the special access progitamsve are currently using are eliminate:
restricted, our revenues could be adversely affecte

If we fail to compete successfully with respect tproduct sales, we may be unable to generate suffcit sales to recover our expenses
related to the development of a product program oto justify continued marketing of a product and our revenue could be adversely
affected.

Our competitors may develop, manufacture and mamkatucts that are more effective or less expertbiae ours. They may also obtain
regulatory approvals for their products faster thancan obtain them (including those products withhan drug designation) or commercialize
their products before we do. If we do not compeieeessfully, our revenue would be adversely afteced we may be unable to generate
sufficient sales to recover our expenses relatédet@evelopment of a product program or to justdptinued marketing of a product.

Government price controls or other changes in priaig regulation could restrict the amount that we areable to charge for our
current and future products, which would adverselyaffect our revenue and results of operations.

We expect that coverage and reimbursement maydpeasingly restricted both in the U.S. and inteomatlly. The escalating cost of health
care has led to increased pressure on the hea#thnohustry to reduce costs. Governmental and f@ithard-party payers have proposed health
care reforms and cost reductions. A number of fdderd state proposals to control the cost of heate, including the cost of drug treatme
have been made in the U.S. In some internationgtets the government controls the pricing, whiah affect the profitability of drugs.
Current government regulations and possible fueggslation regarding health care may affect cogerand reimbursement for medical
treatment by third-party payers, which may rendergroducts not commercially viable or may adversdfect our future revenues and gross
margins.

International operations are also generally sulifeeixtensive price and market regulations, antethee many proposals for additional cos
containment measures, including proposals thatdvdinectly or indirectly impose additional pricentmols or mandatory price cuts or reduce
the value of our intellectual property portfolios part of these cost containment measures, sonmérigsuhave imposed or threatened to im
revenue caps limiting the annual volume of saleaglazyme. To the extent that these caps arefisignily below actual demand, our future
revenues and gross margins may be adversely affecte
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We cannot predict the extent to which our busimeag be affected by these or other potential fulegéslative or regulatory developments.
However, future price controls or other changegriaing regulation could restrict the amount that ave able to charge for our current and
future products, which would adversely affect areanue and results of operations.

Government health care reform could increase our cxis, and would adversely affect our revenue and relis of operations.

Our industry is highly regulated and changes inhaay adversely impact our business, operationmanéial results. The PPACA is a
sweeping measure intended to expand healthcareagmrvithin the U.S., primarily through the impasitof health insurance mandates on
employers and individuals and expansion of the lgediprogram.

Several provisions of the law, which have varyiffgaive dates, may affect us and will likely inase certain of our costs. For example
Medicaid rebate rate was increased and the voldmebated drugs has been expanded to include logaréds in Medicaid managed care
organizations. Among other things, the PPACA algmaded the 340B drug discount program (excludipdpan drugs), including the creation
of new penalties for non-compliance; included a Sfi86ount on brand name drugs for Medicare Paraifigipants in the coverage gap, or
“donut hole,” and imposed a new fee on certain rfacturers and importers of branded prescriptiomsii@xcluding orphan drugs under
certain conditions). The law also revised the dedin of “average manufacturer price” for reportipgrposes, which could increase the amour
of the Medicaid drug rebates paid to states.

In addition, other legislative changes have beep@sed and adopted since the PPACA was enactege Thanges include aggregate
reductions in Medicare payments to providers of@¥fiscal year, which went into effect on AprilZ2013 and will remain in effect through
2024 unless additional Congressional action isrtakeJanuary 2013, President Obama signed intaHawAmerican Taxpayer Relief Act of
2012, which, among other things, further reducediitbre payments to several types of providers aogkased the statute of limitations pel
for the government to recover overpayments to jieng from three to five years. These new laws reaylt in additional reductions in
Medicare and other healthcare funding, which cdwglde a material adverse effect on our customersaamuardingly, our financial operations.

We anticipate that the PPACA, as well as othertheate reform measures that may be adopted irutbesf may result in more rigorous
coverage criteria and an additional downward pressn the reimbursement our customers may receiveur products. Any reduction in
reimbursement from Medicare and other governmesgnams may result in a similar reduction in payradram private payers. The
implementation of cost containment measures orrdgtbalthcare reforms may prevent us from being tthigenerate revenue, attain
profitability or commercialize our products.

We face credit risks from customers outside of th&).S. that may adversely affect our results of opetns.

Our product sales to government-owned or suppaustbmers in various countries outside of the dr8 subject to significant payment
delays due to government funding and reimburseimeatices. This has resulted and may continuesdtren an increase in days sales
outstanding due to the average length of timewleahave accounts receivable outstanding. If sigaifi changes were to occur in the
reimbursement practices of these governmentsgmiérnment funding becomes unavailable, we mayeatble to collect on amounts due to
us from these customers and our results of opasatimuld be adversely affected.

If we are found in violation of federal or state “faud and abuse” laws, we may be required to pay agmalty or be suspended from
participation in federal or state health care progiams, which may adversely affect our business, finaral condition and results of
operation.

We are subject to various federal and state health fraud and abuse laws, including anti-kickbaeks, false claims laws and laws relatec
to ensuring compliance. The federal health cargnam anti-kickback statute makes it illegal for gmyson, including a pharmaceutical
company, to knowingly and willfully offer, solicipay or receive any remuneration, directly or iadily, in exchange for or to induce the
referral of business, including the purchase, oodgrescription of a particular drug, for whichypgent may be made under federal health car
programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid. Underddevernment regulations, certain arrangememtsai@ harbors, are deemed not to
violate the federal anti-kickback statute. Howelee, exemptions and safe harbors are drawn narr@nty practices that involve remuneration
not intended to induce prescribing, purchasesarmenendations may be subject to scrutiny if theyaioqualify for an exemption or safe
harbor. Our practices may not in all cases meetfdhe criteria for safe harbor protection frontidickback liability, although we seek to
comply with these safe harbors. Violations of tha-&ickback statute are punishable by imprisonmenminal fines, civil monetary penalties
and exclusion from participation in federal headttecprograms.
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Federal and state false claims laws prohibit amggrefrom knowingly presenting, or causing to besented, a false claim for payment to
the federal government, or knowingly making, orsgiag to be made, a false statement to have adkdse paid. In addition, certain marketing
practices, including off-label promotion, may aigolate false claims laws. Under the Health InsaeaRortability and Accountability Act of
1996, we also are prohibited from knowingly andfwily executing a scheme to defraud any healtle cemefit program, including private
payers, or knowingly and willfully falsifying, coraling or covering up a material fact or making amaterially false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement in connection with the delivery of or payt for health care benefits, items or servicasc8ons under these federal and state laws
may include civil monetary penalties, exclusioraaghanufacturer’'s products from reimbursement ugdegernment programs, criminal fines
and imprisonment.

Many states have adopted laws similar to the fé@detikickback statute, some of which apply to referfgbatients for health care servic
reimbursed by any source, not just governmentatizay

Substantial new provisions affecting complianceehalso been adopted, which may require us to madifyjbusiness practices with health
care practitioners. The PPACA, among other thinggires drug manufacturers to collect and repdormation on payments or transfers of
value to physicians and teaching hospitals, as agelhvestment and ownership interests held byipiays and their immediate family
members during the preceding calendar year. Faidusebmit required information may result in civibnetary penalties. Manufacturers were
required to begin collecting required informatianAugust 1, 2013 and the CMS made public the repladita in a searchable form on
September 30, 2014. Manufacturers are requireddmi reports to CMS by the 90day of each subsequent calendar year.

In addition, there has been a recent trend of as®é state regulation of payments made to physic@ertain states mandate
implementation of compliance programs, complianié the Office of Inspector General Compliance Pang Guidance for Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers and the PhRMA Code on Interactiorik Wealthcare Professionals, and/or the trackirgraporting of gifts, compensation and
other remuneration to physicians. The shifting cliamge environment and the need to implement systeracomply with multiple jurisdictior
with different compliance and/or reporting requiests increases the possibility that a pharmacdutieaaufacturer may violate one or more of
the requirements.

While we believe we have structured our businesmgements to comply with these laws, becauseedbitbadth of these laws, the
narrowness of available statutory and regulatogepiions and the increased focus by law enforceagecies in enforcing such laws, it is
possible that some of our business activities cbeldubject to challenge under one or more of fawh. In addition, recent health care reform
legislation has strengthened, these laws. For ebartye PPACA, among other things, amends the imeguirement of the federal anti-
kickback and criminal healthcare fraud statutepefson or entity no longer needs to have actualledge of this statute or specific intent to
violate it. Moreover, the PPACA provides that tlewvgrnment may assert that a claim including itemseovices resulting from a violation of
the federal anti-kickback statute constitutes sefalr fraudulent claim for purposes of the Falser@$ Act. If we are found in violation of one
of these laws, we may be subject to criminal, @vihdministrative sanctions, including debarmsuagpension or exclusion from participation
in federal or state health care programs any o€lwhould adversely affect our business, finanaaldition and results of operation.
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We conduct a significant amount of our sales and @pations outside of the U.S., which subjects us twditional business risks that
could adversely affect our revenue and results ofperations.

A significant portion of the sales of Aldurazymedddaglazyme and all of the sales of Firdapse anergged from countries other than the
U.S. Additionally, we have operations in severatdpean countries, Brazil, other Latin American doigs, Turkey and other Asian countries.
We expect that we will continue to expand our in&tional operations in the future. Internationatigtions inherently subject us to a numb
risks and uncertainties, including:

« changes in international regulatory and compliaecgiirements that could restrict our ability to mfatture, market and
sell our products

« political and economic instability;

« diminished protection of intellectual property ionse countries outside of the U.S.;
« trade protection measures and import or exponég requirements;

. difficulty in staffing and managing internationglerations;

. differing labor regulations and business practices

« potentially negative consequences from changesiim@rpretations of tax laws;

« changes in international medical reimbursemencpasiand programs;

« financial risks such as longer payment cyclesjaliffy collecting accounts receivable and exposaructuations in
foreign currency exchange rates;

« regulatory and comp liance risks that relate tonta@ning accurate information and control over saed distributors’
and service providers’ activities that may fallhiit the purview of the FCPA

Any of these factors may, individually or as a grpblave a material adverse effect on our busine$sesults of operations.

As we continue to expand our existing internatiayrations, we may encounter new risks. For exanag we focus on building our
international sales and distribution networks iamggographic regions, we must continue to devedtgtionships with qualified local
distributors and trading companies. If we are metessful in developing and maintaining these imahips, we may not be able to grow sales
in these geographic regions. These or other simks could adversely affect our revenue and fabiiity.

Our international operations pose currency risks, vinich may adversely affect our operating results andiet income.

A significant and growing portion of our revenuesl@&arnings, as well as our substantial internatioat assets, are exposed to chang
foreign exchange rates. As we operate in multiptei§n currencies, including the euro, the Braaili@al, the U.K. pound, the Canadian dollar
the Swiss Franc, the Japanese yen and severalootiiencies, changes in those currencies relatitieet U.S. dollar will impact our revenues
and expenses. If the U.S. dollar were to weakemaganother currency, assuming all other varial#esained constant, our revenues would
increase, having a positive impact on earnings,camaverall expenses would increase, having ativeganpact on earnings. Conversely, if
the U.S. dollar were to strengthen against anatheency, assuming all other variables remainedtzor, our revenues would decrease, he
a negative impact on earnings, and our overall esg®would decrease, having a positive impact orirggs. In addition, because our financial
statements are reported in U.S. dollars, changesriency exchange rates between the U.S. doltho#rer currencies have had, and will
continue to have, an impact on our results of ders. Therefore, significant changes in foreignteange rates can impact our results and ou
financial guidance.

From time to time, we may implement currency hedgesnded to reduce our exposure to changes iigfo@irrency exchange rates.
However, our hedging strategies may not be suaglessfd any of our unhedged foreign exchange expsswill continue to be subject to
market fluctuations. Moreover, when we do implenmantency hedges, we only hedge our net exposutaedifference between our reven
in a currency and the offsetting expenses in thakeacy. Since we do not generally hedge the podfaour revenues that has offsetting
expenses in that currency, our revenues can bieydarty affected by changes in exchange ratess@hisks could cause a material adverse
effect on our business, financial position and Itesaf operations and could cause the market vaflweir common stock to decline.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary technobgy, we may not be able to compete as effectively.

Where appropriate, we seek patent protection fdaiteaspects of our technology. Patent proteatiay not be available for some of the
products we are developing. If we must spend sicanit time and money protecting or enforcing ouepts, designing around patents held by
others or licensing, potentially for large feestgpas or other proprietary rights held by others, lmusiness and financial prospects may be
harmed.
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The patent positions of biopharmaceutical prodamtscomplex and uncertain. The scope and extgrdteht protection for some of our
products and product candidates are particulartgnain because key information on some of ouryebdandidates has existed in the public
domain for many years. The composition and gersetipiences of animal and/or human versions of NaglezAldurazyme and many of our
product candidates have been published and arvbdlto be in the public domain. The chemical stmecof 6R-BH4 (the active ingredient in
Kuvan) and 3,49AP (the active ingredient in Firdapse) have akserbpublished. Publication of this information npagvent us from obtainir
or enforcing patents relating to our products armdipct candidates, including without limitation coosition-of-matter patents, which are
generally believed to offer the strongest pateatqution.

We own or have licensed patents and patent apiplitatelated to Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan, Aldurasy and Firdapse. However, th
patents and patent applications do not ensurertiteqtion of our intellectual property for a numleéreasons, including without limitation the
following:

« With respect to pending patent applications, unéagbuntil actually issued, the protective valu¢ghalse applications is
impossible to determine. We do not know whetherpaient applications will result in issued pate

« Competitors may interfere with our patent process variety of ways. Competitors may claim thaythvented the
claimed invention prior to us or that they fileeithapplication for a patent on a claimed inventiafore we did.
Competitors may also claim that we are infringimgtioeir patents and therefore we cannot practicéeminology.
Competitors may also contest our patents by shothiegpatent examiner or a court that the inventias not original, was
not novel or was obvious, for example. In litigati@ competitor could claim that our issued patargsnot valid or are
unenforceable for a number of reasons. If a caymees, we would not be able to enforce that pa®ethave no
meaningful experience with competitors interfenmith or challenging the validity or enforceability our patents or pate
applications

« Enforcing patents is expensive and may absorbfsignt time of our management. Management woulddpess time an
resources on developing products, which could emeeour operating expenses and delay product pnsgk&/e may not
have the financial ability to sustain a patentingement action, or it may not be financially rezedole to do sc

« Receipt of a patent may not provide much, if amgcpcal protection. For example, if we receiveatept with a narrow
scope, then it will be easier for competitors tsige products that do not infringe on our pa

« The Leahy-Smith America Invents Act of 2011, whieformed certain patent laws in the U.S., may eredditional
uncertainty. Among the significant changes areaviriig from a “first-to-invent” system to a “firspfile” system, and the
implementation of new procedures that permit cortgostto challenge our patents in the USPTO aftang

It is also unclear whether our trade secrets agguately protected. Our employees, consultantsmiractors may unintentionally or
willfully disclose trade secrets to competitorsf@ning a claim that someone else illegally obtdiaad is using our trade secrets, as with
patent litigation, is expensive and time consumieguires significant resources and the outconn@psedictable. In addition, courts outside of
the U.S. are sometimes less willing to protectdragcrets. Furthermore, our competitors may indigrgtty develop equivalent knowledge,
methods and know-how, in which case we would nadtide to enforce our trade secret rights agairedt sampetitors.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual prapethird parties could develop competing produstisich could adversely affect our
revenue and financial results generally.
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Competitors and other third parties may have develped intellectual property that could limit our ability to market and
commercialize our products and product candidatesf approved.

Similar to us, competitors continually seek intefiieal property protection for their technology. 8al of our development programs, suck
as talazoparib, reveglucosidase alfa, BMN 111 aMdNE270, focus on therapeutic areas that have beesubject of extensive research and
development by third parties for many years. Dudhéoamount of intellectual property in our fielttechnology, we cannot be certain that we
do not infringe intellectual property rights of cpatitors or that we will not infringe intellectuptoperty rights of competitors granted or
created in the future. For example, if a patend@obelieves our product infringes its patent,ghtent holder may sue us even if we have
received patent protection for our technologyolingone else claims we infringe its intellectualpgamy, we would face a number of issues,
including the following:

» Defending a lawsuit takes significant executiveotgses and can be very expensive.
» If a court decides that our product infringes a petitor’s intellectual property, we may have to gaypstantial damages.

« With respect to patents, in addition to requirirsgt@ pay substantial damages, a court may pralmbitom making, selling,
offering to sell, importing or using our productiess the patent holder licenses the patent tohes patent holder is not
required to grant us a license. If a license islabke, it may not be available on commerciallyseable terms. For
example, we may have to pay substantial royaltiggant cross licenses to our patents and patgiicagons.

« We may need to redesign our product so it doeinfrinnge the intellectual property rights of others

« Redesigning our product so it does not infringeitiellectual property rights of competitors may he possible or could
require substantial funds and tin

We may also support and collaborate in researcbwziad by government organizations, hospitals,amities or other educational
institutions. These research partners may be ungitb grant us any exclusive rights to technologproducts derived from these
collaborations.

If we do not obtain required licenses or rights,aseald encounter delays in our product developra#otts while we attempt to design
around other patents or may be prohibited from n@kiising, importing, offering to sell or sellingpducts requiring these licenses or rights.
There is also a risk that disputes may arise #setoights to technology or products developedoiteboration with other parties. If we are not
able to resolve such disputes and obtain the leeeosrights we need, we may not be able to devaioparket our products.

If our Manufacturing, Marketing and Sales Agreementwith Genzyme were terminated, we could be preventefrom continuing to
commercialize Aldurazyme or our ability to successflly commercialize Aldurazyme would be delayed or ginished.

Either party may terminate the Manufacturing, Mairkggand Sales Agreement (the MMS Agreement) batvi@enzyme and us related to
Aldurazyme for specified reasons, including if tiber party is in material breach of the MMS Agree) has experienced a change of cor
as such term is defined in the MMS Agreement, erdeclared bankruptcy and also is in breach oMRES Agreement. Although we are not
currently in breach of the MMS Agreement, thera sk that either party could breach the MMS Agreat in the future. Either party may ¢
terminate the MMS Agreement upon one year priotteminotice for any reason.

If the MMS Agreement is terminated for breach, bheaching party will transfer its interest in thieQ_to the non-breaching party, and the
non-breaching party will pay a specified buyout amdor the breaching partyinterest in Aldurazyme and in the LLC. If we #re breachin
party, we would lose our rights to Aldurazyme anel telated intellectual property and regulatoryrapals. If the MMS Agreement is
terminated without cause, the non-terminating paxtyld have the option, exercisable for one yeabuy out the terminating pargy/interest i
Aldurazyme and in the LLC at a specified buyout antolf such option is not exercised, all rightsdidurazyme will be sold and the LLC will
be dissolved. In the event of termination of thgdut option without exercise by the nterminating party as described above, all right @ited
to Aldurazyme is to be sold to the highest biddeih the proceeds to be split between Genzyme arid accordance with our percentage
interest in the LLC.
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If the MMS Agreement is terminated by either pdrécause the other party declared bankruptcy, th@reating party would be obligated
to buy out the other party and would obtain alhtggto Aldurazyme exclusively. If the MMS Agreeménterminated by a party because the
other party experienced a change of control, thraiteating party shall notify the other party, tHéecee, of its intent to buy out the offeree’s
interest in Aldurazyme and the LLC for a stated anet by the terminating party at its discretibhe offeree must then either accept this
offer or agree to buy the terminating party’s ie#rin Aldurazyme and the LLC on those same tefins.party who buys out the other party
would then have exclusive worldwide rights to Aldeyme. The Amended and Restated Collaboration Aggaebetween us and Genzyme
will automatically terminate upon the effective elaf the termination of the MMS Agreement and mafy/be terminated independently from
the MMS Agreement.

If we were obligated or given the option to buy @#nzyme’s interest in Aldurazyme and the LLC, Hreteby gain exclusive rights to
Aldurazyme, we may not have sufficient funds tosdaand we may not be able to obtain the finanendptso. If we fail to buy out Genzyme’s
interest, we may be held in breach of the agreemmahimay lose any claim to the rights to Aldurazyand the related intellectual property and
regulatory approvals. We would then effectivelydoehibited from developing and commercializing Aldzyme. If this happened, not only
would our product revenues decrease, but our sivare would also decline.

Based on our strategic alliance with Merck Seronajnless Merck Serono “opts in” to the pegvaliase prgram, we will not realize any
cost sharing for the development expenses, developnt milestones, or royalties for ex-U.S. sales.

In May 2005, we entered into an agreement with IM&erono for the further development and commaeraiidbn of Kuvan (and any oth
product containing 6R-BH4) and pegvaliase for PRUrsuant to that agreement, we received developmigggtones on Kuvan and receive
royalties on sales by Merck Serono. Additionally may be entitled to development milestones andltieg related to pegvaliase. However,
Merck Serono has “opted out” of the pegvaliase igraent program. Unless and until it elects toiopit is not obligated to pay any of the
milestones related to the program or to reimbusst®uany of the development costs. Additionallyerethough Merck Serono has opted out o
the pegvaliase development program, we do not aayeight to commercialize pegvaliase outside efthS. and Japan or to grant anyone
such rights.

Merck Serono may elect to opt in at any time. IfrbkeSerono opts in to the pegvaliase developmeargram before the unblinding of the
first Phase 3 trial for pegvaliase, it must pay 7@Rhe Phase 3 costs incurred prior to the optrid the $7,000,000 Phase 3 initiation
milestone. If it opts in after unblinding of thedi Phase 3 trial for pegvaliase, it must pay 1@@%e Phase 3 costs incurred prior to the opt-in
and the $7,000,000 Phase 3 initiation milestonelithahally, in all cases after it opts in to thegpaliase development program, Merck Serono
would be obligated to pay one half of future depetent costs under the agreement and any furthestoiies due under the agreement. If
Merck Serono does not opt in, it will not have thgit to use any of the clinical or other indepemtiedeveloped data.

We cannot determine when or if Merck Serono will iopto the pegvaliase development program. If Me3erono does not opt in, we will
not receive any milestones under the agreemenwitichere be any sales outside of the U.S. or dagenerating revenue from royalties or
otherwise.

If we fail to compete successfully with respect tacquisitions, joint ventures or other collaborationopportunities, we may be limited
in our ability to develop new products and to contiue to expand our product pipeline.

Our competitors compete with us to attract orgditra for acquisitions, joint ventures, licensirgagagements or other collaborations. To
date, several of our product programs have beemrachthrough acquisitions, such as reveglucosiddaeand talazoparib and several of our
product programs have been developed through lingms collaborative arrangements, such as Naglazydurazyme, Kuvan and Firdapse.
These collaborations include licensing proprietaghnology from, and other relationships with, agait research institutions. Our future
success will depend, in part, on our ability tonify additional opportunities and to successf@hter into partnering or acquisition agreement
for those opportunities. If our competitors suctdisenter into partnering arrangements or liceageeements with academic research
institutions, we will then be precluded from purgyithose specific opportunities. Since each ofdloggportunities is unique, we may not be
able to find a substitute. Several pharmaceutiedlzotechnology companies have already establigiedselves in the field of genetic
diseases. These companies have already begun mangel/elopment programs, some of which may taiipetases that we are also targeting
and have already entered into partnering and lingresrangements with academic research institstimducing the pool of available
opportunities.

Universities and public and private research instins also compete with us. While these orgaronatprimarily have educational or be
research objectives, they may develop proprieeehiiology and acquire patents that we may neethéodevelopment of our product
candidates. We will attempt to license this prajamng technology, if available. These licenses matyte available to us on acceptable terms, i
at all. If we are unable to compete successfulthwéspect to acquisitions, joint venture and otludlaboration opportunities, we may be
limited in our ability to develop new products aondcontinue to expand our product pipeline.
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If generic manufacturers use litigation and regulabry means to obtain approval for generic versionsfdKuvan, our revenue and
results of operations would be adversely affected.

The Drug Price Competition and Patent Term Restoraict of 1984, known as the Hatch-Waxman Actnpiés the FDA to approve
ANDAs for generic versions of branded drugs. Werréd this process as the ANDA process. The ANDécpss permits competitor
companies to obtain marketing approval for a drith the same active ingredient as a branded duggddes not generally require the conduct
and submission of clinical efficacy studies for gemeric product. In place of such clinical studaas ANDA applicant usually needs only to
submit data demonstrating that its product is hibeaent to the branded product. Pursuant to thehd#/axman Act, companies were
permitted to file ANDA applications for proposedngeic versions of Kuvan (sapropterin hydrochlorideany time after December 2011.

BioMarin owns several patents that cover Kuvanr@aterin dihydrochloride), and we have listed thpagents in conjunction with that
product in the Orange Book. The Hatch-Waxman Agtires an ANDA applicant seeking FDA approval efpitoposed generic product prior
to the expiration of our Orange Bodtikted patents to certify that the applicant bedgthat our patents are invalid or will not beiimded by th:
manufacture, use or sale of the drug for whichaghglication has been submitted (a paragraph I\fication) and notify us of such
certification (a paragraph IV notice). Upon recaipt paragraph IV notice, the Hatch-Waxman Aatvadl us, with proper basis, to bring an
action for patent infringement against the ANDAfjlasking that the proposed generic product nafopeoved until after our patents expire. If
we commence a lawsuit within 45 days from receffithe paragraph IV notice, the Hatch-Waxman Actvdes a 30-month stay, during which
time the FDA cannot finally approve the generigiplication. If the litigation is resolved in favof the ANDA applicant during the 30-month
stay period, the stay is lifted and the FDA's rewigf the application may be completed. The discpvieial and appeals process in such a
lawsuit is costly, time consuming, and may resuljéneric competition if the ANDA applicant pregaiRegardless of any litigation results,
generic versions of Kuvan (sapropterin dihydroddiey would be prohibited until the expiration opban drug exclusivity in June 2015,
including pediatric exclusivity, at the earlieste\Wave also received three-year Hatch-Waxman axitiufor a New Patient Population for
Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) that expire©ictober 2017, including pediatric exclusivity. Bhdepending on the proposed labeling
generic product, generic versions of Kuvan (sammptdihydrochloride) may be prohibited until Octol2017, though it is possible that an
ANDA applicant could propose to carve out inforroatin the Kuvan labeling protected by the New Pditiropulation exclusivity and obtain
approval earlier.

We have received a paragraph IV notice letter,dd@etober 3, 2014, from DRL, notifying us that DRés filed an ANDA seeking
approval of a proposed generic version Kuvan (gapra dihydrochloride) 100 mg oral tablets prioithe expiration of our Orange Book-
listed patents. On November 17, 2014, we, togetliterMerck, filed a lawsuit against DRL in the Ugit States District Court for the District
New Jersey alleging patent infringement for ouep# relating to KuvarOn January 16, 2015, we, together with Merck, faadAmended
Complaint requesting a declaratory judgment that DRs no legitimate basis to trigger the ANDA pregealleging that DRL did not have a
proper ANDA because, upon information and beliedid not submit proper bioequivalence data isupport of its purported ANDA. We also
have received a paragraph IV notice letter, daddidry 22, 2015, from Par, notifying us that Pa filad an ANDA seeking approval of a
proposed generic version of Kuvan (sapropterindiibghloride) 100 mg oral tablets prior to the eapon of our patents listed in the Orange
Book.

The filing of DRL’s and Par’s purported ANDAs insq@ect to Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) cduddre an adverse impact on our
stock price, and litigation to enforce our patastiikely to cost a substantial amount and regsigaificant management attention. If the pat
covering Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) argduse are not upheld in litigation, or if DRL andRar is found to not infringe our asserted
patents, the resulting generic competition follagvthe expiration of regulatory exclusivity wouldvesa material adverse effect on our revenue
and results of operations.

If we do not achieve our projected development gogiin the timeframes we announce and expect, the camrcialization of our
products may be delayed and the credibility of oumanagement may be adversely affected and, as a résour stock price may decline.

For planning purposes, we estimate the timing efatcomplishment of various scientific, clinicagulatory and other product
development goals, which we sometimes refer toikestones. These milestones may include the comemeait or completion of scientific
studies and clinical trials and the submissioregiutatory filings. From time to time, we publiclprzounce the expected timing of some of tl
milestones. All of these milestones are based\ariaty of assumptions. The actual timing of theskestones can vary dramatically comparec
to our estimates, in many cases for reasons begwndontrol. If we do not meet these milestonegudsicly announced, the commercializat
of our products may be delayed and the credibiffitgyur management may be adversely affected aralresult, our stock price may decline.
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We depend upon our key personnel and our ability tattract and retain employees.

Our future growth and success will depend in lgrge on our continued ability to attract, retailmmage and motivate our employees. The
loss of the services of any member of our seniaragament or the inability to hire or retain expeced management personnel could
adversely affect our ability to execute our bussnglsin and harm our operating results.

Because of the specialized scientific and manalgeaiare of our business, we rely heavily on odilitstio attract and retain qualified
scientific, technical and managerial personnepdrticular, the loss of one or more of our seni@agitive officers could be detrimental to us if
we do not have an adequate succession plan oréaweot recruit suitable replacements in a timedyiner. While our senior executive offici
are parties to employment agreements with us, thgseements do not guarantee that they will remaiployed with us in the future. In
addition, in many cases, these agreements do stoicteour senior executive officers’ ability torapete with us after their employment is
terminated. The competition for qualified personinghe pharmaceutical field is intense, and theielimited pool of qualified potential
employees to recruit. Due to this intense competjtive may be unable to continue to attract aradrreualified personnel necessary for the
development of our business or to recruit suitabpdacement personnel. If we are unsuccessful imemruitment and retention efforts, our
business may be harmed.

Our success depends on our ability to manage our guwth.

Product candidates that we are currently developingay acquire in the future may be intended fdrgmt populations that are
significantly larger than any of MPS |, MPS VI, PKd LEMS. In order to continue development and rating of these products, if approved,
we will need to significantly expand our operatiohe manage expansion effectively, we need to nastio develop and improve our researckt
and development capabilities, manufacturing andityuzapacities, sales and marketing capabilitie&ncial and administrative systems and
standard processes for global operations. Our, $iaéincial resources, systems, procedures or @isninay be inadequate to support our
operations and may increase our exposure to regylahd corruption risks and our management mayniaele to manage successfully future
market opportunities or our relationships with oasérs and other third-parties.

Changes in methods of treatment of disease coulddece demand for our products and adversely affectavenues.

Even if our drug products are approved, if doctdest a course of treatment which does not inctudedrug products, this decision would
reduce demand for our drug products and adversfegtaevenues. For example, if gene therapy besomidely used as a treatment of genetic
diseases, the use of enzyme replacement theragy asuNaglazyme, Vimizim, and Aldurazyme in MPSdies, could be greatly reduced.
Changes in treatment method can be caused byttheuction of other companieptoducts or the development of new technologiesuagica
procedures which may not directly compete with phtg which have the effect of changing how docti@side to treat a disease.

If product liability lawsuits are successfully brought against us, we may incur substantial liabilitis.

We are exposed to the potential product liabilisks inherent in the testing, manufacturing andketing of human pharmaceuticals. We
currently maintain insurance against product ligblawsuits for the commercial sale of our produahd for the clinical trials of our product
candidates. Pharmaceutical companies must balbaamst of insurance with the level of coverageetam estimates of potential liability.
Historically, the potential liability associatedttviproduct liability lawsuits for pharmaceuticabgucts has been unpredictable. Although we
believe that our current insurance is a reasoregilmate of our potential liability and represemtsommercially reasonable balancing of the
level of coverage as compared to the cost of therance, we may be subject to claims in conneeatitimour clinical trials and commercial use
of Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapor our clinical trials for pegvaliase, reveglsidase alfa, talazoparib, BMN 111,
cerliponase alfa or BMN 270 for which our insuragogerage may not be adequate and we may be uioad®id significant liability if any
product liability lawsuit is brought against uswé are the subject of a successful product ligiiliaim that exceeds the limits of any insura
coverage we obtain, we may incur substantial clsattygt would adversely affect our earnings andiredbhe commitment of capital resources
that might otherwise be available for the developamd commercialization of our product programs.

We rely significantly on information technology andany failure, inadequacy, interruption or security lapse of that technology,
including any cybersecurity incidents, could harm ar ability to operate our business effectively.

We rely significantly on our information technologpd manufacturing infrastructure to effectivelymage and maintain our inventory ¢
internal reports, to manufacture and ship prodiectaistomers and to timely invoice them. Any fadluinadequacy or interruption of that
infrastructure or security lapse of that technoldggluding cybersecurity incidents could harm ability to operate our business effectively.
Our ability to manage and maintain our inventory arternal reports, to manufacture and ship oudpets to customers and timely invoice
them depends significantly on our enterprise resmpianning, production management and other irdtion systems. Cybersecurity attacks ir
particular are evolving and include, but are nwitied to, malicious software,
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attempts to gain unauthorized access to data &ed electronic security breaches that could leatisuptions in systems, misappropriation of
our confidential or otherwise protected informatard corruption of data. Cybersecurity incidensténg in the failure of our enterprise
resource planning system, production managemesther systems to operate effectively or to integyeith other systems, or a breach in
security or other unauthorized access of thesemgstmay affect our ability to manage and maintaininventory and internal reports, and
result in delays in product fulfilment and reduadticiency of our operations. A breach in secyrityauthorized access resulting in
misappropriation, theft, or sabotage with respedur proprietary and confidential information, linding research or clinical data, could
require significant capital investments to remesled could adversely affect our business, findcoiadition and results of operations.

Our business is affected by macroeconomic conditisn

Various macroeconomic factors could adversely affec business and the results of our operatioddiaancial condition, including
changes in inflation, interest rates and foreigmemcy exchange rates and overall economic comditamd uncertainties, including those
resulting from the current and future conditionshia global financial markets. For instance, ifatibn or other factors were to significantly
increase our business costs, it may not be featsitjass through price increases on to our cus®mer to the process by which health care
providers are reimbursed for our products by theegament. Interest rates, the liquidity of the d@redhrkets and the volatility of the capital
markets could also affect the value of our investim@nd our ability to liquidate our investment®ider to fund our operations. We purchase
or enter into a variety of financial instrumentsldransactions, including investments in commengégder, the extension of credit to
corporations, institutions and governments and imgdgpntracts. If any of the issuers or countetiparto these instruments were to default on
their obligations, it could materially reduce thedue of the transaction and adversely affect osh ¢lows.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 approximd®lpf our net product revenues were from ltaly,i§pRortugal, Greece and Russia.
Approximately 8% of our total accounts receivaldeofDecember 31, 2014 related to such countridsaanhave included an allowance for
doubtful accounts for certain accounts receivatdenfGreece. If the financial conditions of thesarttties continues to decline, a substantial
portion of the receivables may be uncollectablectvivould mean we would have to provide for additiballowances for doubtful accounts or
cease selling products in these countries, eithethah could adversely affect our results of opierss. Additionally, if one or more of these
countries were unable to purchase our productsremenue would be adversely affected. We alscoselproducts in other countries that face
economic crises and local currency devaluatiorh@gh we have historically collected receivablesficustomers in those countries, suste
weakness or further deterioration of the local eroies and currencies may cause our customers $e ttmuntries to be unable to pay for our
products with the same negative effect on our djzers.

Interest rates and the ability to access crediketarcould also adversely affect the ability of oustomers/distributors to purchase, pay for
and effectively distribute our products. Similarllgese macroeconomic factors could affect thetglufi our contract manufacturers, saledrce
or single-source suppliers to remain in businesstierwise manufacture or supply product. Failyreuy of them to remain a going concern
could affect our ability to manufacture products.

Recent and future regulatory actions and other evas may adversely affect the trading price and liqudity of our senior subordinated
convertible notes.

We expect that many investors in, and potentiatipasers of, the Notes will employ, or seek to emphoconvertible arbitrage strategy w
respect to the Notes. Investors would typically lenpent such a strategy by selling short the comstock underlying the Notes and
dynamically adjusting their short position whilentimuing to hold the Notes. Investors may also enpgnt this type of strategy by entering |
swaps on our common stock in lieu of or in additioishort selling the common stock.

The SEC and other regulatory and selfulatory authorities have implemented variouss@nd taken certain actions, and may in the fi
adopt additional rules and take other actions, et impact those engaging in short selling agtivivolving equity securities (including our
common stock). Such rules and actions include Rdleof SEC Regulation SHO, the adoption by the iéied Industry Regulatory Authority,
Inc. of a “Limit Up-Limit Down” program, the imposon of market-wide circuit breakers that halt fradof securities for certain periods
following specific market declines, and the implertaion of certain regulatory reforms required bg Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act of 2010. Any governmentakgulatory action that restricts the ability n¥éstors in, or potential purchasers of, the
Notes to effect short sales of our common stoaknter into swaps on our common stock could advweeféct the trading price and t
liquidity of the Notes.

In addition, if investors and potential purchassrsking to employ a convertible arbitrage straggyunable to borrow or enter into swaps
on our common stock, in each case on commerciediganable terms, the trading price and liquiditthefNotes may be adversely affected.
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Risks Related to our Acquisition of Prosensa Holdig N.V.
If we do not successfully integrate Prosensa intaio business operations, our business could be adwgely affected.

We will need to successfully integrate the operegiof Prosensa with our business operations. latiegrthe operations of Prosensa with
that of our own will be a complex and time-consugnimocess. Prior to the acquisition, Prosensa tgeiadependently, with its own business,
corporate culture, locations, employees and syst&here may be substantial difficulties, costs deldys involved in any integration of the
business of Prosensa with that of our own. Theseinwdude:

« distracting management from day-to-day operations;

« potential incompatibility of corporate cultures;

- an inability to achieve synergies as planned;

« changes in the combined business due to poteiigtitures or other requirements imposed by arditregulators;
« costs and delays in implementing common systemgerakdures; and

« increased difficulties in managing our businesstduie addition of international locations.

Many of these risks may be accentuated becausudjurity of Prosensa’s operations, employees astbawers are located outside of the
U.S. Any one or all of these factors may incregserating costs or lower anticipated financial perfance. Many of these factors are also
outside of our control. Achieving anticipated sygies and the potential benefits underlying our@aador the acquisition will depend on
successful integration of the businesses. Theréttuintegrate the business operations of Prosarsaessfully would have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

The actual impact of the acquisition on our capitaktructure and financial results may be worse thaithe assumptions we have used.

Even if the integration is successful, we have nttain assumptions relating to the impact oncaital structure and financial results in
respect of the acquisition. These assumptionserédatumerous matters, including:

« our expected capital structure after the acquisijtio
« the amount of goodwill and intangibles that wikué from the acquisition;

« certain other purchase accounting adjustmentsabaxpect will be recorded in our financial statetsén connection with
the acquisition

« acquisition costs, including restructuring charged transaction costs; and

- other financial and strategic risks of the acqigisit

Irrespective of our assumptions, we may incur highan expected operating, transaction and integrabsts, and we may encounter
general economic and business conditions that adleaffect the combined company following the asijon. If one or more of these
assumptions are incorrect, it could have an adwffeet on our business and operating resultstlagerceived benefits from the acquisition
may not be realized.

We may have exposure to additional tax liabilitiess a result of the acquisition.

As a multinational corporation, we are subjectnimoime taxes as well as non-income based taxestlirthe U.S. and various foreign
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is requireddatermining our worldwide provision for income taxand other tax liabilities. Changes in
laws or tax rulings may have a significantly adeerapact on our effective tax rate. Proposals leycilrrent U.S. administration for
fundamental U.S. international tax reform, inclugimithout limitation provisions that would limit¢hability of U.S. multinationals to defer
U.S. taxes on foreign income, if enacted, couldehagignificant adverse impact on our effectivertar following the acquisition.
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We are subject to a variety of additional risks as result of the acquisition that may negatively impct our operations.

As a result of the acquisition, we are subjectdw iand additional risks associated with the busiaesl operations of Prosensa and its
global operations. The additional risks we may x@osed to include but are not limited to the follog:

. tariffs and trade barriers;
- regulations related to customs and import/expotters (including sanctions);
« longer payment cycles;

« taxissues, such as tax law changes and varidgtidag laws as compared to the jurisdictions inckhive already operate;
« operating under regulations in new jurisdictioriate] to obtaining eligibility for government oriyate payer
reimbursement for our products at the wholesaksirketvel;

« cultural and language differences in the new jueiszhs in which we will operate;
« complying with additional employment regulationdtie new jurisdictions in which we will operate;dan
 risks related to crimes, strikes, riots, civil didtances, terrorist attacks and wars in new gebgraplocations.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to adetuaddress these additional risks. If we are lenbdo so, our operations might suf

Additionally, although prior to the acquisition wead international operations, as a result of thisttion, we operate on an expanded
global basis with additional offices or activitiesEurope. We will face increased exposure to riskerent in conducting business
internationally, including compliance with interiatal laws and regulations and laws and regulatidrie U.S. and various other countries
that apply to our international operations. Compiwith these laws and regulations may increaseast of doing business in foreign
jurisdictions. These laws and regulations inclualed relating to the pharmaceutical industry, daiteapy requirements, labor relations lay
tax laws, anteompetition regulations, import and trade resmwitsi, export requirements, U.S. laws such as theAl-GfRer U.S. federal statut
and regulations, including those established byOfiiee of Foreign Assets Control, and local lawsieh prohibit payments to governmental
officials. Given the high level of complexity ofdbe laws, however, there is a risk that some gamdsmay be inadvertently breached by us
example through fraudulent or negligent behaviandividual employees, our failure to comply witbrtain formal documentation
requirements, or otherwise. Violations of thesesland regulations could result in fines, crimirecions against us, our officers or our
employees, requirements to obtain export licensessation of business activities in sanctioned tm#) implementation of compliance
programs, and prohibitions on the conduct of owitess. Any such violations could include prohdsig on our ability to offer our products in
one or more countries and could materially damageeputation, our brand, our international expam&fforts, our ability to attract and retain
employees, our business and our operating re€ulitssuccess depends, in part, on our ability tipate these risks and manage these
challenges. These factors or any combination cfaliactors may adversely affect our revenue oowerall financial performance.

We will incur significant transaction, integration and restructuring costs in connection with the acqisition.

We have incurred significant transaction coststeel@o the acquisition. In addition, the combinedibess will incur integration and
restructuring costs following the completion of tegjuisition as we integrate Prosensa’s businegtie®ur businesses. Although we expect
that the realization of benefits and efficiencielated to the integration of the businesses magebftiver time these transaction and integration
and restructuring costs, no assurances can be timaiohis net benefit will be achieved in the neam, or at all, which could adversely affect
our financial condition and results of operations.

Prosensa depends heavily on the success of drisegmr. Drisapersen is still in clinical developmentf we are unable to
commercialize drisapersen or experience significardelays in doing so, our business, financial conditn and results of operations will be
materially adversely affected.

Our ability to generate product revenues from Risaevill depend heavily on the successful develapirand eventual commercialization
of drisapersen.

In September 2013, Prosensa announced that the Blwdisical trial of drisapersen did not meetgtsnary endpoint. Although we belie
that the collective data from Prosensa’s varioussBl2 and Phase 3 clinical trials of drisapersetyding retrospective and subgroup analyse:
provide strong support for concluding that drisaparshowed clinically meaningful improvements gecebo in these trials, we cannot be
sure that Prosensa’s data will be sufficient tis§athe EMA or the FDA. We may need to conductiiddal clinical trials at significant delay
and cost or abandon development of drisapersegediter.
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Even if we receive regulatory approval for andalée to commercialize drisapersen, our successhwifubject to the following risks:
- we may not achieve market acceptance of drisapéngsehysicians, patients and third-party payers;
« drisapersen may not have an acceptable safetyefoliowing approval;

« we may not be able to manufacture drisapersenritpiance with requirements of the EMA, the FDA anaiilar
regulatory agencies in commercial quantities sigffitto meet market demar

« we may not achieve sufficient pricing for drisagerso compensate for future development and comalieation costs
and to recoup our cost to acquire Prose

- we may not compete successfully with any alterestiherapies for DMD; and

« we may not successfully enforce and defend ouliétteial property rights and claims.

The occurrence of any of these events could méteadversely affect our business, financial coiotitand results of operations.

Our conclusions regarding the efficacy of drisapermsn are based on retrospective analyses of the resubf Prosensa’s clinical trials,
and these analyses may be considered less relialnidicators of efficacy than pre-specified analyses.

After determining that it did not achieve the prinafficacy endpoint in the completed Phase 3 céihirial of drisapersen, Prosensa
performed retrospective and subgroup analysesedPttase 3 clinical trial and prior Phase 2 clinidals of drisapersen that we believe pro\
strong support for concluding that drisapersen gbelinically meaningful improvements over placébthese trials. Although Prosensa
believed that these additional analyses were wiataa retrospective analysis performed after mdbig trial results can result in the
introduction of bias if the analysis is inappropelg tailored or influenced by knowledge of thealahd actual results. Because of these
limitations, regulatory authorities typically gigeeatest weight to results from pre-specified asedyand less weight to results from post-hoc,
retrospective analyses. Thus, this increaseskbiHood that we will have to conduct an additiodl@ical trial or trials of drisapersen before
we can apply for marketing approval.

Because Prosensa was developing product candidafesthe treatment of diseases in which there is life clinical experience and, in
some cases, using new endpoints or methodologid®re is more risk that the outcome of clinical trids for Prosensa’s product
candidates will not be favorable.

There is currently no approved disease-modifyirggapy for DMD. In addition, there has been limitgstorical clinical trial experience
generally for the development of drugs to treatuhderlying cause of DMD. As a result, the desigd eonduct of clinical trials for this
disease, particularly for drugs to address the tlyidg cause of this disease, are subject to irs@eaisks. In particular, regulatory authoritie
the U.S. and the EU have not issued definitive giwig as to how to measure and achieve efficacy.

In the last several years, the 6MWT has been usedvieral trials of product candidates for patievitt DMD, and is accepted by U.S.
and European regulators to be an appropriate pyim#come measure for DMD trials. Because of thetéid clinical experience in this
indication however, regulators have not yet estaklil what difference in the 6MWD is required talbenonstrated in a clinical trial of a DMD
therapy in order to signify a clinically meaningfelult and/or obtain regulatory approvals. Assallteit is not clear what is required in term
6MWD or other end points to obtain regulatory apptdor drisapersen and our other product candgateguired from Prosensa. If we are
required to conduct additional clinical trials ofsépersen, the design of such trials could beestitp such uncertainties.

We could also face similar challenges in desigmiigjcal trials and obtaining regulatory approvai future product candidates, including
any that we may develop for myotonic dystrophy ontihgton’s disease because there is also limitgdrical clinical trial experience for the
development of drugs to treat these diseases.
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Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities
Our stock price may be volatile, and an investmenin our stock could suffer a decline in value.

Our valuation and stock price since the beginnihigaaling after our initial public offering have dh@o meaningful relationship to current
or historical earnings, asset values, book valuaamy other criteria based on conventional measafrs®ck value. The market price of our
common stock will fluctuate due to factors inclugtin

« product sales and profitability of Vimizim, Naglamg, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapse;
« manufacture, supply or distribution of Vimizim, Nagyme, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapse;
« progress of our integration of Prosensa;

« progress of our product candidates through thelaémy process and our ability to successfully careralize any such
products that receive regulatory appro

« results of clinical trials, announcements of tedbgi@al innovations or new products by us or ounpetitors;
« results relating to our lawsuit against DRL to prttour patents relating to Kuvan;

« government regulatory action affecting our prodrarididates or our competitors’ drug products irnlibe U.S. and non-
U.S. countries

« developments or disputes concerning patent or j@@py rights;

« general market conditions and fluctuations foraheerging growth and pharmaceutical market sectors;
« economic conditions in the U.S. or abroad;

« broad market fluctuations in the U.S., the EU oofiner parts of the world;

« actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults; and

« changes in company assessments or financial esrbgtsecurities analysts.

In the past, following periods of large price deeb in the public market price of a company’s séiegr securities class action litigation
has often been initiated against that companygaiitbn of this type could result in substantialts@nd diversion of management’s attention
and resources, which would hurt our business. Alweese determination in litigation could also sabjes to significant liabilities. In addition,
our stock price can be materially adversely affédtg factors beyond our control, such as disrugtiorglobal financial markets or negative
trends in the biotechnology sector of the econaemgn if our business is operating well.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents ad under Delaware law may make an acquisition of yavhich may be
beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult.

We are incorporated in Delaware. Certain anti-takeprovisions of Delaware law and our charter doents as currently in effect may
make a change in control of our company more diffjeven if a change in control would be benefitoathe stockholders. Our anti-takeover
provisions include provisions in our certificatein€orporation providing that stockholders’ meetingay only be called by our Board of
Directors and provisions in our bylaws providingttthe stockholders may not take action by writtensent and requiring that stockholders
that desire to nominate any person for electiooutoBoard of Directors or to make any proposal wéthpect to business to be conducted at a
meeting of our stockholders be submitted in appab@iform to our Secretary within a specified périd time in advance of any such meeting.
Additionally, our Board of Directors has the auihoto issue shares of preferred stock and to detex the terms of those shares of stock
without any further action by our stockholders. Tights of holders of our common stock are subjeche rights of the holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued. The issuanpeetdrred stock could make it more difficult fothérd-party to acquire a majority of our
outstanding voting stock. Delaware law also prdkiborporations from engaging in a business contibimavith any holders of 15% or more
their capital stock until the holder has held ttoek for three years unless, among other possés)ibur Board of Directors approves the
transaction. Our Board of Directors may use theegigions to prevent changes in the managementanitol of our company. Also, under
applicable Delaware law, our Board of Directors radgpt additional anti-takeover measures in theréut
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment:

None.

Item 2. Properties
The following table contains information about current significant owned and leased propertiesf @ecember 31, 2014:

Approximate Lease
Location Square Feel Use Expiration Date
Several locations in Novato, Califorr 228,00 Office, laboratory and warehou 201¢-2020
San Rafael facility, San Rafael, Califori 120,40C Corporate headquarters, offi NA: owned propert
Clinical and commercial manufacturing
Galli Drive facility, Novato, Californie 91,50C and laboraton NA: owned propert
Technical operations, finance,
Bel Marin Keys facility, Novato, Californi 83,90C administration, and laborato NA: owned propert
Digital Drive facility, Novato, Californie 45,000 Office and laborator NA: owned propert
Leveroni Drive facility, Novato, Californi 38,400 Warehoust NA: owned propert
Dublin, Ireland 9,10C Office 2024
Shanbally facility, Cork, Irelan 142,00C Manufacturing NA: owned propert

Our administrative office space and plans to dgveldditional space are expected to be adequatbedoreseeable future. In addition to
the above, we also maintain small offices in aetgrof locations around the world. We believe thathe extent required, we will be able to
lease or buy additional facilities at commercialgsonable rates. We plan to use contract manuifagtwhen appropriate to provide product
for both clinical and commercial requirements ustith time as we believe it prudent to developtaatdil in-house clinical and/or commercial
manufacturing capacity.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Paragraph IV Notice Letter from Dr. Rec's Laboratories

As previously disclosed, we have received a papmgbd notice letter, dated October 3, 2014, fromLDRotifying us that DRL has filed
an ANDA seeking approval of a proposed genericigarsf Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) 100 nrgldablets prior to the expiration of
our patents listed in the FDA’s Orange Book.

On November 17, 2014, we, together with Merckdfiéelawsuit against DRL in the United States Dist@ourt for the District of New
Jersey alleging patent infringement for our patesiating to Kuvan.

On January 16, 2015, we, together with Merck, fa@dAmended Complaint requesting a declaratorymetg that DRL has no
legitimate basis to trigger the ANDA process, dtigghat DRL did not have a proper ANDA becauserumformation and belief, it did not
submit proper bioequivalence data in support ofitported ANDA.

Paragraph IV Notice Letter from Par Pharmaceuti

We have received a paragraph IV notice letter,ddaddauary 22, 2015, from Par, notifying us thathRer filed an ANDA seeking
approval of a proposed generic version of Kuvanrh@Qoral tablets prior to the expiration of ourgyds listed in the FDA's Orange Book.

Declaratory Judgment Actic
On January 16, 2015, we filed a lawsuit in the EchiStates District Court for the Southern DistoitNew York, seeking a declaratory
judgment that we are under no legal obligationeib@ otherwise provide samples of Kuvan (sapropteihydrochloride) to DRL. DRL seel

such samples to conduct bioequivalence testingppart of its proposed generic Kuvan (sapropteitiydrochloride) product.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock is listed under the symbol “BMRMI’'the NASDAQ Global Select Market. The followirabte sets forth the range
of high and low quarterly sales prices for our casnrstock for the periods noted, as reported by NAQD

Prices

Year Period High Low

2014 Fourth Quarte $ 96.3¢ $ 65.91
2014 Third Quarter  $ 73.3t $ 55.3€
2014 Second Quarte $ 704z $ 55.04
2014 First Quarte! $ 8425 % 64.61
2013 Fourth Quarte $ 76.0z $ 58.6%
2013 Third Quarter  $ 80.67 $ 56.31
2013 Second Quarte $ 71.5€¢ $ 53.5¢
2013 First Quartel $ 62.9¢ $ 49.71

On February 13, 2015, the last reported sale jpricilhe NASDAQ Global Select Market for our commtwock was $100.79. We have
never paid any cash dividends on our common stodkage do not anticipate paying cash dividends énftiieseeable future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any unregistered securities dutiregthree years ended December 31, 2014.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not make any purchases of our common stodkg the year ended December 31, 2014.

Holders
As of February 13, 2015, there were 53 holdergobrd of 159,135,697 outstanding shares of our comstock. Additionally, on such

date, options to acquire 11.2 million shares ofemmmon stock were outstanding.
Equity Compensation Plans

Number of securities
remaining for future

Number of securities to Weighted average issuance under equity

be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans

of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

@ (b) (©
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 13,416,98. $ 31.41 7,069,55!
Equity compensation plans
not approved by any security
holders 460,88¢ $ 34.6¢€ 1,866,19°

Total 13,877,86 8,935,75:

2012 Inducement Plan

On May 8, 2012, the Board of Directors approved2®&2 Inducement Plan (the 2012 Inducement Plamghaprovides for grants of up
to 750,000 share-based awards to new employedsding grants of restricted stock units (RSUs) grahts of options to purchase common
stock at a price equal to the fair market valusuafh shares on the date of grant. The awards bstastlially similar to those granted under the
Company’s 2006 Share Incentive Plan as amendedeatated on March 22, 2010 (as further amendedshiaee Incentive Plan). The 2012
Inducement Plan expired in March 2013.
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2014 Inducement Plan

On December 17 2014, the Compensation CommittéeedBoard of Directors approved the BioMarin Phareudical Inc. 2014
Inducement Plan (the 2014 Inducement Plan), whiokiges for grants of up to 1.7 million share-baaaérds to new employees, including
grants of RSUs and grants of options to purchasan stock at a price equal to the fair marketealfisuch shares on the date of grant. The
awards are substantially similar to those grantatkuthe Share Incentive Plan and the 2012 InduceRian. The 2014 Inducement Plan
expires on the date of the Company’s 2015 annuatingeof stockholders.

Performance Graph

The following is not deemed “filed” with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission and is not to be purated by reference into any
filing we make under the Securities Act of 193%rasnded, whether made before or after the datedfiend irrespective of any gene
incorporation by reference language in such filing.

The following graph shows the value of an investhw#i$100 on December 31, 2009 in BioMarin commimrtls, the NASDAQ
Composite Index (U.S.) and the NASDAQ Biotechnolbtggex. All values assume reinvestment of the pretdue of dividends paid by
companies included in these indices and are caéxlies of December 31 of each year. Our commok sdcaded on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market and is a component of both the NASDZapnposite Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnology IndEixe comparisons shown in
the graph are based upon historical data and wéoahat the stock price performance shown ingteph is not indicative of, nor intended to
forecast, the potential future performance of dacls

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL

RETURN"®
Amaong BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc., the NASDACQ Composite Index,

SE00 - andthe NASDAQ Biotechnology Index
5500 -
5400 -
$300 -
$200 -
5100

50 -
—&— BioMarin Phamaceutical Inc. —a—-NASDAQ Composite

---2r--- NASDAG Biotechnology

* $100 invested on December 31, 2009 in stock dex) including reinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal Year Ending December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
BioMarin Pharmaceutical Ini $ 100.0C $ 143.17 $ 182.7¢ $ 261.5¢ $ 374.0C $ 480.6(
NASDAQ Composite Inde 100.0¢ 117.61 118.7( 139.0(¢ 196.8: 223.7¢
NASDAQ Biotechnology Inde: 100.0¢ 106.7: 122.4( 166.72 286.5¢ 379.71
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Dat

The information set forth below for the five yearsdled December 31, 2014 is not necessarily ingiati results of future operations,
and should be read in conjunction with Item 7, Mgamaents Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations and 1
Consolidated Financial Statements and related tbégsto included in Item 8 of this Annual Reparnteorm 10-K to fully understand factors
that may affect the comparability of the informatiresented below:

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except for per shardata)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated statements of operations data:
REVENUES:
Net product revenue $ 738,41¢ $ 538,36( $ 496,497 $ 437,641 $ 369,70!
Collaborative agreement revent 1,592 3,91¢ 1,95¢ 468 682
Royalty, license and other revent 11,032 6,207 2,271 3,243 5,884

Total revenue 751,04( 548,48¢ 500,72 441,35¢ 376,26
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost of sale: 129,76¢ 95,74: 91,83( 84,02: 70,28¢
Research and developmt 461,54: 354,78( 302,21¢ 214,37 147,30¢
Selling, general and administrati 302,15¢ 235,35¢ 198,17: 175,42 151,72
Intangible asset amortization and

contingent consideratic 17,96¢ 18,61¢ 18,717 1,42¢ 6,40¢€
Gain on sale of intangible as: (67,500 — — —

Total operating expens 843,93! 704,49: 610,93¢ 475,24¢ 375,72
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (92,891) (156,007 (110,215 (33,890 544
Equity in the loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LL (877) (1,149 (1,227) (2,42¢) (2,997
Interest incomt 5,937 3,08: 2,584 2,934 4,112
Interest expens (36,642) (10,447%) (7,639 (8,409 (10,81¢)
Debt conversion expen: (674) (12,96%) — (1,89€) (13,72¢)
Net gain from sale of investmer — — — — 902
Other income (expens 279 982 (1,787) 60 489
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (124,86%) (176,509 (118,27¢) (43,627) (21,490
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 9,101 (150) (3,93)) 10,20¢ (227,309
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ (133969 $ (176,35) $ (114,34) $ (53,8360 $ 205,81¢
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE, BASIC $ (0.92) $ (1.28) $ (095 $ (048 $ 2.0C
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE, DILUTED $ (0.92) $ (1.28) $ (095 $ (048 $ 1.73
Weighted average common shares outstanding, 146,34¢ 137,75t 120,271 112,12: 103,09:
Weighted average common shares outstanding, di 146,34¢ 137,75t 120,27 112,12 125,67«

December 31
(in thousands)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated balance sheet data:
Cash, cash equivalents and investm $1,043,04t $1,052,42: $ 563,79¢ $ 289,477 $ 402,28:
Total current asse 1,425,62! 1,137,41¢ 743,431 469,80: 504,26(
Total asset 2,490,45: 2,244,06! 1,568,34 1,268,55¢ 1,226,10t
Long-term convertible senior not 657,97¢ 655,56¢ 324,85¢ 348,32¢ 377,521
Total stockholder equity 1,527,89: 1,341,04: 1,015,76: 773,04¢ 717,255
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You should read the following tables presentingunaudited quarterly results of operations in coafion with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes contairsesvBkere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We hanepared this unaudited information
on the same basis as our audited Consolidated ¢taiéBtatements. Our quarterly operating resulteHauctuated in the past and may continu
to do so in the future as a result of a numbenofdrs, including, but not limited to, the timingdanature of research and development
activities.

Three Months Ended
(In thousands, except per share data, unauditec

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2014:
Total revenue $ 15155 $ 191,787 $ 176,847 $ 230,85¢
Net income (loss (38,115 (33,509 7,445 (69,797
Net income (loss) per share, ba (0.26) (0.23 0.05 (0.47)
Net income (loss) per share, dilut (0.27) (0.23) 0.05 (0.47)
2013:
Total revenue $ 12792¢ $ 136,81( $ 136,874 $ 146,87
Net loss (39,810 (21,539 (53,020 (61,990
Net loss per share, bas (0.31) (0.15) (0.38) (0.43
Net loss per share, dilutt (0.32) (0.16) (0.38) (0.49)
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following Management'’s Discussion and Analysi§inancial Condition and Results of Operatioie D&A) is intended to help
the reader understand our results of operationdiaadcial condition. The MD&A is provided as a glgment to, and should be read in
conjunction with, our audited Consolidated FinahSiamtements and the accompanying notes to thealidated Financial Statements and o
disclosures included in this Annual Report on FA&GK (including the disclosures undeRisk Factors’ in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K ). Our Consolidated Financtat&nents have been pre pared in accordance withdénerally accepted accounting
principles and are presented in U.S. dollars.

Overview

We develop and commercialize innovative biopharraticals for serious diseases and medical conditMfesselect product candidates
for diseases and conditions that represent a ggnifunmet medical need, have well-understoodbiphnd provide an opportunity to be first-
to-market or offer a significant benefit over ekigtproducts.

Our product portfolio is comprised of five approya@ducts and multiple clinical and pre-clinicabguct candidates. Our approved
products are Vimizim (elosulfase alpha), Naglazygedsulfase), Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloriddgjurazyme (laronidase) and Firdapse
(ami fampridine phosphate).

Business Highlight

During 2014 and January 2015, we continued to ackvanr product pipeline. We made significant pregrén our Phase 3 clinical
studies for pegvaliase (PEG PAL), reveglucosiddfse(BMN 701) and talazoparib (BMN 673). The conddion of our internal research
programs, acquisition and partnerships will allawta continue develop and commercialize innovatiepharmaceuticals for serious diseases
and medical conditions. Below is a summary of @went key accomplishments:

. Received U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDAJ &uropean Medicines Agency (EMA) approval of Vimiza treatment
for mucopolysaccharidosis Type IVA or Morquio Symhe Type A, a lysosomal storage disort

« Announced preliminary data from ongoing Phase VatRI study of cerliponase alfa (BMN 190) for ttneatment of late
infantile neuronal ceroid lipofuscinosis (CLN2)lyaomal storage disorder primarily affecting thaibr

« Announced the selection of BMN 270, an AAV VIl wet, a Factor VIII gene therapy drug developmemidédate, for the
treatment of hemophilia A. We expect to file anastigational new drug application (IND) or equivléor BMN 270 in the
first quarter of 2015

. Continued to advance the Phase 3 trial which ispEm-label, 2:1 randomized, parallel, two-arm stafitalazoparib, an orally
available poly-ADP ribose polymerase inhibitor foe treatment of patients with certain cancergoaspared to the protocol-
specified physicians’ choice of chemotherapy imgere BRCA (gBRCA) mutated locally advanced andfmatastatic breast
cancer patients who have received no more tharptieo chemotherapy regimens for metastatic diseéA&eexpect to complete
the enrolment of this Phase 3 trial in the secaalfidf 2015;

. Dosed first patient in Phase 2/3 INSPIRE trial wakieglucosidase alfa, an enzyme replacement théoaPompe Disease, a
glycogen storage disorde

. Received orphan drug designation for BMN 250, eehéusion of alpha-N-acetyglucosaminidase (NAGIwith a peptide
derived from insulin-like growth factor 2 (IGF2prfthe treatment of Sanfilippo B syndrome, or Muglgpaccharidosis type
[1IB (MPS 11IB). We expect to file an investigatiahnew drug application (IND) or equivalent for BM2$0 in mic-2015;

. Completed dosing of three dose cohorts in the Phasel of BMN 111, a peptide therapeutic for theatment of
achondroplasia, the leading cause of dwarfis

. Continued to advance the Phase 3 clinical triatlierdevelopment of pegvaliase, an enzyme substitthierapy for the
treatment of phenylketonuria (PKU). We expect fooré results from the trial in the first quarteraff16; anc
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Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations— (Continued)

. On January 15, 2015, we closed the initial offepegiod related to our offer to purchase all of dhéinary shares (the Prosensa
Shares) of Prosensa Holding N.V, a public limitedbility company organized under the laws of thehddands (Prosensa), and
purchased 93.4% of the Prosensa Shares and imelgdainched a subsequent offering period thatregpdn January 29,
2015. As of the expiration of the subsequent affgperiod we paid approximately $620.7 million 84,970,514 Prosensa
Shares, representing approximately 96.8% of albtitstanding Prosensa Shares. Additionally, we ppffoximately $38.6
million for the options that vested pursuant to dieéinitive purchase agreement. On February 1252@& completed the asset
transfer and paid an additional $20.8 million te temaining Prosensa sharehold

Outlook 2015

In 2015, we will continue to focus on our key ofigrg objectives which include continued progressibour product pipeline and
continued uptake of our commercial products. Framsaarch and development (R&D) perspective, wecwiitinue to invest in our various
ongoing clinical studies, which support both ouisérg products and pipeline of new drug candidafés expect to move forward on a num
of late-stage clinical studies for new product ddatkes and plan to file marketing applicationsvarious therapeutic areas.

From a commercial perspective, we will continuéadd-out our commercial organization to suppod tommercialization of Vimizim.

We continue to monitor conditions in the macroecoitoenvironment that couldffect our ability to achieve our goals, such asnges il
the reimbursement and payer landscape, a worsehgpnomic conditions in certain key markets, ipafarly in Europe, patent expirations of
competitive products and the launch of generic agtitgrs, government pricing pressures internatigraatd the potential volatility in foreign
currency exchange rates. We will adjust our busipescesses, as appropriate, to attempt to mitthate risks to our business.

We expect that our product pipeline investmentsexphnding commercial infrastructure will enableagxecute on our 2015 operating
objectives.

2014 Financial Highlights

Key components of our results of operations inclidefollowing (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Total net product revenu $ 738.4 $ 538.4 $ 496.5
Cost of sale: 129.¢ 95.7 91.8
Research & Development (R&D) exper 461.5 354.¢ 302.2
Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expe 302.2 235.4 198.2
Net loss (134.0) (176.4) (124.9)
Stoclk-based compensation expel 86.4 64.4 48.C

See “Results of Operations” below for a discussibtihe detailed components and analysis of the atsabove.
Net product revenues were as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Vimizim $ 773 $ 01 $ —
Naglazyme 3344 271.2 257.C
Kuvan 203.C 167.4 143.1
Aldurazyme 105.€ 83.6 82.2
Firdapse 18.1 16.1 14.2
Total net product revenui $ 7384 $ 538.4 $ 496.5

Cost of sales includes raw materials, personnefarility and other costs associated with manufaetuVimizim, Naglazyme and
Aldurazyme at our production facility in Novato, l@@rnia. Cost of sales also includes third-partgmafacturing costs for the production of the

active ingredient in Kuvan and Firdapse and thisdypproduction costs related to final formulateomd packaging services for all products anc
cost of royalties payable to third-parties for@tbducts.
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Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations— (Continued)

R&D expense includes costs associated with thearelkend development of product candidates andrpaskteting research
commitments related to our approved products. Thests primarily include preclinical and clinicaligdies, personnel and raw materials costs
associated with manufacturing product candidateslity control and assurance, research and devaopfacilities and regulatory costs.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expepsmarily includes expenses associated with themeruialization of approved
products and general and administrative costspgpat our operations. These expenses include: ptodarketing and sales operations
personnel; corporate facility operating expensasrimation technology expenses and depreciatiothcane corporate support functions,
including human resources, finance and legal, d@nere@xternal corporate costs such as insurangal, fiees and other professional services.

Our cash, cash equivalents, short-term investn@rddong-term investments totaled $1,043.1 milksrof December 31, 2014,
compared to $1,052.4 million as of December 31320%e have historically financed our operationsnariily through our cash flows from
operating activities and the issuance of commocksamd convertible debt. We will be highly depertdamour net product revenue to
supplement our current liquidity and fund our opierss for the foreseeable future. We may in tharielect to supplement this with further
debt or equity offerings or commercial borrowingee after giving effect to our January 2015 eqoffering. Further, depending on market
conditions, our financial position and performaacel other factors, we may in the future chooseswauportion obur cash or cash equivale
to repurchase our convertible debt or other sdéearieéFinancial Position, Liquidity and Capital Resourgebelow for a further discussion
of our liquidity and capital resources.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statemané&éccordance with accounting principles generadigepted in the U.S. and pursuant
to the rules and regulations promulgated by thei®t@zs and Exchange Commission (the SEC), we maakamptions, judgments and estim
that can have a significant impact on our net inetboss and affect the reported amounts of cersetg, liabilities, revenue and expenses, an
related disclosures. We base our assumptions, jedgnand estimates on historical experience andusother factors that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resoltiel differ materially from these estimates undiffierent assumptions or conditions. On a
regular basis, we evaluate our assumptions, judtprad estimates. We also discuss our criticalatany policies and estimates with the
Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

We believe that the assumptions, judgments anchasds involved in the accounting for business caatimns, contingent acquisition
consideration payable, income taxes, long-live@&@ssevenue recognition and inventory have thatgst impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements, so we consider these to beritical accounting policies. Historically, oussumptions, judgments and estimates relativ
to our critical accounting policies have not difdmaterially from actual results.

Business Combination

We allocate the purchase price of acquired busésetssthe tangible and intangible assets acquirddiabilities assumed based upon
their estimated fair values on the acquisition date purchase price allocation process requiregagement to make significant estimates anc
assumptions, especially at the acquisition datk reispect to intangible assets angbineess research and development (IPR&D). In cdiore
with the purchase price allocations for acquisiione estimate the fair value of contingent actjoisiconsideration payments utilizing a
probability-based income approach inclusive of stimeated discount rate.

Although we believe the assumptions and estimatefenare reasonable, they are based in part omibétexperience and information
obtained from the management of the acquired bsséteand are inherently uncertain. Examples da€alrigstimates in valuing any contingent
acquisition consideration issued or which may baeésl and the intangible assets we have acquinedpmlacquire in the future include but are
not limited to:

. the feasibility and timing of achievement of deyeteent, regulatory and commercial milestones;

. expected costs to develop the IPR&D into commdiyciahble products; and

. future expected cash flows from product sales.

Unanticipated events and circumstances may occiaghwhay affect the accuracy or validity of suchumsptions, estimates or actual
results .
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Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations— (Continued)

Valuation of Contingent Acquisition Considerationdable

Each period we reassess the fair value of the rmgeit acquisition consideration payable associattdcertain acquisitions and record
increases in the fair value as contingent consimeraxpense and record decreases in the fair e w@ereduction of contingent consideration
expense. Increases or decreases in the fair vathe contingent acquisition consideration payaiale result from changes in estimated
probability adjustments with respect to regulatapproval, changes in the assumed timing of wheastahes are likely to be achieved and
changes in assumed discount periods and ratedfiGagih judgment is employed in determining the rEmpiateness of these assumptions eact
period. Accordingly, future business and econoroirditions, as well as changes in any of the assomgptescribed in the accounting for
business combinations above can materially imgecamount of contingent consideration expensewkaecord in any given period.

Income Taxes

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect net defeare assets that primarily represent the tax lieofetfax credits and timing differenc
between book and tax recognition of certain reveangbexpense items, net of a valuation allowandgemit is more likely than not that all or
some portion of deferred tax assets may not b&eghlwe establish a valuation allowance for theam that may not be realized. Each
quarter, we evaluate the need to retain all orrigroof the valuation allowance on our net deféra@x assets. Our evaluation considers
historical earnings, estimated future taxable ine@nd ongoing prudent and feasible tax plannirajegies. Adjustments to the valuation
allowance increase or decrease net income/lo$eipériod such adjustments are made. If our estBraquire adjustments, it could have a
significant impact on our Consolidated Financiat&ments.

We continually review the adequacy and necessith@#aluation allowance. If it is more likely thant that we would not realize the
deferred tax benefits, then all or a portion of thkiation allowance may need to be establishedn@s in tax laws and rates could also affec
recorded deferred tax assets in the future. Manageis not aware of any such changes that would hawaterial effect on our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Our long-lived assets include property, plant agdigment, intangible assets and goodwill. We rewviiegvcarrying value of plant and
equipment and finite-lived intangible assets fopainment whenever events or changes in circumssaindicate that the carrying amount of ar
asset may not be recoverable. If such circumstagdes an estimate of undiscounted future cashdlw be generated by the long-lived asset
is compared to the carrying value to determine tdreain impairment exists. If an asset is determiodz impaired, the loss is measured bi
on the difference between the asset’s fair valukincarrying value.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets, composed primarf IPR&D projects acquired in business combioas that have not reached
technological feasibility, are reviewed annually fmpairment and whenever events or changes inistances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. We determine imgaitiny comparing the fair value of the asset toatsying value. If the asset’s carrying
value exceeds its fair value, an impairment chésgecorded for the difference and its carryingseal reduced accordingly.

Estimating future cash flows of an IPR&D produchdmlate for purposes of an impairment analysisirequs to make significant
estimates and assumptions regarding the amourttraimdy of costs to complete the project and the ambatiming and probability of achieving
revenues from the completed product similar to toevacquisition date fair value of the project wwatermined, as described above. There ar:
often major risks and uncertainties associated MWWBR&D projects as we are required to obtain retgujaapprovals in order to be able to
market these products. Such approvals require @mglclinical trials that demonstrate a productdidate is safe and effective. Conseque
the eventual realized value of the acquired IPR&Bjgrt may vary from its estimated fair value & ttate of acquisition, and IPR&D
impairment charges may occur in future periods witiculd have a material adverse effect on our tesfiloperations.

We believe our estimations of future cash flowsduiee assessing impairment of long-lived assetdased on reasonable assumptions
given the facts and circumstances as of the relidésl of the assessments.
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When reviewing goodwill for impairment, we assesgether goodwill should be allocated to operatingle lower than our single
operating segment for which discrete financial infation is available and reviewed for decision-mgkpurposes. These lower levels are
referred to as reporting units. Currently, we halentified only one reporting unit as per Finandatounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 350)-htangibles—Goodwill and Other. We perform ononaal impairment review of
goodwill during the fourth quarter and wheneverrgs®r circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof an asset may not be recoverable.
Our impairment review was based on a qualitatisessment or performing a quantitative analysisierining whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the net assets are béhaiv carrying amounts. Examples of qualitativetdas assessed in 2014 include industry and
market considerations and other entity specifitdi@cthat may have a significant impact on thealue of our goodwill. Based on our
gualitative assessment, we determined that therddhire of our goodwill is greater than its carryemgount at December 31, 2014.

Revenue Recoghnitio

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred, theepia the buyer is fixed or
determinable and collection from the customer ésomably assured.

Net Product RevenuesWe recognize revenues from product sales whenatit risk of loss have passed to the customechwhi
typically occurs upon delivery. Product sales teations are evidenced by customer purchase omegmer contracts, invoices and/or the
related shipping documents. Amounts collected fooistomers and remitted to governmental authoriwéch are primarily comprised of
value-added taxes related to product sales ingorgirisdictions, are presented on a net basisiirConsolidated Statements of Operations, in
that taxes billed to customers are not included e@smponent of net product revenues.

In the U.S., our commercial products are genesalld to specialty pharmacies or end-users, sutioggitals, which act as retailers. We
also sell Kuvan to Merck Serono S.A. (Merck Seroatcg price near its manufacturing cost, and M&eiono resells the product to end users
outside the U.S., Canada and Japan. The royaltyeédrom Kuvan product sold by Merck Serono inEhéis included as a component of net
product revenues in the period earned and apprées#®o of Merck Serono’s world-wide sales. OutsigeU.S., our commercial products are
sold to our authorized distributors or directlygimvernment purchasers or hospitals, which actasettid-users.

We receive a 39.5% to 50% royalty on worldwide Alefurazyme sales by Genzyme Corporation (Genzyrapgdding on sales volume,
which is included in Net Product Revenues in oungitidated Statements of Operations. We recognpation of this amount as product
transfer revenue when the product is released tazyee because all of our performance obligatiors@filled at that point and title to, and
risk of loss for, the product has transferred tmgyene. The product transfer revenue representixin amount per unit of Aldurazyme that
Genzyme is required to pay us if the product iolthby Genzyme. The amount of product transfermeeewill eventually be deducted from
the calculated royalty rate when the product isl §91 Genzyme. We record the Aldurazyme royalty nescbased on net sales information
provided by Genzyme and record product transfezmae based on the fulfillment of Genzyme purchaders in accordance with the terms of
the related agreements with Genzyme and whenttbaltid risk of loss for the product is transferre@enzyme. As of December 31, 2014
2013, accounts receivable included $34.5 milliod $26.3 million, respectively, of unbilled accourgseivable related to net incremental
Aldurazyme product transfers to Genzyme.

We record reserves for rebates payable under Mddical other government programs as a reductiosavenue at the time product
revenues are recorded. Our reserve calculationsreegstimates, including estimates of customer, toixietermine which sales will be subject
to rebates and the amount of such rebates. Weaipdagestimates and assumptions each quarter eodireny necessary adjustments to our
reserves. We record fees paid to distributorsraslaction of revenue.

We record allowances for product returns, if appedp, as a reduction of revenue at the time prosaies are recorded. Several factors
are considered in determining whether an allowdocproduct returns is required, including marketlasivity of the products based on their
orphan drug status, the patient population, théoowsrs’ limited return rights and our experiencéhweturns. Because of the pricing of our
products, the limited number of patients and cusisirimited return rights, most customers andikets carry a limited inventory.

Certain international customers, usually governneaiities, tend to purchase larger quantities ofipct less frequently. Although such
buying patterns may result in revenue fluctuatimam quarter to quarter, we have not experiencememase in product returns and do not
believe these buying patterns increase the rigkaduct returns. We rely on historical return ratesstimate returns for our commercial
products. Genzyme'’s contractual return rights fduéazyme are limited to defective product. Basedhese factors and the fact that we have
not experienced significant product returns to dat@nagement has concluded that product returhdevihinimal. In the future, if any of the
factors and/or the history of product returns clesngn allowance for product returns may be reduire
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Bad debt reserves are based on estimated uncoléeaticounts receivable. Given our historical elgmere with bad debts, combined w
our credit management policies and practices, wead@resently maintain significant bad debt reesrHowever some of our customers are
based in countries where the economic conditionsirmee to present challenges. We continue to mottiese conditions and associated
impacts on the financial performance and creditthiness of our large customers so that we can pisopssess and respond to changes in
customer credit profiles. As of December 31, 20dd 2013, our allowance for doubtful accounts wa$ $dillion.

The nature and amount of our current estimateseofpplicable revenue dilution items that are culyeapplied to aggregate world-wide
gross product sales of Vimizim, Naglazyme, Kuvad Rirdapse to derive net sales are described itatile below.

Percentage of Gross Sales
Revenue Dilution Iltem Years Ended December 31, Description
2014 2013

Rebates payable to state
Medicaid, other government
programs and certain

Rebate: 0.2-7.3% 1.C-4.3% managed care provide
Fees paid to authorized
Distributor Fee 0.2- 3.3% 0.2-3.6% distributors

Discounts offered to customers
for prompt payment of
Cash Discount 1.0-1.8% 0.7-1.9% accounts receivab
Total 1.5-12.4% 1.6-9.8%

Collaborative Agreement Revenuegollaborative agreement revenues include botm$ieaevenue and contract research revenue.

Activities under collaborative agreements are eatsld to determine if they represent a multiple elennevenue arrangement. We
identify the deliverables included within the agrest and evaluate which deliverables representagpanits of accounting. We accounts for
those components as separate units of accountihg fbllowing two criteria are met:

. The delivered item or items have value to the gustoon a stand-alone basis; and

. If there is a general right of return relative he delivered items, delivery or performance ofuhdelivered items is considered
probable and within our contrc

Factors considered in this determination includegag other things, whether any other vendors Belitems separately and if the
licensee could use the delivered item for its ideghpurpose without the receipt of the remainingeebles. If multiple deliverables included
in an arrangement are separable into differensufiaccounting, we allocate the arrangement ceniithn to those units of accounting. The
amount of allocable arrangement consideratiomigdid to amounts that are fixed or determinableadgement consideration is allocated at
the inception of the arrangement to the identifiads of accounting based on their relative estalling price. Revenue is recognized for
each unit of accounting when the appropriate reggraognition criteria are met.

Nonrefundable up-front license fees where we hawgicuing involvement through performance of reseand development activities
are initially deferred and recognized as collabivesdgreement license revenue over the estimatéadpfer we continue to have a performai
obligation.

Future milestone payments that are contingent tippachievement of a substantive milestone aregrézed in their entirety in the
period in which the milestone is achieved. A mibest is substantive if:

. It can only be achieved based in whole or in pargither our performance or on the occurrencesfezific outcome resulting
from our performance

. There is substantive uncertainty at the date aangament is entered into that the event will béesetdl; and
. It would result in additional payments being dueiso
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Royalty, license and other revenuefoyalty, license and other revenues includes ti@gabn net sales of products with which we have
no direct involvement and is recognized based ¢a goorted by licensees or sublicensees and liestahe associated with tenants in the Sa
Rafael Corporate Center (the SRCC) is recognizea stnaight-line basis over the term of the respedéases. Royalties are recognized as
earned in accordance with the contract terms whemdyalty amount is fixed or determinable baseihésrmation received from the
sublicensee and when collectibility is reasonalsiuaed.

Due to the significant role we play in the opemasi@f Aldurazyme and Kuvan, primarily the manufaict and regulatory activities, as
well as the rights and responsibilities to delither products to Genzyme and Merck Serono, resgdgtiwe elected not to classify the
Aldurazyme and Kuvan royalties earned as royailtgnise and other revenues and instead to inclee 8 a component of net product
revenues.

Inventory

We value our inventory at the lower of cost or eetlizable value and determine the cost of invgnising the average-cost method.
Inventories consist of currently marketed prodaetd may contain certain products awaiting reguegémproval. In evaluating the
recoverability of inventories produced in prepamatior product launches, we consider the likelihtiwat revenue will be obtained from the
future sale of the related inventory together wlith status of the product within the regulatoryrappl process.

We analyze our inventory levels quarterly and wdibgvn inventory that has become obsolete, or lwsBbasis in excess of its expectec
net realizable value and inventory quantities iness of expected requirements. In applying the l@izeost or net realizable value to pre-
launch inventory, we estimate a range of likely avencial prices based on our comparable commeroiayzts. Expired inventory is dispose
of and the related costs are recognized as Cd&ales in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Inventories Produced in Preparation for Product Laghes

We capitalize inventories produced in preparatmmpfoduct launches sufficient to support estimatétchl market demand. Typically,
capitalization of such inventory begins when pwsitiesults have been obtained for the clinicaldtiaat we believe are necessary to support
regulatory approval, uncertainties regarding ultenagulatory approval have been significantly setliand we have determined it is probable
that these capitalized costs will provide futurereamic benefit in excess of capitalized costs. fBlcors considered by us in evaluating these
uncertainties include the receipt and analysisositjve pivotal clinical trial results for the untigng product candidate, results from meetings
with the relevant regulatory authorities prior he filing of regulatory applications, and the colafion of the regulatory application. We
closely monitor the status of each respective prbdithin the regulatory approval process, inclgdail relevant communication with
regulatory authorities. We also consider our histdrexperience with manufacturing and commerdiadjsimilar products and the relevant
product candidate. If we are aware of any spenifiterial risks or contingencies other than the mbmegulatory review and approval process
or if there are any specific issues identifiedtintato safety, efficacy, manufacturing, marketardabeling, the related inventory would
generally not be capitalized.

For inventories that are capitalized in preparatibproduct launch, anticipated future sales, etgzbapproval date and shelf lives are
evaluated in assessing realizability. The shedfdif a product is determined as part of the regofeapproval process; however in evaluating
whether to capitalize pre-launch inventory produrtitosts, we consider the product stability datalladf the preapproval production to date
determine whether there is adequate expectedIgbdbir the capitalized pre-launch production cost
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 4 to our accompanying Consolidated FiahStatements for a full description of recent arting pronouncements and our
expectation of their impact, if any, on our resolt®perations and financial condition.
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Results of Operations
Net Loss

Our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2@48434.0 million, compared to a net loss of $1WGildon for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The decrease in net loss wasiphy a result of the following (in millions):

Net loss for the year ended December 31, - $ (176.9
Gain on sale of intangible as: 67.5
Increased gross profit from product se 166.C
Increased R&D expent (106.8)
Increased SG&A expen: (66.9)
Increased interest exper (26.2)
Increased provision for income tax (9.3
Decreased debt conversion expe 12.3
Other individually insignificant fluctuatior 5.7

Net loss for the year ended December 31, - $ (134.0

In July 2014, we sold the Rare Pediatric Diseag&iBr Review Voucher (the PRV) we received in ceation with the approval of
Vimizim. In exchange for the PRV we received $6miflion from Regeneron Ireland (Regeneron). Thecpaals from the sale of PRV were
recognized as a gain on the sale of intangibletaBke increase in gross profit from product salesng the year ended December 31, 2014 ac
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 waandy a result of the commercial launch of Vinrmizi additional Kuvan patients initiatil
therapy in the U.S., and additional Naglazyme paiéitiating therapy globally. The increase in R&xpense was primarily attributed to the
clinical trials of our late-stage development peogs, licensing fees paid to a third-party to setinemses related to the development of
talazoparib and increased research on earlier siaagdopment programs. The increase in sellingeggrmnd administrative expense was
primarily due to increased sales and marketing esge related to our commercial products and ineckagpenses related to the commercial
launch of Vimizim. The increase in interest expenwss attributed to our October 2013 debt offering.

Our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2@E3%476.4 million, compared to a net loss of $114ilBon for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase in net loss wagapity a result of the following (in millions):

Net loss for the year ended December 31, - $ (114.9)
Increased R&D expen: (52.6)
Increased SG&A expen: (37.2)
Debt conversion expen: (13.0
Decreased benefit from income ta: (3.9)
Increased gross profit from product se 38.C
Increased royalty and license reven 3.9
Other individually insignificant fluctuatior 2.6

Net loss for the year ended December 31, - $ (176.9

The increase in gross profit from product salesngduthe year ended December 31, 2013 as compatbe tear ended December 31,
2012 was primarily a result of additional Naglazypaients initiating therapy globally and additibKavan patients initiating therapy in the
U.S. The increase in R&D expense was primarilyilaited to increased development expenses for @eghecosidase alfa, talazoparib and
pegvaliase programs. The increase in selling, géaead administrative expense was primarily duedceased sales and marketing expenses
related to our commercial products and increaseecpmmercial Vimizim expenses.

See below for additional information related to finenary net loss fluctuations presented abovdudiog details of our operating
expense fluctuations.
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Net Product Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross P
Net product revenues were as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2014 v.2013 2013 v. 2012

Vimizim $ 773 % 01 9% — 3 772 $ 0.1
Naglazyme 334.4 271.2 257.C 63.2 14.2
Kuvan 203.C 167.4 143.1 35.6 24.3
Aldurazyme 105.€ 83.6 82.2 22.0 1.4
Firdapse 18.1 16.1 14.2 2.0 1.9
Total net product revenu $ 738.4 $ 538.4 $ 496.5 $ 200.C $ 41.9

Net product revenues attributed to our collaboratiith Genzyme were as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 v. 201 2013 v. 201:

Aldurazyme revenue reported by Genzy $ 228.¢ $ 2124 $ 1931 $ 164 $ 19.3

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 v.201: 2013 v. 201
Royalties earned from Genzyr $ 97.C $ 88t $ 804 $ 85 $ 8.1
Incremental (previously recognized) Aldurazyme
product transfer reveni 8.6 (4.9) 1.8 13.5 (6.7)
Total Aldurazyme net product revent $ 1056 $ 83.€ $ 822 $ 220 $ 14

2014 compared to 2013

The FDA and the EMA granted marketing approvaMonizim in February 2014 and April 2014, respeclivend subsequently in other
countries. We began marketing the product immelgiddowing approval in each of these markets. Nietduct revenues for Vimizim for the
year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $77.3 milbbmhich $36.6 million, was earned from customzsed outside the U.S. Net prod
revenues for Vimizim for the year ended December2B13 totaled $0.1 million. Vimizim gross margimere 87% for the year ended
December 31, 2014. In future periods, we expectixlimgross margins to decline and approximate Naglte gross margins as we deplete
previously expensed product.

Net product revenues for Naglazyme for the yeaedridecember 31, 2014 totaled $334.4 million, ofckt$294.6 million was earned
from customers based outside the U.S., compar$@d#d.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018/hich $233.5 million was earned
from customers based outside the U.S. The inciedsaglazyme net product revenues for the year@imember 31, 2014 was attributed to
new patients initiating therapy. The impact of fgrecurrency exchange rates on Naglazyme saleswieated in currencies other than the |
dollar was positive by $0.9 million for the yeaded December 31, 2014. Naglazyme gross margins &&8tefor the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Naglazyme gross maagensot expected to fluctuate significantly in theire.

Net product revenue for Kuvan for the year endedeber 31, 2014 totaled $203.0 million, compare#i1t67.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in Kuvaproduct revenues was attributed to new patientisiimg therapy. Kuvan gross margins
were 84% for the year ended December 31, 2014 @h8. Zost of goods sold for each of the years em@mber 31, 2014 and 2013 reflect
royalties paid to third-parties of approximatelyd.0Kkuvan gross margins are not expected to fluetsanificantly in the future. The royalties
earned from Merck Serono’s net sales of KuvanHenytear ended December 31, 2014 were $2.2 miltiompared to $2.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

We own several patents that cover Kuvan and hatedlithose patents in conjunction with that prodluthe FDA’s Approved Drug
Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluatidhe Qrange Book). The Hatch-Waxman Act permitsRDA to approve abbreviated new
drug applications (ANDA), for the generic versiafdranded drugs. The Hatch-Waxman Act requireAMBDA applicant seeking FDA
approval of the applicant’s proposed generic proguior to the expiration of our Orange Book-listgatents to notify us of the application.
Upon receipt of such a notice (a paragraph IV edtithe Hatch-Waxman Act allows us, with properigase bring an action for patent
infringement against the ANDA filer, asking thaéthroposed generic product not be approved un¢it afir patents expire. If we commence a
lawsuit within 45 days from receipt of the paradrdy notice, the Hatch-Waxman
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Act provides a 30-month stay, during which time Bi2A cannot finally approve the generic’s applioatilf the litigation is resolved in favor
of the ANDA applicant during the 30-month stay pdrithe stay is lifted and the FDA's review of #ygplication may be completed. The
discovery, trial and appeals process in such adavsscostly, time consuming, and may result ingggc competition if the ANDA applicant
prevails. Regardless of any litigation results,agenversions of Kuvan would be prohibited unti texpiration of orphan drug exclusivity in
June 2015, including pediatric exclusivity, at #eliest. We have also received New Patient Papulaixclusivity for Kuvan (sapropterin
dihydrochloride) that expires in October 2017, inthg pediatric exclusivity. Thus, depending on ldigel of a generic product, generic
versions of Kuvan may be prohibited until Octob@t 2.

We have received a paragraph IV notice letter,dd@etober 3, 2014, from Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, bnd Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories,
Ltd. (collectively, DRL) notifying us that DRL hdded an ANDA seeking approval of a proposed geneersion Kuvan (sapropterin
dihydrochloride) 100 mg oral tablets prior to theieation of our Orange Book-listed patents. On Bimber 17, 2014, we, together with Merck
& Cie (Merck), filed a lawsuit against DRL in thenlted States District Court for the District of N&ersey alleging patent infringement for
patents relating to Kuvan. On January 16, 2015 tegether with Merck, filed an Amended Complaiequesting a declaratory judgment that
DRL has no legitimate basis to trigger the ANDA g#ss, alleging that DRL did not have a proper ANiiB&ause, upon information and be
it did not submit proper bioequivalence data ippart of its purported ANDA.

We also have received a paragraph IV notice latieed January 22, 2015, from Par Pharmaceutiwal(Par), notifying us that Par has
filed an ANDA seeking approval of a proposed gemeersion of Kuvan 100 mg oral tablets prior to éxpiration of our patents listed in the
FDA's Orange Book.

The filing of DRL’s and Par’s purported ANDAs insect to Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) cdudare an adverse impact on our
stock price, and litigation to enforce our patastiikely to cost a substantial amount and regsigaificant management attention. If the pat
covering Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride) argduse are not upheld in litigation, or if DRL andRar is found to not infringe our asserted
patents, the resulting generic competition follagvthe expiration of regulatory exclusivity wouldvesa material adverse effect on our revenue
and results of operations.

Net product revenue for Aldurazyme for the yeareehBecember 31, 2014 totaled $105.6 million, corgpan $83.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in net Adglara product revenue was attributed to new patieittating therapy and an increase in
shipments to Genzyme. Aldurazyme gross margins %8 for the year ended December 31, 2014, resgdgtcompared to 68% for the ye
ended December 31, 2013. Aldurazyme gross margftect the profit earned on royalty revenue andmaemental product transfer revenue.
Aldurazyme gross margins are expected to fluctdepending on the mix of royalty revenue, from whiah earn higher gross profit, and
product transfer revenue, from which we earn logress profit.

Net product revenue for Firdapse for the year erdlecember 31, 2014 totaled $18.1 million, compaoed1 6.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in Firdagiggroduct revenues was attributed to new patieittating therapy. Firdapse gross
margins for the years ended December 31, 2014 @h8l ®ere 77%. Cost of goods sold for the eachef#ars ended December 31, 2014 an
2013 reflect royalties paid to third-parties of appmately 8%. Firdapse gross margins for the yeated December 31, 2014 were consistent
with expectations and are not expected to fluctageificantly in the future.

Total cost of sales for the year ended Decembe2@14 were $129.8 million, compared to $95.7 millfor the year ended December
2013 . The increase in cost of sales was primattlybuted to the increase in product sales.

2013 compared to 2012

Net product revenues for Naglazyme for the yeaedridecember 31, 2013 totaled $271.2 million, ofcll$233.5 million was earned
from customers based outside the U.S., compar$@d5a@.0 million for the year ended December 31, 201%hich $222.8 million was earned
from customers based outside the U.S. The incieddaglazyme net product revenues was attributetkte patients initiating therapy. The
impact of foreign currency exchange rates on Nagtezsales denominated in currencies other thak fiedollar was negative by $1.2 milli
for the year ended December 31, 2013. Naglazymesgrargins for 2013 were 86%, compared to 2012 \ghess margins were 85%.
Naglazyme gross margins for the year ended DeceBihe2013 were consistent with expectations anaharexpected to fluctua
significantly in the future.

Net product revenue for Kuvan for the year endedebeer 31, 2013 was $167.4 million, compared t@B$Lillion during 2012. The
increase in Kuvan net product revenues in 2013attaibuted to new patients initiating therapy. Knwgross margins for 2013 were 84%,
compared to 2012 when gross margins were 83%.@&gstods sold for the years ended December 31, 2a8d32012 reflect royalties paid to
third-parties of approximately 10%. Kuvan gross giras for the year ended December 31, 2013 werestenswith expectations and are not
expected to fluctuate significantly in the futufée 4% royalties earned from Merck Serono’s net¢ssaf Kuvan for the year ended
December 31, 2013 were $2.0 million, compared t8 #iillion during 2012.
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Net product revenue for Firdapse for the year edlecember 31, 2013 was $16.1 million, comparedltb Zmillion during 2012.
Firdapse gross margins for the year ended Dece®Ihet013 were 77%, compared to 2012 when grossinsangre 80%. Cost of goods sold
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20l&tefiyalties paid to third-parties of approximat@s. Firdapse gross margins decreased
during 2013 due to increased manufacturing cosigfamdepletion of manufactured product that wasipusly expensed as research and
development expense. Firdapse gross margins foretieended December 31, 2013 were consistentexjibctations and are not expected to
fluctuate significantly in the future.

Aldurazyme gross margins were 68% in each of tleesyended December 31, 2013 and 2012. Aldurazyoss gnargins reflect the
profit earned on royalty revenue and net incremgmtaduct transfer revenue. Aldurazyme gross margie expected to fluctuate dependin
the mix of royalty revenue, from which we earn taghross profit, and product transfer revenue, framch we earn lower gross profit.

Total cost of sales for the year ended Decembe2@13 was $95.7 million, compared to $91.8 millfonthe year ended December 31,
2012. The increase in cost of sales was primatitjbated to the increase in product sales.

Research and Developme

We manage our R&D expense by identifying the redeand development activities we anticipate willpeeformed during a given
period and then prioritizing efforts based on stifiendata, probability of successful developmangrket potential, available human and capita
resources and other similar considerations. Weirmoally review our pipeline and the developmentusgaf product candidates and, as
necessary, reallocate resources among the resgatiaievelopment portfolio that we believe will bespport the future growth of our busint

R&D expense increased to $461.5 million for theryaaded December 31, 2014, from $354.8 milliortiieryear ended December 31,
2013. The increase in R&D expense was primarilgsalt of the following (in millions):

R&D expense for the year ended December 31, ; $ 354.¢
Increased development expense on early developstesge program 32.7
Increased talazoparib development exp¢ 30.3
Increased cerliponase alfa development exp 25.7
Increased pegvaliase development exp 16.C
Increased BMN 111 development expe 7.5
Increased reveglucosidase alfa development ex 5.5
Increased sto-based compensation expel 6.1
Decreased Vimizim development expe (18.9)
Decreased development expense related to matuneeanal product: (5.5)
Increased nc-allocated R&D expense and other net chai 6.8
R&D expense for the year ended December 31, ; $ 461.F

The increase in development expense on early dewelnt stage programs was primarily attributed éopre-clinical activity related to
BMN 270 and BMN 250 and development costs relatettié programs acquired from Zacharon Pharmacésitice. (Zacharon). The increase
in talazoparib development expense was attributéncreased clinical trial activities related tdsthproduct candidate and upfront licensing fee
of $11.5 million paid to a third party to secureelses related to the development of talazopahie.ificrease in pegvaliase development
expense was attributed to increased clinical &idilvities related to this product candidate. Tinereéases in cerliponase alfa and BMN 111
development expense were attributed to increaseidall activities related to these product candidaihe decrease in reveglucosidase alfa
development expense was attributed to a declicériital manufacturing costs related to the prodiztdidate, offset by an increase in clinical
trial expense. The increase in stock-based compienda attributed to an increase in the numbespifons outstanding due to an increased
number of employees, an increase in the weightedage fair value of the equity awards granted du2@14 and the recognition of
approximately $2.8 million of expense related td@enance awards granted to certain executive efficThe increase in non-allocated R&D
expense is primarily attributed to an increase &DRpersonnel costs and facility costs that areatlotcated to specific programs, which
includes a $7.2 million gain on early lease terrtioraof our SRCC lease resulting from the recognitf the remaining deferred rent and asse
retirement liabilities upon acquisition of the SR@Bere our corporate headquarters are located.

During 2015, we expect our R&D spending to increaser 2014 levels due to our drisapersen, pegwltatazoparib, reveglucosidase
alfa, BMN 111 and cerliponase alfa programs pragngs including a few of those programs progressingiore advanced phases of clinical
studies. We acquired drisapersen, which is in PRadimical trials, in January 2015 from Proseri3aase
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3 clinical trials for pegvaliase and talazoparilrevimitiated in the second and fourth quarters@¥2, respectively, and we initiated a Phase 3
trial of reveglucosidase alfa in the second quat@014. We also expect increased spending omlprieal and clinical activities for our early
development stage programs including BMN 270, mogr acquired from Zacharon and BMN 250. Additignaidle expect to continue
incurring significant R&D expense for the foresdedhture due to long-term clinical activities riedd to postapproval regulatory commitmel
for our approved products. We continuously evaltia¢erecoverability of costs associated with prgtéh manufacturing activities, and if it is
determined that recoverability is highly likely atigtrefore future revenues are expected, the sabtsequently incurred related to pre-launch
manufacturing activities may be capitalized. Whegutatory approval and the likelihood of futureepues for a product candidate are less
certain, the related manufacturing costs are exqzkas R&D expenses.

R&D expense increased to $354.8 million for theryaaled December 31, 2013, from $302.2 milliortiieryear ended December 31,
2012. The increase in R&D expense was primarilgsalt of the following (in millions):

R&D expense for the year ended December 31, ; $302.2
Increased pegvaliase development exp: 27.8
Increased talazoparib development expe¢ 18.1
Increased reveglucosidase alfa development ex 14.0
Increased development expense on early developstegg program 13.2
Increased sto-based compensation expel 7.0
Increased development expense related to commeroidiicts 4.1
Increased BMN 111 development expe 2.9
Increased cerliponase alfa development exp 2.7
Decreased Vimizim development expe (15.0
Decrease in nc-allocated R&D expense and other net chat (22.2)

R&D expense for the year ended December 31, ; $354.¢

The increase in pegvaliase, talazoparib and reeegidase alfa development expense was attributiedtteased clinical trial activities
related to these product candidates. The increadevielopment expense on early stage programs nivaarpy attributed to the pre-clinical
activity related to BMN 270, a Factor VIII gene thpy program for Hemophilia A, and development gostated to the programs acquired
from Zacharon. The increase in stock-based comtiensaas primarily attributed to an increase in tluenber of options outstanding due to ar
increased number of employees and an increase welghted-average fair value of the equity awgrdsited during 2013. The increases in
cerliponase alfa and BMN 111 development expense aftributed to increased pre-clinical activitiekated to these product candidates.
During the first quarter of 2013, we evaluatedftets and circumstances supporting recoverabifityre-launch manufacturing costs related tc
Vimizim and concluded that recoverability was prolearesulting in the capitalization of approximgt$40.5 million pre-launch
manufacturing costs during 2013. Pre-launch Vimigignufacturing costs incurred during 2012 were agpd to R&D expense as significant
uncertainty existed over the recoverability of thsts. The decrease in non-allocated R&D expensenmrily attributed to a decline in
research and development personnel costs andyamlts that are not allocated to specific program

Selling, General and Administrativ

SG&A expense increased to $302.2 million for tharyended December 31, 2014, from $235.4 milliortlieryear ended December 31,
2013. The increase in SG&A expenses was primarigsalt of the following (in millions):

SG&A expense for the year ended December 31, $ 2354
Increased Vimizim commercial launch expen 24.1
Increased sto-based compensatic 14.7
Increased sales and marketing expenses relatedttsarcommercial produc 1.8
Net increase in corporate support and other adtréiige expense 26.2

SG&A for the year ended December 31, 2 $ 302z

We received regulatory approval to market Vimizmthe U.S. and the EU during 2014. The increas®immercial launch expense is
consistent with the timing of these approvals. Fiteease in stock-based compensation is attribiot@d increase in the number of options
outstanding due to an increased number of emplogeeincrease in the weighted-average fair valubeequity awards granted during 2014
and the recognition of approximately $10.1 milleirexpense related to performance awards granteertain executive officers. We continue
to incur sales and marketing expense for NaglazgmueKuvan as a result of continued expansion ofrdarnational and U.S. activities,
respectively. The increase in corporate supportadiner administrative expenses is
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primarily attributed to increases in employee edagxpenses due to the increase in commercialdmahestrative headcount, professional
service fees related to the acquisition of Prosermasulting fees, and information and technologyemses, which were offset by a $2.8 mil
gain on the early termination of our SRCC leasethrdecognition of the remaining deferred rent asskt retirement liabilities upon
acquisition of the SRCC. We expect SG&A expensadrease in future periods as a result of the matiéonal expansion of Naglazyme and
Vimizim, the U.S. commercialization activities fiduvan, and the increase in administrative suppaytiired for our expanding operations.

SG&A expense increased to $235.4 million for tharyended December 31, 2013, from $198.2 millioritieryear ended December 31,
2012. The increase in SG&A was primarily a restithe following (in millions):

SG&A expense for the year ended December 31, $198.2
Increased sales and marketing expense relatedrtmeccial product 10.7
Increased Vimizim pi-commercial expens 154
Increased sto-based compensation expel 9.5
Increased foreign exchange losses on unhedgeabtanss 1.3
Net increase in corporate support and other adtratiige expens 0.3

SG&A expense for the year ended December 31, $235.4

We incurred sales and marketing expense for Naglazand Kuvan as a result of continued expansi@uointernational and U.S.
activities, respectively. The increase in stockeolasompensation was attributed to an increaseeimtimber of options outstanding due to an
increased number of employees, an increase in ¢ighted-average fair value of the equity awardsitgaduring 2013 and the recognition of
approximately $4.9 million of expense related tdfgenance awards granted to certain executive efic

Intangible Asset Amortization and Contingent Consition

Intangible asset amortization and contingent cansitibn expense is comprised of changes in the/gdire of contingent acquisition
consideration payable to former stockholders ofamguired businesses, impairment loss (if anyntemigible assets and amortization of
intangible assets. Changes in the fair value ofiegant acquisition consideration payable resualtfrupdates to the estimated probability of
achievement or assumed timing of milestones angsadgnts to the discount periods and rates. Intémgisset amortization and contingent
consideration expense consisted of the followingillions):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Changes in the fair value of contingent acquisitonsideration payab $ 13.C $ 145 $ 8.8
Impairment loss on intangible ass — 0.9 6.7
Amortization of intangible asse 5.0 3.2 3.2
Total intangible asset amortization and contingemtsideratior $ 18C $ 186 $ 18.7

The changes in the fair value of the contingentigitipn consideration payable were primarily &itied to changes in the estimated
probability of achieving development milestonesdubgn the current status of the related developpragframs as well as changes in the
discount rate utilized in the fair value calculasoDuring the year ended December 31, 2014, therityeof the changes related to the
development progress of reveglucosidase alfa.
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In the second quarter of 2013, we recorded an imgait charge of $0.9 million related to IPR&D assefated to acquired pre-clinical
compounds based on the status of current develdpeffents and the related discounted cash flowsnbdonger supported the carrying-value
of the IPR&D assets.

In the first quarter of 2012, we recorded an impaint charge of $6.7 million related to the U.Sd&pse IPR&D assets based on the
status of business development efforts at the éintethe related discounted cash flows that no losigigported the carrying-value of the
IPR&D assets. The IPR&D assets impaired were agttivith the marketing rights for Firdapse in th&. See Note 6 to our accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionst¢agsion.

Equity in the Loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LL!

Equity in the loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LLC (the L),@ur joint venture with Genzyme, includes our 588are of the LLC’s loss for
the period. The LLC’s operations consist primadfycertain R&D activities and the intellectual pesty that are managed by the LLC, with
costs shared equally by BioMarin and Genzyme.

Equity in the loss of the LLC totaled $0.9 milliéor the year ended December 31, 2014, compared.forillion and $1.2 million for tt
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgc

Interest Income

We invest our cash, short-term and long-term imaests in government and other high credit quakiyusities in order to limit default
and market risk. Interest income totaled $5.9 onillfor the year ended December 31, 2014, compar$d.1 million and $2.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgcfied increase in interest income during the yealed December 31, 2014, as compi
to the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 nvaarjly due to higher cash and investment balandésdo not expect future interest
income to fluctuate significantly over the next twveemonths.

Interest Expense and Debt Conversion Expel

We incur interest expense on our convertible debtaur capital leases. Interest expense consistie dollowing (in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Coupon interes $ 94 $ 45 $ 6.6
Amortization of issuance cos 3.3 1.1 1.0
Accretion of discount on convertible not 23.9 4.8 —
Total interest expens $ 36.6 $ 104 $ 7.6

The increased interest expense in the year endeeniieer 31, 2014, compared to the years ended Dece8tp2013 and 2012 was
attributed to our October 2013 issuance of $750ldomin aggregate principal amount of senior sidiated convertible debt. We do not
expect future interest expense to fluctuate sigaifily over the next twelve months. See Note tBécaccompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding Gonvertible Debt.

During 2014, we recognized Debt Conversion Expefig.7 million in connection with the early congiem of $16.5 million in
aggregate principal amount of our senior subordithabnvertible notes due in 2017 (the 2017 Nof2s)ing the year ended December 31,
2013, we recognized debt conversion expense oD$mBlion in connection with the early conversio®6®.8 million in aggregate principal
amount of the 2017 Notes. The increase in intengse¢nse in 2013 compared to 2012 was attributéuet@ctober 2013 issuance of $750.0
million of senior subordinated convertible notes
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Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxe

For the year ended December 31, 2014 we recogaizétcome tax expense of $9.1 million, compareatincome tax benefit of $0.2
million and $3.9 million in the years ended Decentii 2013 and 2012, respectively. Provision fangfit from) income taxes for 2014 and
2013 consisted of state, federal and foreign ctiteenexpense which was offset by deferred tax fisrfeom federal orphan drug credits,
federal R&D credits and California R&D credits. TR@14 provision was also reduced by a renewableggnevestment tax credit under the
flow-through method. The provisions for 2014 and 2Were further reduced by the tax benefit reléestock option exercises during the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. In both &84 2013, the federal R&D credit was reinstagtactively. In accordance with AS
Topic 740, Income Taxes (ASC 740), we accountedherffects of change in the tax law in the petiaat included the enactment date of the
change, resulting in the recognition of a defeteedbenefit of $0.8 million and $1.2 million reldtéo R&D expenses incurred during 2014 anc
2012, respectively, as a discrete item during #e ¥nded December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectwhigh further increased our income tax
benefit for the current period provision. In 2018 se discrete benefits were offset by a $1.6 anilincrease in the valuation allowance related
to California net operating losses that we belianeelikely to expire unutilized. See Note 15 to aacompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion of the comptmef our provision for (benefit from) income taxe

The consolidated U.S. GAAP loss includes all of fmueign subsidiaries. In accordance with ASC 7@ calculate our provision for
(benefit from) income taxes on an entity-by-enéitd jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis as adjusteddifferences between book-basis income
and tax-basis income, which results in certainifprentities being profitable and incurring foreigurrent income tax expense. Certain foreigr
entities incur significant amounts of research dedelopment expense that results in significargdeghat more than offset the income repc
by the profitable foreign entities on a consolidiabasis. The majority of these material researchdmvelopment losses are in foreign
jurisdictions that do not have net operating laasydorward provisions that result in deferred #ssets, which results in an effective tax rat
0% on approximately $177.5 million of foreign nes$es. Other foreign operations generated U.S. GAédme of approximately $3.2 millic
with an effective tax rate of approximately 104%.

Financial Position, Liquidity and Capital Resources

We expect to fund our operations with our net pobdevenues from our commercial products, cash egsivalents, short-term and
long-term investments supplemented by proceeds &quity or debt financings and loans or collabomtigreements with corporate partners,
each to the extent necessary. This expectatio ahinge depending on how much we elect to spemdiodevelopment programs, potential
licenses, and acquisitions of complementary teagies$, products and companies or if we elect tibesall or a portion of our convertible debt
in cash. We will be highly dependent on our netpici revenue to supplement our current liquiditg &md our operations for the foreseeable
future. We may in the future elect to supplemeist with further debt or equity offerings or commatdorrowing, even after giving effect to
our October 2013 debt offering and our March 20dd 2anuary 2015 equity offerings.

We consider the unrepatriated cumulative earnifigeiain of our foreign subsidiaries to be indi#ély invested outside the U.S. As of
December 31, 2014, $109.6 million of our $1,043illien balance of cash, cash equivalents and makitetsecurities was held in foreign
subsidiaries, a significant portion of which isu@gd to fund the liquidity needs of these foreggibsidiaries. In managing our liquidity need
the U.S., we do not rely on the unrepatriated egas a source of funds and we have not provimted.55. federal or state income taxes on
these undistributed foreign earnings.

We are mindful that conditions in the current macanomic environment could affect our ability tdni@ve our goals. Some of the
factors that could affect our business includaarieichanges to healthcare reform in the U.S., éragation or worsening of global economic
conditions, patent expirations of competitive pradiand the launch of generic competitors, contirgmvernment pricing pressures
internationally and the potential volatility in &ign currency exchange rates. We will continue émitor these conditions and will attempt to
adjust our business processes, as appropriatatig@ta these risks to our business.
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Our financial condition as of December 31 was #svig (in millions):

2014 2013 2012 2014v.201: 2013 v. 201
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8755 $ 568¢& $ 180 $ 3067 $  388.:
Shor-term investment 69.7 215.¢€ 267.2 (146.2) (51.9
Long-term investment 97.9 267.7 116.C (169.8) 151.7
Cash, cash equivalents and investm $ 104371 $ 1,052< $ 563.6 $ (9.3) $ 488
Current assel $ 1425¢ $ 1,137.< $ 743.4 3 288.2 $ 394.C
Current liabilities 235.7 183.: 1704 52.4 12.9
Working capital $ 1,189¢ $ 9541 $ 573.C $ 235& $ 3811
Convertible deb $ 658.C $ 655.6 $ 348.2 $ 24 $ 307.4

Our cash flows for each of the years ended DeceBibare summarized as follows (in millions):

2014 2013 2012 2014v.2013  2013v. 2012

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofdhieg $ 568. $ 1805 $ 463 $ 3885 $ 134.2
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi (73.5) (59.6) 17.6 (13.9 (77.2)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 194.F (298.¢) (195.€) 493.3 (103.2)
Net cash provided by financing activiti 185.7 746.7 312.2 (561.0) 434.5
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the p $ 8755 $ 568¢& $ 180 $ 3067 $  388.:
Shor-term and lon-term investment 167.€ 483.€ 383.3 (316.0 100.:
Cash, cash equivalents and investm $ 104371 $ 1052<¢ $ 563.€ $ 9.3) $ 488.€

Working Capital

Working capital increased by $235.8 million, fro®58.1 million at December 31, 2013 to $1,189.9iomillat December 31, 2014. The
increase in working capital was attributed to thiéofving (in millions):

Working capital at December 31, 20 $ 954.1
Increased cash, cash equivalents and -term investment 160.5
Increased accounts payable and accrued liabi (52.5)
Net increase in other current operating as 127.¢

Working capital at December 31, 20 $ 1,189«

The increase in cash, cash equivalents and shontinvestments at December 31, 2014 from Dece®be2013 was primarily attribut
to the net proceeds of $117.5 million from our Mea2®14 public offering of common stock, proceed$78.9 million from employee stock
option exercises and employee stock purchase platnilcutions and the $67.5 million proceeds from $lale of the PVR.

The net increase in other current operating assetsmarily comprised of a $36.8 million increasenventory, a $26.7 million increase
in accounts receivable and a $63.6 million incréasgher current assets. The increase in invent@y primarily attributed to building of
inventories for all commercial products, includivigmizim (which was approved in 2014), to meet aipéited future sales demand. The
increase in accounts receivable is attributed ¢cemsed revenues and the timing of net produchteseand cash receipts from customers.

Our product sales to government-owned or governtfusrited customers in certain countries, including$ta, Greece, Spain, Italy and
Portugal, are subject to payment terms that areseg by government authority. Because these custaane government-owned or
government-funded, we may be impacted by declinesvereign credit ratings or sovereign defaulthé@se countries. A significant or further
decline in sovereign credit ratings, or defaultiase countries, may decrease the likelihood tleatvil collect accounts receivable or may
increase the discount rates and the length of tintié receivables are collected, which could reguli negative impact to our operating results.
Historically we have not experienced a significiawel of uncollected receivables and have recetadinued payments from our more aged
accounts. We believe that the allowances for dobktfcounts for these countries are adequate lwasedr analysis of the specific business
circumstances and expectations of collection fohes the underlying accounts in these countriessofDecember 31, 2014, approximately
of our outstanding accounts receivable relate th swuntries. See Note 19 to our accompanying Giolased Financial Statements for
additional discussion. We also sell our products in
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other countries that face economic crises and lmoabncy devaluation. Although we have historicalbllected receivables from customers in
those countries, sustained weakness or furtheridietton of the local economies and currencies rayse our customers in those countries t
be unable to pay for our products with the sametieg effect on our operations.

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities for the year dridlecember 31, 2014 was $73.5 million, comparezhih used in operating activities
$59.6 million for the year ended December 31, 201 increase in cash used in operating actiwt@s primarily attributed to the $42.4
million increase in our net loss and a $17.9 milldecrease in collection of accounts receivable. iibrease in our net loss is primarily
attributed to increased R&D expense related toeimsed clinical trial activities for our product datates pegvaliase, talazoparib and
reveglucosidase alfa and increased sales and rimayleatpense related to the commercial launch ofixlimin the U.S. and the EU.

Cash used in operating activities for the year dridecember 31, 2013 was $59.6 million, comparezhsh provided by operating
activities of $17.6 million for the year ended Dexd®er 31, 2012. The increase in cash used in opgrattivities was primarily related to the
$62.0 million increase in our net loss and a $3&ilBon inventory increase, offset by debt conversexpense of $13.0 million. The increase ir
our net loss is primarily attributed to increaseé&lRexpense related to increased clinical trial\dtigs for our product candidates pegvaliase,
talazoparib and reveglucosidase alfa, pre-comniezgf@ense for Vimizim and increased sales and ntiakexpense related to continued
expansion of our international and U.S activitiesNaglazyme and Kuvan, respectively.

Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities during yfear ended December 31, 2014 was $194.5 milbompared to net cash used in
investing activities of $298.8 million and $195.@limn during the years ended December 31, 20132042, respectively. Our investing
activities have consisted primarily of purchases sales and maturities of investments and capifamrditures, such as manufacturing
equipment and facility construction and improvernsefiihe increase in net cash provided by investitigiies for the year ended December
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 284xmarily comprised of a $407.7 million increas@et maturities of investments, the
$67.5 million in proceeds for the sale of the PR\$116.5 million decrease in restricted funds relescrow for the purchase of the SRCC anc
a $9.9 million decrease in business acquisitiofisebby a $54.0 million increase in capital exp@mes and a $52.3 million increase in the
investment in convertible notes. The increase trcash used in investing activities for the yeateshDecember 31, 2013 compared to the yes:
ended December 31, 2012 was primarily comprisead$#0.6 million increase in capital expenditure$9#® million increase in business
acquisitions and the deposit of $116.5 million imescrow account for the purchase of the SRCCebiffig an increase in net maturities of
investment securities of $37.9 million. During 20&& expect to make significant capital investmémisur Shanbally, Ireland manufacturing
facility to enable future commercial manufacturisfgour products at the facility and our corporagadiquarters to accommodate anticipated
headcount growth.

Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for theay ended December 31, 2014 was $185.7 millionpened to net cash provided by
financing activities of $746.7 million and $312.2lian for the years ended December 31, 2013 ari®2fespectively. Historically, our
financing activities primarily included paymentsated to our contingent acquisition obligationsypants related to our convertible debt
obligations and proceeds from employee stock psehander the ESPP and employee stock option s&erdihe decrease in net cash
provided by financing activities for the year end®ecember 31, 2014 was primarily attributed tohef het proceeds of $117.5 million from
March 2014 equity offering, a $12.3 million decre&s debt conversion expense and increased profeedemployee stock option exercises
and ESPP contributions of $7.3 million, offset b§1a6 million increase in payments of contingernjuasition consideration. The increase in
cash provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 was primarily attributeght@ncrease of $726.2 million in net
proceeds from our October 2013 offering of senidrosdinated convertible notes, offset by decregsedeeds from stock option exercises ant
ESPP contribution of $10.5 million, increased tapei for net settlement of equity awards of $4illion, increased debt conversion expense
of $13.0 million and $29.8 million used to purchaspped calls in connection with our October 20ff8rimg of senior subordinated
convertible notes.
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Other Information

On January 15, 2015, we closed the initial offepegiod related to our offer to purchase all of éindinary shares (Prosensa Shares) of
Prosensa Holding N.V, a public limited liability mopany organized under the laws of the NetherlaRdssgnsa), and purchased 93.4% of the
Prosensa Shares and immediately launched a subdexffezing period that expired on January 29, 2@5b January 15, 2015, we paid
approximately $659.3 million for approximately 3%lian Prosensa Shares, representing 96.8% offale@outstanding Prosensa Shares and
options that vested pursuant to the definitive pase agreement. On February 12, 2015, we completeasset transfer and paid $20.8 million
to the remaining Prosensa shareholders. Effecebeltary 12, 2015, Prosensa has been dissolved améiquidation under Dutch law

On January 27, 2015, we sold approximately 9.8anilshares of our common stock at a price of $9fet5share in an underwritten
public offering pursuant to an effective registatstatement previously filed with the SEC. We nes@ net proceeds of approximately $888.2
million from this public offering.

On March 10, 2014, we sold 1.5 million shares af@ammon stock in an underwritten public offeringguant to an effective
registration statement previously filed with theGSEVe received net proceeds of approximately $1dwllton from this public offering.

On October 15, 2013, we completed an offering &®J million in aggregate principal amount of sersobordinated convertible notes
consisting of $375.0 million in aggregate principatount of 0.75% senior subordinated convertibles\due 2018 (the 2018 Notes) and
$375.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 1h80% senior subordinated convertible notes di#d#0 (the 2020 Notes and together with
the 2018 Notes, the Notes). The net proceeds fnenoffering were $696.4 million, after deductingrouissions and offering expenses and the
purchase of capped calls. The Notes were issulet@t/alue and accrue interest at their statedamates which is payable semiannually in
arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each yeammirgg on April 15, 2014. See Note 13 to our accamying Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion.

Our $790.6 million (undiscounted) of total convieldi debt as of December 31, 2014 will impact ogmillity due to the semi-annual cash
interest payments and will further impact our ldjtyi if we elect to settle all or portions of th@1B Notes or the 2020 Notes in cash upon
conversion or if the holders of our 2017 Notes dbaonvert on or prior to the scheduled repaymehtle debt. Further, depending on market
conditions, our financial position and performaaoel other factors, we may in the future chooses®auportion of our cash or cash equival
to repurchase our convertible debt or other sdearit

On January 4, 2013, we acquired Zacharon, whichsfed on developing small molecules targeting pageveé glycan and glycolipid
metabolism, for a net cash upfront payment of $8illflon. In connection with the acquisition, we agd to pay the Zacharon stockholders
additional consideration in future periods of ufid4.0 million (undiscounted) in milestone paynsahtertain clinical, development and s
milestones are met.

Funding Commitments

We cannot estimate with certainty the cost to cetgpany of our product development programs. Aolditily, except as disclosed under
“Overview” above, we cannot precisely estimatettime to complete any of our product developmengpmms or when we expect to receive
net cash inflows from any of our product developtngrams. Please see “Risk Factors” includedain P Item 1A of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, for a discussion of the reasons we aseble to estimate such information, and in parsicthe following risk factors:

. If we fail to obtain or maintain regulatory apprdwa commercially market and sell our drugs, oajfproval is delayed, we w
be unable to generate revenue from the sale oéthexducts, our potential for generating positiasie flow will be diminished,
and the capital necessary to fund our operatiorikhvei increased

. If we are unable to successfully develop and mainteanufacturing processes for our drug productgrioduce sufficien
guantities at acceptable costs, we may be unaliestet demand for our products and lose potentie¢mee, have reduced
margins or be forced to terminate a progra

. If we fail to compete successfully with respegirtmuct sales, we may be unable to generate sefffisiales to recover ol

expenses related to the development of a prodaegram or to justify continued marketing of a protand our revenue could
be adversely affected; ai
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. If we do not achieve our projected developmentgathe timeframes we announce and expect, theneocralization of ou
products may be delayed and the credibility of management may be adversely affeand, as a result, our stock price may
decline.

Our investment in our product development prograntscontinued development of our existing commeépriaducts has a major impact
on our operating performance. Our R&D expensesiah ®f the three years ended December 31 and thue [gince inception of the major
programs were as follows (in millions):

Since Program

2014 2013 2012 Inception
Vimizim $ 63.€ $ 82.C $ 97.C $ 357.4
Talazoparib (BMN 673 59.8 29.5 114 116.4
Reveglucosidase alfa (BMN 70 51.1 45.6 31.6 148.:
BMN 111 22.5 15.C 12.1 69.4
Cerliponase alfa (BMN 19( 39.6 13.8 111 71.0
Pegvaliase (PEG PAI 70.5 54.5 26.7 238.2
Mature approved produc 31.8 37.3 33.2 403.2
Not allocated to specific major current proje 122.€ 77.1 79.1 Not meaningfu
Totals $ 461.5 $ 354.t $ 302.2

We may elect to increase our spending above owercuiong-term plans and consequently we may bélaria achieve our long-term
goals. This may increase our capital requiremémnttyding: costs associated with the commerciabradf our products; additional clinical
trials; investments in the manufacturing of Vimizikaglazyme, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapse; pnézai studies and clinical trials for our
other product candidates; potential licenses ahdracquisitions of complementary technologiesgpets and companies; and general
corporate purposes.

Our future capital requirements will depend on meagfors, including, but not limited to:

. product sales and profitability of Vimizim, Naglamg, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapse;
. manufacture, supply or distribution of Vimizim, Nagyme, Kuvan, Aldurazyme and Firdapse;
. progress of our integration of Prosensa;

. progress of our product candidates through thelaggy process and our ability to successfully careialize any such
products that receive regulatory appro

. results of clinical trials, announcements of tedbgizal innovations or new products by us or ounpetitors;
. results relating to our lawsuit against DRL to paitour patents relating to Kuvan;

. government regulatory action affecting our prodrarididates or our competitors’ drug products irhtibe U.S. and non-U.S.
countries;

. developments or disputes concerning patent or @iapy rights;

. general market conditions and fluctuations forgheerging growth and pharmaceutical market sectors;
. economic conditions in the U.S. or abroad,;

. broad market fluctuations in the U.S., the EU oofiner parts of the world;

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults; and

. changes in company assessments or financial esrbgitsecurities analysts.
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Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations— (Continued)

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatsite currently material or reasonably likelypeomaterial to our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Contractual and Commercial Obligations

We have contractual and commercial obligations unde debt, operating leases and other obligatielated to R&D activities, purcha
commitments, licenses and sales royalties with ahminimums. Our contractual obligations for nomoalable purchase commitments as of
December 31, 2014 are presented in the table b@homillions).

Payments Due within

More
1 Year >1-3 >3-5 Than 5
or Less Years Years Years Total

2017 Notes and related inter: $ 08 $ 417 $ — % — % 42.5
2018 Notes and related inter 2.8 5.6 377.€ — 386.2
2020 Notes and related inter: 5.6 11.2 11.6 380.¢€ 409.C
Operating lease 5.7 11.9 2.7 0.1 20.4
R&D and purchase commitmer 44.8 14.C 2.2 — 61.0
Total $ 59.7 $ 844 $ 3942 $ 380.7 $ 919.1

We are also subject to contingent payments totapumroximately $1,398.7 million as of December 3114, which are due upon
achievement of certain regulatory and licensingestdnes if they occur before certain dates inuh&é and the acquisition of Prosensa. Of
amount, $52.8 million relates to programs thatrexéonger being developed.

In January 2015, we made payments totaling $658l@min connection with the closing of the Prosartender offer to acquire the
Prosensa Shares which were tendered and optioch whsted pursuant to the definitive purchase ageeé Additionally, in February 2015,

we completed the asset transfer and paid $20.8&mib the remaining Prosensa shareholders. Thegatg related to th@cquisitionof
Prosensa were included in the total contingent gasnof $1,398.7 million as of December 31, 2014.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure Alut Market Risk
Interest Rate Market Ris|

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interasts relates primarily to our investment portdfoBy policy, we place our investments
with highly rated credit issuers and limit the ambaf credit exposure to any one issuer. As statedir investment policy, we seek to improve
the safety and likelihood of preservation of oweisted funds by limiting default risk and markekri

We mitigate default risk by investing in high cregliality securities and by positioning our poiiddio respond appropriately to a
significant reduction in a credit rating of any @¥ment issuer or guarantor. The portfolio incluolely marketable securities with active
secondary or resale markets to ensure portfoliadity.

We have outstanding $40.6 million of the 2017 No#3¥5.0 million of the 2018 Notes and $375.0 millbf the 2020 Notes. The inter
rates on these notes are fixed and therefore theytlexpose us to risk related to rising interatds. At December 31, 2014 the fair value of
our convertible debt was $1,079.8 million.

In connection with the October 2013 offering of #6118 Notes and the 2020 Notes, we paid $29.8anitlh purchase a capped call
covering 3,982,988 shares of our common stockefger share price of our common stock remainsab®f.15, these capped call
transactions would provide us no benefit in offsgtpotential dilution from the 2018 Notes and #020 Notes. If the per share price of our
common stock exceeds $121.05, then to the exteheatxcess, these capped call transactions wesidtiin additional dilution from
conversion of the 2018 Notes and the 2020 Notes.

As of December 31, 2014, our investment portfolibrabt include any investments with significant egpre to the subprime mortgage
market issues or the European debt crisis. Basediomvestment portfolio and interest rates atddelser 31, 2014, we believe that a 100 bas
point increase in interest rates could resultpoential loss in fair value of our investment jfaid of approximately $2.6 million. Changes in
interest rates may affect the fair value of ouestment portfolio. However, we will not recognizels gains or losses in our Consolidated
Statement of Operations unless the investmentsaddeor we determine that the decline in the inwestt’s value is other-than-temporary.

The table below presents the carrying value ofoagh and investment portfolio, which approximagesyvalue at December 31, 2014 (in
millions):

Carrying
Value
Cash and cash equivalel $ 875,48¢*
Shor-term investment 69,70€ **
Long-term investment 97,85€ ***
Total $ 1,043,04¢

* 74% of cash and cash equivalents are invested ireynmarket instruments and 26% in ce
**  78% of shoi-term investments are invested in certificates giodé and 22% in corporate debt securit
***  81% of lon¢-term investments are invested in corporate dehirges and 19% in certificates of depc

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We transact business in various foreign currengiesarily in Euros, British Pounds and Braziliard® Accordingly, we are subject to
exposure from movements in foreign currency exchaatges of the Euro from sales of our productstirope and operating expenses in the
United Kingdom, other European countries and Bnahikch are denominated in British Pounds, EurosRedl, respectively.

We hedge a portion of our net position in assetsliabilities denominated in Euros using forwardeign currency exchange contracts.
We also use forward currency exchange contradiedge a percentage of our forecasted Euro-denasdimavenue, as well as our operating
expenses denominated in Brazilian Reais. Our hgdgiticy is designed to reduce the impact of fanaigrrency exchange rate movements.
We mitigate short-term foreign currency exposuralténg from currency fluctuations by entering ificoward foreign currency exchange
contracts. These contracts have maturities rarfgamy one month to 26 months.

As of December 31, 2014, we had forward foreigmamey exchange contracts to sell approximately8&8llion Euros and 4.3 million
British Pounds. As of December 31, 2014, our ontfitag forward foreign currency exchange contraeis & net fair value of $15.9 million, of
which $10.5 million was included in other curressats, $5.4 million was included in other assets$r2,000 was included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses on our accompanyimgp{tated Balance Sheets.
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We do not use derivative financial instrumentsdjpeculative trading purposes, nor do we hedgedoraiirrency exchange rate exposure
in a manner that entirely offsets the effects @rajes in foreign currency exchange rates. The equanties to these forward foreign currency
exchange contracts are creditworthy multinatiomahmercial banks, which minimizes the risk of coupaety nonperformance. We currently
do not use financial instruments to hedge operakpmenses denominated in local currencies in Eulogtead, we believe that a natural hedge
exists, in that local currency revenue substantiaffisets the local currency operating expensesralelarly review our hedging program and
may, as part of this review, make changes to tbgram.

Based on our overall foreign currency exchangeegposures at December 31, 2014, we believe thadgterm 10% fluctuation of the
U.S. dollar exchange rate could result in a po¢tiange in the fair value of our foreign curreseysitive assets and investments by
approximately $3.7 million. We expect to enter intw transactions based in foreign currenciesabald be impacted by changes in exchang
rates.

At December 31, 2014, we had cash of approxim&®6,0 million denominated in foreign currenciesjchirepresented approximately
5% of our total cash and investment portfolio. A®sult, our cash and investment portfolio is scidje limited amounts of foreign currency
exchange rate risk.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required to be filed in this iteqpp@ars on pages F-1 to F-45 of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

An evaluation was carried out, under the supermisioand with the participation of our managemertiuding our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the @ftiveness of our disclosure controls and proced{z® defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-1
(e) under the Exchange Act as of the end of thimpeovered by this report. Based on the evaluaton Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that ourctfisure controls and procedures are effective sonthat the information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports we file or submidemthe Exchange Act was recorded, processed, stinet@nd reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciaReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining an adequate internal control structure procedures for financial
reporting. Under the supervision of and with theipgation of our management, including our CHisdecutive Officer and our Chief Financ
Officer, our management has assessed the effeetisasf our internal control over financial repagtas defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act as of December 31, 2014. Our managé&sressessment was based on criteria set forthdoZommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQgriral Control-Integrated Framework (2013).

Based on the COSO criteria, we believe our intecnatrol over financial reporting as of December 3114 was effective.

Our independent registered public accounting fiMG LLP, has audited the financial statementsuded in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and has issued a report on the effeatiseinf our internal control over financial repagtihe report of KPMG LLP is incorporated
by reference from Item 8 of this Annual Report amrf 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Report

There were no changes in our internal control divwancial reporting during our most recently contetequarter that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaffour internal control over financial reportiag, defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act.
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Scope of the Effectiveness of Contre

Our internal control over financial reporting ip@cess designed to provide reasonable assurageliteg the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. Our
internal control over financial reporting includi®se policies and procedures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaeaisle detail, accurately and fairly reflect oansactions and dispositions of our assets

» provide reasonable assurance that transactions@aded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, anddhateceipts and expenditures are being made ordgéordance with authorizations of
our management and our board of directors;

« provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on our financial stegats.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in conditions c
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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Part Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

We incorporate information regarding our direct@secutive officers and corporate governance itogection by reference from
sections captioned “Election of Directors” and “Entive Officers” in the proxy statement for our B0dnnual meeting of stockholders.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

We incorporate information regarding executive cenmgation into this section by reference from thetise captioned “Executive
Compensation” in the proxy statement for our 20dBual meeting of stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

We incorporate information regarding security ovefg of our beneficial owners, management andedlatockholder matters into this
section by reference from the section captioneati8ty Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” iretproxy statement for our 2015 annual
meeting of stockholders. We incorporate informatiegarding the securities authorized for issuamzEuour equity compensation plans into
this section by reference from the section captidiiguity Compensation Plan Information” in the pycstatement for our 2015 annual
meeting of stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns and Director Independence

We incorporate information regarding certain relaships, related transactions and director indegrecelinto this section by reference
from the section captioned “Transactions with RelaPersons, Promoters and Certain Control Persoitise proxy statement for our 2015
annual meeting of stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

We incorporate information regarding our principatountant fees and services into this sectiorefgrence from the section captioned
“Independent Registered Public Accounting Firmthe proxy statement for our 2015 annual meetingtadkholders.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Financial Statements as of Decemhe2@®M and 2013 and for the three years ended Dmmedd, 2014

Consolidated Balance She:
Consolidated Statements of Operati
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh( Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flt

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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10.2t

10.3%

10.4%

Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 23, 20ddng BioMarin Falcons B.V., BioMarin Pharmaceudtlca. and
Prosensa Holding N.V., previously filed with theGBn November 26, 2014 as Exhibit 2.01 to the CamisaCurrent Report
on Form -K, which is incorporated by reference hert

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatisnamended June 12, 2003, previously filed witrfSlBE on June 23, 2003
as Exhibit 3.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Certificate of Correction to Certificate of Amendmi¢o the Amended and Restated Certificate of Ipa@ation of BioMarin
Pharmaceutical Inc., dated April 4, 2005, previgdised with the SEC on April 5, 2005 as Exhibi23o the Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Redt@ertificate of Incorporation of BioMarin Pharmateal Inc. as filed
with the Delaware Secretary of State on OctobeP0Ry, previously filed with the SEC on February 2212 as Exhibit 3.3 to
the Compan’'s Annual Report on Form -K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated By-Laws of BioMarin Pharmacaiuinc., previously filed with the SEC on DecemB8, 2010 as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Indenture dated as of March 29, 2006, between BioM2harmaceutical Inc. and Wilmington Trust Compasreviously filed
with the SEC on March 29, 2006 as Exhibit 4.1 ® @ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, which toiporated herein by
reference

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Apyi@87, between BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. antimivigton Trust
Company, previously filed with the SEC on April 2807 as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Repor=orm 8K, which
is incorporated herein by referen

Form of 1.875% Senior Subordinated Convertible Blolige 2017, previously filed with the SEC on A@Rl 2007 as Exhibit
4.2 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Indenture, dated as of October 15, 2013, betweeM&iin Pharmaceutical Inc. and Wilmington Trustfibiaal Association,
previously filed with the SEC on October 15, 2083Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report omf8-K, which is
incorporated herein by referen:

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of OctobePQ13, between BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. arnliWdgton Trust,
National Association, previously filed with the SBE October 15, 2013 as Exhibit 4.2 to the Com’s Current Report on
Form €K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Ocfidhe?013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. \Afilghington Trust,
National Association, previously filed with the SBE October 15, 2013 as Exhibit 4.3 to the Com’s Current Report on
Form €K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of 0.75% Senior Subordinated Convertible Ndigs 2018, previously filed with the SEC on Octobgy2013 as includt
in Exhibit 4.2 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of 1.50% Senior Subordinated Convertible Ndigs 2020, previously filed with the SEC on Octobgy2013 as includt
in Exhibit 4.3 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors abfficers, previously filed with the SEC on Octold&, 2010 as Exhibit
10.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Severance Plan and Summarip@aription as originally adopted on January20D4 and amended
and restated on May 12, 2009 and further amendeédemtated on July 29, 2013 and October 7, 20B¥jqusly filed with the
SEC on October 14, 2014 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Gowis Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incoigted by reference
herein.

Amendment to BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 1997 Btelan, as amended, as adopted March 20, 2002ppsdy filed with
the SEC on March 21, 2002 as Exhibit 99.1 to then@any’s Current Report on Form 8-K, which is inamgied herein by
reference

Amendment No. 2 to BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 1$8ock Plan, as amended, as adopted May 5, 268dppsly filed
with the SEC on August 9, 2004 as Exhibit 10.1h® €ompany’s Quarterly Report on FormQQwhich is incorporated here
by reference
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BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.1998 Director OptioaiPand forms of agreements thereunder, previoidstyith the SEC on
May 4, 1999 as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Regigin Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-777@Mhjch is incorporated
herein by referenct

Amendment No. 1 to BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. & @8rector Plan as adopted March 26, 2003 prewofiisid with the
SEC on May 15, 2003 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorpedaherein by
reference

Amendment No. 2 to BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.1@89&ctor Option Plan, effective as of June 12,280d July 21, 2003,
previously filed with the SEC on August 12, 200Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly reportFrm 10-Q, which is
incorporated herein by referen:

Amendment No. 3 to BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 8 @8rector Option Plan, as amended, as adopted3v1ago04,
previously filed with the SEC on August 9, 2004dibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrr 10-Q, which is
incorporated herein by referen:

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. Amended and Resta@6Zmployee Stock Purchase Plan, as adopted e21r2006 and
amended on March 5, 2014, previously filed with 8&C on June 10, 2014 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Cogiga@urrent Report ¢
Form &K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated BioMarin Pharmaceutical Id@6Z5hare Incentive Plan adopted on May 12, 26 @nsended on
March 28, 2013, previously filed with the SEC onyM&6, 2013 as Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s RegligtnaStatement on
Form &8, which is incorporated herein by referer

Form of Agreement Regarding Restricted Share UWaitthe BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 2006 Shareshtive Plan,
previously filed with the SEC on May 16, 2013 asibik 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&n, which is
incorporated herein by referen:

Amended and Restated BioMarin Pharmaceutical lleniqNalified Deferred Compensation Plan, as adomteldecember 1,
2005 and as amended and restated on January 1a@@@arther amended and restated on Decembe018,&nhd October 7,
2014, previously filed with the SEC on October 2@14 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Reporf-orm 8-K, which
is incorporated herein by referen

Summary of Bonus Plan, previously filed with theCS&n February 27, 2009 as Exhibit 10.33 to the Comgs Annual Report
on Form 1K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with-Jaeques Bienaimé effective January 1, 2009 prelydiled with the
SEC on December 23, 2008 as Exhibit 10.1 to theg2myis Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incagted herein by
reference

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Rébaaffi effective January 1, 2009 previousliefi with the SEC ¢
December 23, 2008 as Exhibit 10.3 to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement withri@.[Bavis effective January 1, 2009, previouslgdilwith the SEC on
December 23, 2008 as Exhibit 10.6 to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Employment Agreement with Henry Fuchs, effectiverthal8, 2009, previously filed with the SEC on Ma&3, 2009 as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Grant Terms and Conditions Agreement between BiaMRinarmaceutical Inc. and Harbor-UCLA ResearchEdhacation
Institute dated April 1, 1997, as amended, preVijofied with the SEC on July 21, 1999 as Exhilit 17 to the Company’s
Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Forin(Sile No. 333-77701), which is incorporated liefgy reference. The
SEC has granted confidential treatment with resfmecertain portions of this exhibit. Omitted ports have been filed
separately with the SE!

License Agreement dated July 30, 2004, between BioMPharmaceutical Inc. and Daiichi Suntory Pha@oa Ltd., as
amended by Amendment No. 1 to License Agreemeetdddbvember 19, 2004, previously filed with the S&ECMarch 16,
2005 as Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Annual ReporForm 10-K, which is incorporated herein byerehce. The SEC has
granted confidential treatment with respect toaiarportions of this exhibit. Omitted portions hawesen filed separately with
the SEC
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Development, License and Commercialization Agredrdated May 13, 2005, between BioMarin Pharmacaulitc. and Are
Trading S.A., previously filed with the SEC on Jély2005 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Curregpdtt on Form 8-K/A,
which is incorporated herein by reference. The 8BS granted confidential treatment with respecettain portions of this
exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed sepayatéth the SEC

Operating Agreement with Genzyme Corporation, presiy filed with the SEC on July 6, 1999 as Exhift30 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Staternarfform S-1 (File No. 333-77701), which is incagied herein by
reference

Manufacturing, Marketing and Sales Agreement datedf January 1, 2008, by and among BioMarin Phegotécal Inc.,
Genzyme Corporation and BioMarin/Genzyme LLC prasly filed with the SEC on February 28, 2008 asikix10.30 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is inpmrated herein by reference. The SEC has gramatefidential
treatment with respect to certain portions of #xkibit. Omitted portions have been filed sepayatéth the SEC

Amended and Restated Collaboration Agreement dgeted January 1, 2008, by and among BioMarin Pheenrtécal Inc.,
Genzyme Corporation and BioMarin/Genzyme LLC prasly filed with the SEC on February 28, 2008 asikixl10.31 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is irpmrated herein by reference. The SEC has gramatefilential
treatment with respect to certain portions of #xkibit. Omitted portions have been filed sepayatéth the SEC

Members Agreement dated as of January 1, 2008 dhyamong BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc., Genzyme Crafon,
BioMarin Genetics Inc., and BioMarin/Genzyme LLGwiously filed with the SEC on February 28, 200&akibit 10.32 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, whicinorporated herein by reference. The SEC has eplazdnfidential
treatment with respect to certain portions of #xkibit. Omitted portions have been filed sepayatéth the SEC

Employment Agreement with Daniel Spiegelman effectis of May 29, 2012, previously filed with thEGon May 9, 2012
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compé’'s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with RoBeBaffi dated as of May 8, 2012, previously filaith the SEC on
May 9, 2012 as Exhibit 10.4 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with GcBravis dated as of May 8, 2012, previously filethwhe SEC on
May 9, 2012 as Exhibit 10.5 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with Hehrffuchs dated as of May 8, 2012, previously filéth the SEC on
May 9, 2012 as Exhibit 10.6 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with RoBeBaffi dated as of May 24, 2012, previously dileith the SEC on
May 24, 2012 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Comg’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with Hehrffuchs dated as of May 24, 2012, previously filiti the SEC on
May 24, 2012 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comg’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 2012 Inducement Péatgpted May 8, 2012, previously filed with the S&CMay 9, 2012 as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of Stock Options Agreement for the BioMariraRhaceutical Inc. 2006 Share Incentive Plan. (agidad and Restated
2010), previously filed with the SEC on August 812 as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Quarterlydepn Form 10-Q,
which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of Stock Options Agreement for the BioMariraRhaceutical Inc. 2012 Inducement Plan, previofidg with the SEC
on August 2, 2012 as Exhibit 10.13 to the Compa@usarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorpedaherein by
reference

Form of Agreement Regarding Restricted Stock Uisitshe BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 2012 Inducetriéian, previously
filed with the SEC on August 2, 2012 as Exhibitl¥to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@vQich is incorporated
herein by referenct
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Employment Agreement with Jeffrey R. Ajer datecBSeptember 5, 2012, previously filed with the SECSeptember 5,
2012 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compi's Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with DaBiglegelman dated as of December 17, 2012, prdyifilesl with the
SEC on December 18, 2012 as Exhibit 10.1 to thefamy's Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incagied herein by
reference

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Empaymgreement with Jeaiacques Bienaimé dated as of Decembe
2012, previously filed with the SEC on December2@®l2 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Repo Form 8-K,
which is incorporated herein by referen

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with Jgffer Ajer dated as of December 17, 2012, previofikdg with the
SEC on December 18, 2012 as Exhibit 10.3 to thefamy’'s Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incagied herein by
reference

Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement with RoBeBaffi dated as of December 17, 2012, previotishd with the
SEC on December 18, 2012 as Exhibit 10.4 to thefamy’'s Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incagied herein by
reference

Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement with Hehrffuchs dated as of December 17, 2012, previdilestiwith the
SEC on December 18, 2012 as Exhibit 10.5 to theg2myis Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incagted herein by
reference

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with GcEravis dated as of December 17, 2012, previoulglgt With the SEC
on December 18, 2012 as Exhibit 10.6 to the Comiga@yrrent Report on Form 8-K, which is incorpodhteerein by
reference

Capped Call Confirmation for the 2018 Notes, d&etbber 8, 2013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutioaldnd Bank of
America, N.A., previously filed with the SEC on Ober 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s €nirReport on Form 8-
K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Capped Call Confirmation for the 2020 Notes, d@etbber 8, 2013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutical and Bank of
America, N.A., previously filed with the SEC on Ober 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s €nrReport on Form 8-
K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Capped Call Confirmation for the 2018 Notes, da@etbber 8, 2013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutioal&and Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLC, previously filed with the SEC @ttober 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.3 to the Compafylsrent Report on
Form €K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Capped Call Confirmation for the 2020 Notes, da&etbber 8, 2013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutioaland Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLC, previously filed with the SEC @ttober 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.4 to the Compafylsrent Report on
Form €K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Capped Call Confirmation for the 2018 Notes, d&etbber 8, 2013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutioal and Barclays
Bank PLC, previously filed with the SEC on Octoliér 2013 as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Curregppdt on Form 8-K,
which is incorporated herein by referen

Capped Call Confirmation for the 2020 Notes, d&@etbber 8, 2013, between BioMarin Pharmaceutiaal and Barclays
Bank PLC, previously filed with the SEC on Octoliér 2013 as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Curregppdt on Form 8-K,
which is incorporated herein by referen

Additional Capped Call Confirmation for the 2018thi®, dated October 9, 2013, between BioMarin Pheentacal Inc. and
Bank of America, N.A., previously filed with the 8Ebn October 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.7 to the Comijsa@urrent Report on
Form ¢-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Additional Capped Call Confirmation for the 2020thi®, dated October 9, 2013, between BioMarin Pheemtacal Inc. and
Bank of America, N.A., previously filed with the 8Ebn October 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.8 to the Comijsa@urrent Report on
Form &K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Additional Capped Call Confirmation for the 2018thi®, dated October 9, 2013, between BioMarin Pheentacal Inc. and
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, previously filed with tt8£C on October 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.9 to the @amg’s Current
Report on Form-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Additional Capped Call Confirmation for the 2020thi®, dated October 9, 2013, between BioMarin Pheemtacal Inc. and
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, previously filed with ti&EC on October 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.10 to then@my’s Current
Report on Form-K, which is incorporated herein by referen
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Additional Capped Call Confirmation for the 2018thi®, dated October 9, 2013, between BioMarin Pheemtacal Inc. and
Barclays Bank PLC, previously filed with the SEC@atober 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.11 to the Compa@yigent Report on
Form €K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Additional Capped Call Confirmation for the 2020thi®, dated October 9, 2013, between BioMarin Pheentacal Inc. and
Barclays Bank PLC, previously filed with the SEC@atober 11, 2013 as Exhibit 10.12 to the Compa@yigent Report on
Form €K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Contract of Purchase and Sale and Joint Escrowubigins, dated December 17, 2013, for the SandR&farporate Center, by
and among BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc., throughvitelly-owned subsidiary, California Corporate GanAcquisition, LLC,

SR Corporate Center Phase One, LLC, and SR CogGeatter Phase Twapreviously filed with the SEC on
February 26, 2014 as Exhibit 10.68 to the CompaAwisual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporatet
herein by referenc.

Asset Purchase Agreement, between BioMdramrRaceutical Inc., BioMarin GALNS Ltd. and Regemrelreland dated July
29, 2014, previously filed with the SEC on OctoB8r 2014 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QuartBeyport on Form 10-Q,
which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of Tender and Support Agreement byaenang BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc., BioMarin Faled@V. and shareholders
of Prosensa Holding N.V., previously filed with t8&C on November 26, 2014 as Exhibit 10.2 to thea@my’s Current
Report on Form-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Convertible Promissory Note, dated as ofévayer 26, 2014, between Prosensa Holding N.V. aobl&in Falcons B.V.,
previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Comp’ Current Report on Form-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 2014 Inducement Péatgpted December 17, 2014, previously filed wigh S3EC on
December 23, 2014 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K, which is incorporated herein by referen

Form of Contingent Value Rights Agreemeated as of January 14, 2015, by and between BioMérarmaceutical Inc.,
BioMarin Falcons B.V. and American Stock Transfef&st Company, LLC, previously filed with the SBE January 16,
2015 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compi Current Report on Forrr-K, which is incorporated by reference her

Form of Stock Options Agreement for the BioMariraRhaceutical Inc. 2014 Inducement Plan.

Form of Agreement Regarding Restricted Share Uaitthe BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 2014 Inducetri@ian.
Subsidiaries of BioMarin Pharmaceutical |

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting Firm for BioMarin Pharmaceutical It
Power of Attorney (Included in Signature Pa

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as
amended

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities EmghaAct of 1934, as
amended

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3% adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Testification accompanies this report and shat] ercept to the extent
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be dekfited for purposes of 8§18 of the Securities Exae Act of 1934, as
amended

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Documi

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbat

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docurr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Link Docurr
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

Dated: March 2, 201 By: /S/ DANIEL SPIEGELMAN
Daniel Spiegelmar
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persbose signature appears below constitutes anuirgpplean-Jacques
Bienaimé and Daniel Spiegelman, his or her attoindwct, with the power of substitution, for him leer in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to the Report on Form 10-K and tolidesame, with exhibits thereto and other documartgennection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratjfgimd confirming all that each of said attorneysaict, or his substitute or substitutes, may
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated:

Signature Title Date
/S/ JEAN-JACQUES BIENAIME Chief Executive Officer March 2, 2015
Jear-Jacques Bienaimé (Principal Executive Officer)
/S/ DANIEL SPIEGELMAN Executive Vice President and March 2, 2015
Daniel Spiegelmar Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
/S/ BRIAN R. MUELLER Group Vice President, Corporate Controller March 2, 2015
Brian R. Mueller and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounti@ficer)
/S/ PIERRE LAPALME Chairman and Director March 2, 2015
Pierre LaPalme
/S| KENNETH BATE Director March 2, 2015
Kenneth Bate
/S/ MICHAEL G. GREY Director March 2, 2015
Michael G. Grey
/S/ ELAINE HERON Director March 2, 2015
Elaine Heron
Director March 2, 2015
V. Bryan Lawlis
Director March 2, 2015

Alan J. Lewis

/S/ RICHARD A. MEIER Director March 2, 2015
Richard A. Meier

/S/ DENNIS J. SLAMON Director March 2, 2015
Dennis J. Slamor

IS/ WILLIAM YOUNG Director March 2, 2015
William Young
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. and slidgnsés as of December 31, 2014
2013, and the related consolidated statementsexfitipns, comprehensive loss, stockholdecglity, and cash flows for each of the years il
three-year period ended December 31, 2014. These coasatidinancial statements are the responsibilitthefCompanys management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesobidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all matemgpects, the financial position of BioMe
Pharmaceutical Inc. and subsidiaries as of DeceBhe2014 and 2013, and the results of their ofmratand their cash flows for each of

years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2014, in conformitly U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo#united States), BioMar
Pharmaceutical Inc.’s internal control over finahdieporting as of December 31, 2014, based oeriitestablished itnternal Control-
Integrated Framework (201issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatahthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our r¢
dated March 2, 2015 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe effectiveness of the Company’s internatmd over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
March 2, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.:

We have audited BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. angsgliaries’ (he Company) internal control over financial repaytas of December &
2014, based on criteria establishednternal Control — Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatad
the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companyianagement is responsible for maintaining effectnternal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissra# internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanying Management’
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing in Item 9a. Our responsibility is to expes opinion on the Compayinterna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilfq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aatli@ing the design and operating effectivenedatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaWe believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsksurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria establishedlimernal Control — Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadre
Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@wnited States), the consolids
balance sheets of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. aarzbidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013thencelated consolidated statemen:
operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ ggaitd cash flows for each of the years in theetdyaar period ended December 31, 2
and our report dated March 2, 2015 expressed amalifigd opinion on those consolidated financiattsinents.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
March 2, 2015




BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats)

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 875,48t $ 568,781
Shor-term investment 69,70¢ 215,94:
Accounts receivable, net (allowance for doubtfidasts: $490 and $529,
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti 144,47 117,82
Inventory 199,45: 162,60¢
Current deferred tax asst 31,20: 30,561
Other current asse 105,31( 41,707
Total current asse 1,425,62! 1,137,41
Noncurrent asset
Investment in BioMarin/Genzyme LL 1,03¢ 816
Long-term investment 97,85¢ 267,70(
Property, plant and equipment, | 523,51¢ 319,31¢
Intangible assets, n 156,57¢ 163,14
Goodwill 54,25¢ 54,25¢
Long-term deferred tax asse 166,29¢ 145,23¢
Other asset 65,281 156,17
Total asset $ 2,490,45. $ 2,244,06(
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 235,73¢ % 183,271
Total current liabilities 235,73¢ 183,27
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term convertible det 657,97¢ 655,56¢
Long-term contingent acquisition consideration pay: 38,7617 30,79(
Other lon¢-term liabilities 30,077 33,392
Total liabilities 962,55¢ 903,01¢
Stockholder' equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 250,000,000 starderized at
December 31, 2014 and 2013: 149,093,647 andl63%68 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012@b8, respectively 149 144
Additional paic-in capital 2,359,74« 2,059,10:
Company common stock held by Nonqualified Defe@ednpensation Pla (9,695) (7,427)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 27,46¢ 5,01¢
Accumulated defici (849,77() (715,807
Total stockholder equity 1,527,89: 1,341,04:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 2,490,45. $ 2,244,06(

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottlEmsolidated Financial Statements.




BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats)

REVENUES:
Net product revenue
Collaborative agreement revent
Royalty, license and other revent
Total revenue:
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sale:
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Intangible asset amortization and contingent casitibn
Gain on sale of intangible as:
Total operating expens
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
Equity in the loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LL
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Debt conversion expen:
Other income (expens
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Provision for (benefit from) income tax
NET LOSS

NET LOSS PER SHARE, BASIC AND DILUTED
Weighted average common shares outstanding, bagidiluted

2014

2013

2012

$ 738,41¢ $ 538,36( $ 496,49’
1,592 3,91¢ 1,95¢

11,03z 6,207 2,271
751,04( 548,48t 500,72:
129,76« 95,747 91,83(
461,54: 354,78( 302,21¢
302,15¢ 235,35¢ 198,17:
17,96¢ 18,61 18,717
(67,500 —
843,93 704,49; 610,93¢
(92,89)) (156,007 (110,219

(877) (1,149 (1,221)

5,937 3,08 2,584
(36,642) (10,447 (7,639)

(674) (12,965) —

279 982 (1,787)

(124,869 (176,509 (118,279
9,101 (150) (3,931)

$ (133,969 $ (176,359 $  (114,34)
$ 0.92) $ (1.28) $ (0.95)
146,34¢ 137,75 120,271

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats)

NET LOSS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS):
Net foreign currency gain (los
Available-for-sale securities

Unrealized holding gain arising during the period,
net of tax impact of $(2,931), $(3,535) and $(1#r the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, regplc

Reclassifications to net loss, net of tax impack@f$0
and $40 for the years ended December 31, 2@4R 2
and 2012, respectivel

Net change in unrealized holding gains, net of
Cash flow hedge:

Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during tlegipd, net of tax
impact of $(1,214), $789 and $5,114 for the yeaded
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecti

Less reclassifications to net loss, net of tax iobjpa $(365),
$(28) and $2,153 for the years ended Decemhe2(BIH,
2013 and 2012, respective

Net change in unrealized holding gains (loss) ofiéax
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF TAX
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

2014

2013

2012

$ (133,969 $ (176,359 (114,347
(75 361 (301)

5,08¢ 6,275 388

— @) (110

5,08¢ 6,274 278
18,07¢ (1,366) (8,749

643 49 (3,687

17,43¢ (1,415) (5,06€)
22,44¢ 5,22C (5,08¢)

$ (111,52) $ (171,139 (119,436

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In thousands of U.S. dollars and share amounts ithousands)

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net loss

Other comprehensive lo

Issuance of common stock, net of offering c

Issuance of common stock under the
2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the ESPP

Exercise of common stock optio

Excess tax benefit from stock option exerc

Conversion of convertible not

Restricted stock vested during the period,

Common stock held by Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Pl

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net loss
Other comprehensive incor
Purchase of capped call share options, net ¢
Issuance of convertible debt, net of tax and affgri
Ccosts
Issuance of common stock under ES
Exercise of common stock optio
Excess tax benefit from stock option exerc
Conversion of convertible not
Restricted stock vested during the period,
Common stock held by Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Pl

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net loss
Other comprehensive incor
Issuance of common stock, net of offering c
Issuance of common stock under E<
Exercise of common stock optio
Excess tax benefit from stock option exerc
Conversion of convertible not
Restricted stock vested during the period,
Common stock held by Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Pl

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance at December 31, 2C

Company
Common
Stock
Held by
Nonqualified ~ Accumulated
Additional Deferred Other Total
Common stock Paid-in Compensatior Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Plan Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
114,79C $ 115 $1,197,08! $ (3,93%) $ 4,887 $ (425,10) $ 773,04¢
(114,349 (114,347
(5,08¢) (5,08¢)
6,50C 7 235,49: 235,49¢
254 5,49t 5,49t
4,097 4 77,562 77,56¢€
473 473
6 105 105
162 (1,65¢) (1,65¢)
(2,66¢) (2,66¢)
47,34( 47,34(
125,80¢ $ 126 $1,561,89( $ (6,60%) $ (202) $ (539,448 $ 1,015,76.
(176,357 (176,357)
5,22C 5,22C
(19,06%) (19,06%)
99,87¢ 99,87¢
254 6,83¢ 6,83¢
2,88t 4 65,73¢ 65,74(
733 733
14,31: 14 283,30¢ 283,31¢
203 (6,397) (6,397)
(818) (818)
66,181 66,181
143,46 $ 144 $2,059,10. $ (7,421) $ 5,01€ $ (715,80) $ 1,341,04:
(133,969 (133,969
22,44¢ 22,44¢
1,50C 1 117,46: 117,46¢
258 8,714 8,714
2,564 3 71,187 71,19C
1,491 1,491
1,05& 1 21,32 21,32¢
253 (7,76%) (7,76%)
(2,274) (2,274)
88,23¢ 88,23¢
149,09« $ 149 $2,359,74: $ (9,695 $ 27,46€ $ (849,77(0) $ 1,527,89:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Non-cash interest expen
Accretion of discount on investmer
Stocl-based compensatic
Gain on sale of intangible as:
Gain on termination of leas
Equity in the loss of BioMarin/Genzyme LL
Impairment of intangible asse
Deferred income taxe
Excess tax benefit from stock option exerc
Unrealized foreign exchange gain on forward corms
Nor-cash changes in the fair value of contingent adprisconsideration payab
Debt conversion expen
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventory
Other current asse
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipn
Restricted funds held in escrow for the purchasganf Rafael Corporate Center (the SR
Maturities and sales of investme
Purchase of availal-for-sale investment
Proceeds from sale of intangible as
Business acquisitions, net of cash acqu
Investments in BioMarin/Genzyme LL
Investment in convertible promissory n
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercises of stock options and E
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of yequitirds
Proceeds from convertible senior note offering,
Purchase of capped call share opti
Proceeds from public offering of common stock,
Excess tax benefit from stock option exerc
Payments for debt conversi
Payment of contingent acquisition consideratiorajnés
Other
Net cash provided by financing activiti
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivaler
Beginning of perioc
End of perioc
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES:
Cash paid for interest, net of interest capitalired fixed asset
Cash paid for income tax
Stocl-based compensation capitalized into inven
Depreciation capitalized into inventc
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES FROM
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and ad@béities related to fixed asse
Conversion of convertible de
Deferred offering costs reclassified into additiopaid-in-capital as a
result of conversion of convertible d¢

2014 2013 2012
(133,969 (176,359 (114,347
56,744 47,26¢ 44,33t
27,22t 5,87E 960
7,211 5,78( 4,46¢
88,232 66,181 47,34¢
(67,500) — —
(10,092) = =
877 1,14¢ 1,221
= 939 6,707
(25,487 (9,15€) (9,921)
(1,491) (733) (473
(832 (659) (6,529)
11,567 10,197 8,78¢
674 12,96¢ —
3,637 = 2,00C
(26,650) (8,756) (4,227)
(36,847) (33,910) 1,427
(2,211) (12,079 (3,50€)
(6,43E) 1,67€ (4,076)
38,71C 20,42( 37,411
3,002 9,55¢ 6,034
(73,539) (59,63/) 17,60¢
(118,839 (65,124 (44,571)
— (116,500) —
808,31 288,64: 237,83
(507,03¢) (395,047) (382,16¢)
67,50( = =
— (9,875) —
(1,100) (885) (1,749
(52,28¢) — (5,000)
(2,000) = =
194 55¢ (298,789 (195,64%)
79,90¢ 72,57¢ 83,061
(7,76¢) (6,397) (1,655
— 726,20: —
= (29,819 =
117,46« — 235,49¢
1,491 733 473
(674) (12,965) —
(4,691) (3,061) (4,405)
(37) (607) (679)
185,68¢ 746,67 312,291
306,70 388,25¢ 134, 25¢
568,781 180,52; 46,27:
875,48¢ 568,781 180,52
9,324 2,15¢ 6,665
34,98¢ 14,897 6,582
8,16€ 6,121 4,347
10,952 11,01¢ 7,33¢
16,76€ 5,001 (511)
21,32¢ 283,31¢ 105
158 2,765 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share armats or as otherwise disclosed)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS RISKS

BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (the Company or BioMpara Delaware corporation, develops and commkzeminnovative
biopharmaceuticals for serious diseases and mezbealitions. BioMarin selects product candidatesdieeases and conditions that represent
significant unmet medical need, have well-undemtoiology and provide an opportunity to be firstrbarket or offer a significant benefit over
existing products. The Company’s product portfidicomprised of five approved products and multgieical and pre-clinical product
candidates. The Company’s approved products aréz\fin{elosulfase alpha), Naglazyme (galsulfase)a¢u(sapropterin dihydrochloride),
Aldurazyme (laronidase) and Firdapse (amifamprigihesphate).

Through December 31, 2014, the Company had acctedulasses of approximately $849.8 million. The @amy expects to continue to
finance future cash needs that exceed its operatitigties primarily through its current cash, le@gjuivalents, short-term and long-term
investments, and to the extent necessary, throumgepds from equity or debt financings, loans asithlborative agreements with corporate
partners. If the Company elects to increase itadipg on development programs significantly abaweent long-term plans or enters into
potential licenses and other acquisitions of comgletary technologies, products or companies, thragaoy may need additional capital.

The Company is subject to a number of risks, inalgidthe financial performance of Vimizim, NaglazgnKuvan, Aldurazyme and
Firdapse; the potential need for additional finagsi the Company’s ability to successfully commadize its approved product candidates, if
approved; the uncertainty of the Company’s reseanchdevelopment (R&D) efforts resulting in futsteccessful commercial products; the
Companys ability to successfully obtain regulatory appidea new products; significant competition fronrdar organizations; reliance on-
proprietary technology of others; dependence ongergonnel; uncertain patent protection; dependenamrporate partners and collaborators
and possible restrictions on reimbursement fromegawental agencies and healthcare organizationgelaas other changes in the health care
industry.

(2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of Presentatiol

These Consolidated Financial Statements have lrepaned in accordance with accounting principlesegaly accepted in the United
States (U.S. GAAP) and include the accounts of BidMand its wholly owned subsidiaries. All signdnt intercompany transactions have
been eliminated. Management performed an evaluafitile Company’s activities through the date lifidj of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K, and has concluded that there are no subsequentseexcept for the transactions disclosed in I26tto these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make juelgt®s, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftsssd liabilities, disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities at the dates of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenukesx@enses during the reporting period. Actuallteswuld differ from those estimates.

(3) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company treats liquid investments with origimaturities of three months or less when purchassthsh and cash equivalents.

Investments

The Company determines the appropriate classificadf its investments in debt and equity securitiethe time of purchase and
reevaluates such designations at each balancedstee®All of the Company’s securities are clasdifas available-for-sale and reported in
short-term investments, other assets or long-takm@stments. Available-for-sale investments arendembat fair market value, with unrealized
gains or losses included in Accumulated Other Cefmgmnsive Income on the Company’s Consolidated Bal&Mheets, exclusive of other-than-
temporary impairment losses, if any. Investmenescamprised of corporate securities, commerciaépdp.S. federal government agency
securities and certificates of deposit.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats or as otherwise disclosed)

Inventory

The Company values inventory at the lower of costai realizable value and determines the costwaritory using the average-cost
method. Inventories consist of currently marketsatipcts and may contain certain products awaitigylatory approval. In evaluating the
recoverability of inventories produced in prepamatior product launches, the Company considersikbkhood that revenue will be obtained
from the future sale of the related inventory tbgetwith the status of the product within the regoy approval process.

The Company analyzes its inventory levels quartanig writes down inventory that has become obsobeteas a cost basis in excess of
its expected net realizable value and inventonntjties in excess of expected requirements. Inyapgithe lower of cost or net realizable ve
to pre-launch inventory, the Company estimateqigeaf likely commercial prices based on its coraplr commercial products. Expired
inventory is disposed of and the related costseregnized as Cost of Sales in the Company’s Citaetl Statements of Operations.

Inventories Produced in Preparation for Product Laghes

The Company capitalizes inventories produced ipgmation for product launches based upon the pilityadf regulatory approval and
earning future revenues. Typically, capitalizatadrsuch inventory begins when positive results Hasen obtained for the clinical trials that
Company believes are necessary to support regulapproval, uncertainties regarding ultimate retgulaapproval have been significantly
reduced and the Company has determined it is plelbiast these capitalized costs will provide somtere economic benefit in excess of
capitalized costs. The material factors considésethe Company in evaluating these uncertaintielsidte the receipt and analysis of positive
pivotal clinical trial results for the underlyingquuct candidate, results from meetings with thevent regulatory authorities prior to the filing
of regulatory applications, and the compilatiorttad regulatory application. The Company closely itowa the status of each respective pro
within the regulatory approval process, includitigelevant communication with regulatory autha@#i The Company also considers its
historical experience with manufacturing and conuiadizing similar products and the relevant produatdidate. If the Company is aware of
any specific material risks or contingencies othan the normal regulatory review and approval @sscor if there are any specific issues
identified relating to safety, efficacy, manufadabgy, marketing or labeling, the related inventorguld generally not be capitalized.

For inventories that are capitalized in preparatibproduct launch, anticipated future sales, etgzbapproval date and shelf lives are
evaluated in assessing realizability. The shedfdif a product is determined as part of the regofedpproval process; however, in evaluating
whether to capitalize pre-launch inventory produrtitosts, the Company considers the product statdita of all of the pre-approval
production to date to determine whether there éxjadte expected shelf life for the capitalizedlpteich production costs.

Investment in BioMarin/Genzyme LLC and Equity in éhLoss of BioMarin/Genzyme LL(

The Company accounts for its investment in BioM&@gnzyme LLC (the LLC), the joint venture betwelba Company and Genzyme
Corporation (Genzyme), using the equity method.oidingly, the Company records an increase in itgstment for contributions to
BioMarin/Genzyme LLC and a reduction in its investihfor its 50% share of any losses of the LLCisbdrsements of profits from the LLC.
Equity in the loss of the LLC includes the Company0% share of the LLC’s loss for the period. Tieestment in the LLC includes the
Company’s share of the net equity of the LLC.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats or as otherwise disclosed)

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are stated at casifremcumulated depreciation. Depreciation is cotag using the straight-line method
over the related estimated useful lives as predentthe table below. Significant additions and imgments are capitalized, while repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurrgue®r@and equipment purchased for specific reseandrdevelopment (R&D) projects with
no alternative uses are expensed as incurred.

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of life of asset or lease te
Building and improvement 20 to 50 year
Manufacturing and laboratory equipm 5to 15 year:
Computer hardware and softwz 3 to 8 year:

Office furniture and equipmel 5 years

Vehicles 5 years

Land improvement 10 years

Land Not applicable
Constructiorin-progress Not applicable

Certain of the Company’s operating lease agreeniecitede scheduled rent escalations over the leasg as well as tenant
improvement allowances. Scheduled increases iresgrense are recognized on a stralgig-basis over the lease term. The difference bet
rent expense and rent paid is recorded as defeerédnd included in other liabilities in the acqanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
tenant improvement allowances and free rent peaoelsecognized as a reduction of rent expensetbgdease term on a straight-line basis.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

The Company records goodwill in a business comiginatvhen the total consideration exceeds the fainer of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwilll éntangible assets with indefinite lives are amtortized but subject to an annual impairn
analysis. Intangible assets with finite lives ameoatized over their estimated useful lives on aigtit-line basis.

The Company performs its annual impairment reviégamdwill and indefinite lived intangibles durinige fourth quarter and whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrgingunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Ifdetermined that the full carrying amount of
an asset is not recoverable, an impairment losirded in the amount by which the carrying amaiihe asset exceeds its fair value. The
Company currently operates in one business segthenjopharmaceutical development and commereiidiza segment. When reviewing
goodwill for impairment, the Company assesses wdregbodwill should be allocated to operating levelger than its single operating segm
for which discrete financial information is availaland reviewed for decision making purposes. Thasger levels are referred to as reporting
units. As of December 31, 2014, the Company hag @mé reporting unit.

The Company tests finiteved intangible assets for impairment when faatgiccumstances suggest that the carrying valuthefasse
may not be recoverable. If the carrying value essabe projected undiscounted pas-cash flows of the intangible asset, an impaitnes:
equal to the excess of the carrying value oveettignated fair value (discounted after-tax castvslois recognized.

The recoverability of the carrying value of the Gmmy’s buildings, leasehold improvements for itsifées and equipment depends on
the successful execution of the Company’s busimiatives and its ability to earn sufficient rets on approved products and product
candidates. The Company continually monitors evantschanges in circumstances that could indiGtyiog amounts of its fixed assets may
not be recoverable. When such events or changgsciimstances occur, the Company assesses reciitgtapdetermining whether the
carrying value of such assets will be recoveredugh the undiscounted expected future cash flawiselfuture undiscounted cash flows are
less than the carrying amount of these asset§ dhgany recognizes an impairment loss based oaxitess of the carrying amount over the
fair value of the assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats or as otherwise disclosed)

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasiveregdf an arrangement exists, delivery has oatutine price to the buyer is fix
or determinable and collection from the customee&sonably assured.

Net Product RevenuesThe Company recognizes revenues from product s4ies title and risk of loss have passed to théooues,
which typically occurs upon delivery. Product salessactions are evidenced by customer purchasesprcustomer contracts, invoices and/o
the related shipping documents. Upon recognitioreeénue from product sales, provisions are madgdeernment rebates such as Medicaid
reimbursements, customer incentives such as casbhuits for prompt payment, distributor fees amuketed returns of expired products, as
appropriate. Amounts collected from customers amitted to governmental authorities, which are prity comprised of value-added taxes
related to product sales in foreign jurisdictioase presented on a net basis in the Company’s Gdatenl Statements of Operations, in that
taxes billed to customers are not included as gpoment of net product revenues.

In the U.S., the Company’s commercial productsgamerally sold to specialty pharmacies or end-useich as hospitals, which act as
retailers. The Company also sells Kuvan to Merdloe S.A. (Merck Serono) at a price near its mactuféng cost, and Merck Serono resells
the product to end users outside the U.S., Canadldapan. The royalty earned from Kuvan produa bglMerck Serono in the EU is
included as a component of net product revenudiseiperiod earned. Outside the U.S., the Compamytsmercial products are sold to its
authorized distributors or directly to governmeatghasers or hospitals, which act as the end-users.

The Company receives a 39.5% to 50% royalty ondvade net Aldurazyme sales by Genzyme dependirgpt®s volume, which is
included in Net Product Revenues in the Compangss0lidated Statements of Operations. The Compagngnizes a portion of this amount
as product transfer revenue when product is retems&enzyme because all of the Compamerformance obligations are fulfilled at thatry
and title to, and risk of loss for, the product hasisferred to Genzyme. The product transfer neeeapresents the fixed amount per unit of
Aldurazyme that Genzyme is required to pay the Camypf the product is unsold by Genzyme. The amofiproduct transfer revenue will
eventually be deducted from the calculated royadtsned when the product is sold by Genzyme. Thepaasnrecords the Aldurazyme royalty
revenue based on net sales information provide@diyzyme and records product transfer revenue lms#te fulfillment of Genzyme
purchase orders in accordance with the terms afelagéed agreements with Genzyme and when theatitlerisk of loss for the product is
transferred to Genzyme.

The Company records reserves for rebates payalker ihedicaid and other government programs asuctieh of revenue at the time
product revenues are recorded. The Company’s resafeulations require estimates, including estmatt customer mix, to determine which
sales will be subject to rebates and the amousticifi rebates. The Company updates its estimatessanchptions each quarter and record:
necessary adjustments to its reserves. The Conrpaoyds fees paid to distributors as a reductiaeeénue.

The Company records allowances for product retufagpropriate, as a reduction of revenue atithe product sales are recorded.
Several factors are considered in determining wdredh allowance for product returns is requirediuiding market exclusivity of the products
based on their orphan drug status, the patientlptpn, the customers’ limited return rights and thompany’s experience with returns.
Because of the pricing of the Company’s commemmiatiucts, the limited number of patients and thea@mers’ limited return rights, most
customers and retailers carry a limited inventory.

However, certain international customers, usuatlyegnment entities, tend to purchase larger questitf product less frequently.
Although such buying patterns may result in revefhugtuations from quarter to quarter, the Comphag not experienced any increased
product returns or risk of product returns. The @any relies on historical return rates to estimmaterns. Genzyme's contractual return rights
for Aldurazyme are limited to defective productsBd on these factors and the fact that the Comipasiyiot experienced significant product
returns to date, management has concluded thatigroeturns will be minimal. In the future, if anythese factors and/or the history of
product returns change, an allowance for produatme may be required.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats or as otherwise disclosed)

Collaborative Agreement Revenuegollaborative agreement revenues include botm$ieaevenue and contract research revenue.

Activities under collaborative agreements are eatgld to determine if they represent a multiple elennevenue arrangement. The
Company identifies the deliverables included witthia agreement and evaluates which deliverablessept separate units of accounting. The
Company accounts for those components as sepanigdeotiaccounting if the following two criteriaeamet:

« The delivered item or items have value to the gustoon a stand-alone basis; and

« If there is a general right of return relative lte delivered items, delivery or performance ofuhdelivered items is considered probable
and within the Compar's control.

Factors considered in this determination includegag other things, whether any other vendors Belitems separately and if the
licensee could use the delivered item for its ideghpurpose without the receipt of the remainingeebles. If multiple deliverables included
in an arrangement are separable into differensufifccounting, the Company allocates the arrargégonsideration to those units of
accounting. The amount of allocable arrangemensideration is limited to amounts that are fixedleterminable. Arrangement consideration
is allocated at the inception of the arrangemettieadentified units of accounting based on thelimtive estimated selling price. Revenue is
recognized for each unit of accounting when the@mpate revenue recognition criteria are met.

Nonrefundable up-front license fees where the Campas continuing involvement through R&D collakiara are initially deferred and
recognized as collaborative agreement license tevewer the estimated period for which the Compaontinues to have a performance
obligation.

Future milestone payments that are contingent tpemchievement of a substantive milestone aregreézed in their entirety in the
period in which the milestone is achieved. A mibest is substantive if:

« It can only be achieved based in whole or in pargither the Company’s performance or on the oecue of a specific outcome
resulting from the Compa’s performance

» There is substantive uncertainty at the date aangement is entered into that the event will béeaetd; anc
It would result in additional payments being du¢ht® entity.

Royalty, License and Other RevenaeRoyalty revenues includes royalties on net salggaducts with which the Company has no
direct involvement and is recognized based on igtarted by licensees or sublicensees and remtafria associated with the tenants in the
SRCC which is recognized on a straight-line bagés the term of the respective lease. Royaltiesezegnized as earned in accordance with
the contract terms at the time the royalty amosifixed or determinable based on information remeifrom the sublicensees and at the time
collectibility is reasonably assured.

Due to the significant role the Company plays i tiperations (primarily the manufacturing and ratprly activities) of Aldurazyme and
Kuvan as well as the rights and responsibilitiedativer the products to Genzyme and Merck Seroerpectively, the Company elected not to
classify these royalties earned as royalty, licemskother revenues but instead to include theancasnponent of Net Product Revenues in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Research and Developme

R&D expenses include expenses associated withaimsearch and development provided by thirdgsannost product manufacturi
prior to regulatory approval, clinical and regulgteosts, and internal R&D costs. In instances wlike Company enters into agreements witk
third parties for R&D activities, costs are expahapon the earlier of when non-refundable amourggiae or as services are performed unles
there is an alternative future use of the fundstiver R&D projects. Amounts due under such arraraggsnmay be either fixed fee or fee for
service and may include upfront payments, montalynpents and payments upon the completion of mitestor receipt of deliverables. The
Company accrues costs for clinical trial activitiesed upon the services received and estimatetatéd expenses incurred that have yet to b
invoiced by the vendors that perform the activities
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats or as otherwise disclosed)

Convertible Debt Transactions

The Company separately accounts for the liabilitgt aquity components of convertible debt instruraé¢imat can be settled in cash by
allocating the proceeds from issuance betweeridahdity component and the embedded conversioroaptir equity component, in accordance
with accounting for convertible debt instrumentattimay be settled in cash (including partial cagtiesnent) upon conversion. The value of
equity component is calculated by first measurhmgfair value of the liability component, using theerest rate of a similar liability that does
not have a conversion feature, as of the issuaaige @he difference between the proceeds fromdheestible debt issuance and the amount
measured as the liability component is recordetti@quity component with a corresponding discoeodrded on the debt. The Company
recognizes the accretion of the resulting discoginig the effective interest method as part ofrbgeExpense in its Consolidated Statemen
Operations.

Net Loss Per Common Sha

Basic net loss per share is calculated by divigiegloss by the weighted average shares of comitock sutstanding during the period.
Diluted net loss per share reflects the potentlatidn that would occur if securities or other ¢@tts to issue common stock were exercised ¢
converted into common stock; however, potential wam equivalent shares are excluded if their effeanti-dilutive. The Company currently
has no dilutive securities due to the net losstjprsand as such, basic and diluted net loss pedire the same for the periods presented.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricingehto determine the fair value of stock optiond the Company’s ESPP awards.
The determination of the fair value of stock-bapagiment awards using an option-pricing model iscéd by the Company’s stock price as
well as assumptions regarding a number of compieksabjective variables. Stock-based compensakipersse is recognized on a straitjhe
basis over the requisite service period for eacardwFurther, stock-based compensation expensgnizeal in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations is based on awards expctest and therefore the amount of expense s teduced for estimated forfeitures,
which are based on historical experience. If addéitures differ from estimates at the time odugt they will be revised in subsequent
periods.

The Company uses a lattice model with a Monte Caintwulation to value restricted stock unit awardshywerformance and market
conditions. This valuation methodology utilizes thesing price of the Company’s common stock omgdate and several key assumptions,
including expected volatility of the Company’s ftqarice, risk-free rates of return, expected dindigield and estimated total shareholder
return.

If factors change and different assumptions areleyegd in determining the fair value of stock-bas&drds, the stock-based
compensation expense recorded in future periodsdifi@y significantly from what was recorded in tbarrent period. See Note 17 to these
Consolidated Financial Statements for further infation.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Ple

The Company’s Nonqualified Deferred Compensati@anFthe Deferred Compensation Plan) allows eligénigloyees, including
members of the Company’s Board of Directors (thah management and certain highly-compensatedbgers as designated by the
Deferred Compensation Plan’s administrative conaajtto make voluntary deferrals of compensatiaperified dates, retirement or death.
Participants are permitted to defer portions ofrthalary, annual cash bonus and restricted sfité.Company is not allowed to make
additional direct contributions to the Deferred Gumsation Plan on behalf of the participants witHotther action by the Board.

All of the investments held in the Deferred Comdius Plan are classified as trading securitiesrandrded at fair value with changes
in the investments’ fair values recognized as eain the period they occur. Company stock issuetlheld by the Deferred Compensation
Plan is accounted for similarly to treasury statkhat the value of the employer stock is deterohime the date the restricted stock vests and
the shares are issued into the Deferred Compendakim. The restricted stock issued into the Dete@ompensation Plan is recorded as
stockholders’ equity and changes in the fair valiihe corresponding liability are recognized imnéags as incurred. The corresponding
liability for the Deferred Compensation Plan isluted in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilitiad &®ther Long-Term Liabilities in the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Income Taxes

The Company calculates and provides for incomestaxeach of the tax jurisdictions in which it ogters. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities, measured using enacted tax ratesremegnized for the future tax consequences of teanpalifferences between the tax and
financial statement basis of assets and liabilitegaluation allowance reduces the deferred taetasto the amount that is more likely than no
to be realized. The Company establishes liabiltieeduces assets for uncertain tax positions wieiCompany believes certain tax positions
are not more likely than not of being sustainechidllenged. Each quarter, the Company evaluates tlngcertain tax positions and adjusts the
related tax assets and liabilities in light of ofiauy facts and circumstances.

The Company uses financial projections to suppemet deferred tax assets, which contain sigmifieasumptions and estimates of
future operations. If such assumptions were teedgfgnificantly, it may have a material impacttbe Company’s ability to realize its deferred
tax assets. At the end of each period, the Compédlhyeassess the ability to realize its deferraxi benefits. If it is more likely than not that the
Company would not realize the deferred tax benditsaluation allowance may need to be establisigathst all or a portion of the deferred
assets, which will result in a charge to tax expens

Foreign Currency and Other Hedging Instruments

The Company engages in transactions denominateddign currencies and, as a result, is exposetianges in foreign currency
exchange rates. To manage the volatility resuftiom fluctuating foreign currency exchange rathe, Company nets its exposures, where
possible to take advantage of natural offsets atet®into forward foreign currency exchange cangr&or the remaining exposures.

The Company accounts for its derivative instrumestgither assets or liabilities on the balancetstued measures them at fair value.
Derivatives that are not defined as hedging instmisare adjusted to fair value through earningsngand losses resulting from changes in
fair value are accounted for depending on the @ifieeaderivative and whether it is designated amalifies for hedge accounting.

The Company assess, both at inception and on avirangasis, whether the derivatives that are uséiging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting the changes in cash flowshe hedged items. The Company also assesses medfgetiveness on a monthly basis and
records the gain or loss related to the ineffeghorion to current earnings. If the Company detees that a forecasted transaction is no lo
probable of occurring, it discontinues hedge actingrfor the affected portion of the hedge instratand any related unrealized gain or loss
on the contract is recognized in current earnings.

See Note 11 to these Consolidated Financial Staitsmier further information.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company discloses the fair value of finanaiatiuments for assets and liabilities for whichvhbue is practicable to estimate. The
carrying amounts of all cash equivalents, shoritand long-term investments and forward exchangéacts approximate fair value based
upon quoted market prices. The fair values of ti@m®unts receivables, accounts payable and attarcial instruments approximate carrying
value due to their short-term nature, and woulddresidered level 2 items in the fair value hiergrch

Business Combination

The Company allocates the purchase price of adadjbinsinesses to the tangible and intangible aasegtsred and liabilities assumed
based upon their estimated fair values on the aitopni date. The purchase price allocation procegsires management to make significant
estimates and assumptions, especially at the atigaidate with respect to intangible assets argrotess research and development (IPR«
In connection with the purchase price allocatiarsacquisitions, the Company estimates the faimevalf contingent payments utilizing a
probability-based income approach inclusive of stimeated discount rate.

Contingent Acquisition Consideration Payable

The Company determines the fair value of contingenuisition consideration payable on the acqoisitlate using a probability-based
income approach utilizing an appropriate discoate.rEach reporting period thereafter, the Companglues these obligations and records
increases or decreases in their fair value as tdgrgs to Intangible Asset Amortization and ConginigConsideration in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Changdeifatr value of the contingent acquisition consatien payable can result from adjustmi
to the estimated probability and assumed timingatfieving the underlying milestones, as well amfahanges to the discount rates and
periods.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Accumulated Othentprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net inconss)land certain changes in stockholders’ equityateexcluded from net income
(loss), such as changes in unrealized gains asddam the Company’s available-for-sale securitieszalized gains (losses) on foreign
currency hedges and changes in the Company’s ctiweufareign currency translation account.

Reclassifications and Adjustmen

Certain items in the prior year's Consolidated Ritial Statements have been reclassified to confortine current presentation.

(4) RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for FASB Accounting Standards Update 2014A08U 2014-09)Revenue from Contracts with Customénsre have been no
new accounting pronouncements or changes to adgogymmbnouncements during the year ended Decenlhed(34, as compared to the rec
accounting pronouncements described in the Compakiyhual Report on Form 10-K for the year-endededger 31, 2013, that are of
significance or potential significance to the Compa

ASU 2014-09 will supersede the revenue recognittmuirements ilRevenue Recognition (Topic 6@B)d requires entities to recognize
revenue in a way that depicts the transfer of psechigoods or services to customers in an amoumntafiacts the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled to in exchange fosthgoods or services. ASU 2014-09 is effectiveaforual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim periods witthiat reporting period, which for the Company isuly 1, 2017. Early adoption is not
permitted. The new standard can be applied retrospectivedyati prior reporting period presented or retro$pagt
with the cumulative effect of the change recogniaethe date of the initial application in retairesningsThe Compan
is currently evaluating the potential impact thegttbn of ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidafethncial statements and has not yet
selected a transition method.

(5) INVESTMENTS

All investments were classified as available-foess December 31, 2014 and 2013. The amortizeld gasss unrealized holding gains
or losses, and fair value of the Company’s avadldbt-sale securities by major security type at Decer8tie2014 and 2013 are summarize
the tables below:

Aggregate Fair

Gross Gross Value at
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized December 31,
Cost Holding Gains  Holding Losses 2014
Certificates of depos $ 72,30z $ 1 $ — 3 72,30:
Corporate debt securitis 95,47¢ — (342 95,13¢
Greek governme-issued bond 50 73 — 123
Total $ 167,83 $ 74 3 (342) $ 167,56:
Aggregate Fair
Gross Gross Value at
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized December 31,
Cost Holding Gains  Holding Losses 2013
Certificates of depos $ 47,006 $ 2 3 — $ 47,01
Corporate debt securiti 341,51¢ 313 (423) 341,40¢
Commercial pape 86,154 24 — 86,17¢
U.S. Government agency securit 8,90C 1 — 8,901
Greek governme-issued bond 52 92 — 144
Total $ 483,637 $ 432 % (423) $ 483,64:

The Company has investments in marketable equityrges which are measured using quoted pricélsdir respective active market
that are considered strategic investments. As aeEBwber 31, 2014, the fair value of the Company&egic investments of $30.8 million
included an unrealized gain of $18.3 million. AdDEcember 31, 2013, the fair value of the Compastyategic investments of $13.0 million
includes an unrealized gain of $10.1 million. Thigsestments are recorded in Other Assets in thagamy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The fair values of available-for-sale securitiescbptractual maturity were as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013

Maturing in one year or les $ 69,70¢ $  215,94:
Maturing after one year through five ye 97,85¢ 267,70(
Total $ 167,56z $  483,64:

Impairment assessments are made at the individgaltisy level each reporting period. When the Yailue of an investment is less than
its cost at the balance sheet date, a determiniatimade as to whether the impairment is other-tearporary and, if it is other-thaemporary
an impairment loss is recognized in earnings etjutile difference between the investment’'s amattest and fair value at such date. As of
December 31, 2014, some of the Comparigvestments were in an unrealized loss positiawever, the Company has the ability and inte
hold all investments that have been in a contindass position until maturity or recovery, thusatber-than-temporary impairment is deemed
to have occurred.

See Note 12 to these Consolidated Financial Stattsnfier additional discussion regarding the faiueaof the Company’s available-for-
sale securities.

(6) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consisted of the following:

December 31

2014 2013

Intangible asset:
Finite-lived intangible asse $ 123,36t $ 118,24
Indefinite-lived intangible asse! 74,43( 74,43(
Gross intangible asse 197,79t 192,67-
Less: Accumulated amortizatic (41,217%) (29,52%)
Net carrying value $ 156,57¢ $ 163,14%

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets
The following table summarizes the annual amoiitratf the finite-lived intangible assets throud)23:

Net Balance at

December 31, Estimated Average Annual
2014 Useful Life Remaining Life Amortization

Repurchased royalty righ $ 60,18¢ 12 years 8.9years $ 6,75C

License payments for marketing approv 2,892 7 to 10 year 6.6 years 512

Acquired intellectual propert 16,91¢ 10 years 5.2 years 3,223
SRCC in-place and above market Remaining lease

tenant lease 2,14¢ terms Varies Varies

Total $ 82,14¢ $ 10,48¢
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Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
Indefinite-lived intangible assets consisted offihllowing:

December 31,

2014 2013
In-Process Research and Developm
Talazoparib (BMN 673 $ 35,15( $ 35,15(C
Reveglucosidase alfa (BMN 70 25,01C 25,01c
SENS-Pro technolog! 11,68(C 11,68(C
Other acquired p-clinical compound: 2,59C 2,59C
Net carrying value $ 74,430 $ 74,43(

Intangible assets related to IPR&D assets are dereil to be indefinitéved until the completion or abandonment of theoesated R&L
efforts. During the period the assets are consitier@efinite-lived, they will not be amortized bwiil be tested for impairment on an annual
basis and between annual tests if the Company kesamare of any events occurring or changes inmistances that would indicate a
reduction in the fair value of the IPR&D assetletheir respective carrying amounts. If and whenalopment is complete, which generally
occurs if and when regulatory approval to markptaduct is obtained, the associated assets woulidémed finite-lived and would then be
amortized based on their respective estimated Lisefg at that point in time.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company q@enked its annual impairment review and determiined mo impairments existed as
December 31, 2014.

During the first quarter of 2012, the Company réleoran impairment charge of $6.7 million relatedddain Firdapse IPR&D assets.
These IPR&D assets were associated with markeiggsrin the U.S. The Company was exploring stiiategtions for the Firdapse U.S.
program, including the potential outlicense of tigim the U.S. In March 2012, the Company recogha® impairment charge based on the
status of business development efforts at the éintethe related discounted cash flow projectioas i longer supported the carrying-value o
the IPR&D intangible assets. The impairment chavge included in Intangible Asset Amortization ansh@ngent Consideration in the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operationth®ear ended December 31, 2012.

(7) ACQUISITION OF SAN RAFAEL CORPORATE CENTER

In March 2014, the Company completed the acquisititthe real estate commonly known as the SaneR@farporate Center (SRCC),
located in San Rafael, California. SRCC is a miiliikding, commercial property where, prior to th@saction, the Company was leasing a
certain portion of the space for its headquartatsralated operating activities. The purpose of #uquisition is to allow for future expansiol
the Company’s corporate headquarters to accommadéitipated headcount growth. The acquisitionREE has been accounted for as a
business combination because the building andhtipeice leases met the definition of a businegsctounting Standards Codification 805
(ASC 805),Business CombinationEhe fair value of the consideration paid was $116ilfon, all of which was paid in cash, which whasld
in escrow as of December 31, 2013.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of assets acquired as of the date of adquisit

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Lives
Building and improvements $ 94,41¢ 50 years
Land 14,56t
Land improvement 3,61€ 10 years
Remaining
Intangible assel 3,905 lease term
Total identifiable net asse $ 116,50(

The fair values assigned to tangible and identiéamtangible assets acquired are based on managsmstimates and assumptions
using the information that was available as ofdate of the acquisition. The Company believesttiainformation provides a reasonable basi
for estimating the fair values of assets acquired.
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The following table sets forth the fair value oéttomponents of the identifiable intangible asaetpiired by asset class as of the date o
acquisition:

Above market lease $ 351
In-place lease 3,554
Total intangible assets subject to amortiza $ 3,90%

The value of any in-place leases is estimated teqol to the property owners’ avoidance of costensary to release the property for a
lease term equal to the remaining primary in-plaese term and the value of investment-grade tgnavitch is derived by estimating, based
on a review of the market, the cost to be borna pyoperty owner to replicate a market lease ferémaining in-place term. These costs
consist of: (i) rent lost during downtime (e.g.sasied periods of vacancy), (ii) estimated expetiggsvould be incurred by the property ow
during periods of vacancy, (iii) rent concessiong{ free rent), (iv) leasing commissions andéwant improvement allowances. The
Company determined these values using managenestit'sates along with third-party appraisals. ThenGany will amortize the capitalized
value of in-place lease intangible assets to expemnsr the remaining initial term of each leasee Tompany will amortize the capitalized
value of above market leases to expense over thaimig lives of the underlying leases.

The amount of third-party tenant revenue (incluitethe line item Royalty, License and Other Reveiirecluded in the Company’s
Consolidated of Operations for the year ended Déeer@1, 2014, was $4.0 million. The amount of nebme/loss from third-party tenants for
the year ended December 31, 2014, was insignifitento the Company’s Consolidated Statement of @joss.

SRCC's results of operations prior to the acquisitivere insignificant to the Company’s Consoliddt@thncial Statements.

Included in Selling, General and Administrative &% expenses are transaction costs incurred in eotion with the acquisition of
SRCC of $0.3 million during 2014. In connectioniwihe purchase of SRCC, the Company recognizethao§&8.8 million in the year ended
December 31, 2014, due to the early terminatiath@Company’s pre-existing lease and the realinaifdhe remaining balance in deferred
rent and the reversal of the related asset retineotdigation upon acquisition of the SRCC. $2.Tiom and $6.1 million of the gain were
included in SG&A and R&D expenses, respectivelye @Hocation of the gain to SG&A and R&D is consrgtwith the Company’s allocation
practices for facility costs for this previouslyaked space.

(8) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, net consisted ofdhewing:

December 31,

2014 2013

Leasehold improvemen $ 39,297 $ 73,42(
Building and improvement 335,99! 159,67¢
Manufacturing and laboratory equipmt 124,56« 95,12¢
Computer hardware and softw: 97,03 74,94¢
Furniture and equipmel 13,713 12,361
Land improvement 4,10€ —
Land 29,35¢ 11,60¢
Constructiorin-progress 108,34( 77,212
752,40t 504,35¢

Less: Accumulated depreciati (228,88¢) (185,047)
Total property, plant and equipment, $ 52351¢ $  319,31¢

The construction-in-process balance is primariljnpdsed of costs related to active constructiongats including the construction of a
laboratory on the Company’s California campus dediuild-out of the manufacturing facility in Shaitli, Ireland.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynparthased two buildings in Novato, California whniwere accounted for as as
purchases. The total purchase price for the buyjklimas $20.0 million.
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The following table summarizes the allocation & thtal purchase price of the buildings:

Building and improvement
Land

Land improvement

Total identifiable net asse

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenih@034, 2013 and 2012 was $44.3 million, $36.8ioniland $34.9 million,

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Lives
$ 15,83¢ 35 to 45 year

3,21€
919 10 years
$ 19,971

respectively, of which $11.0 million, $11.0 milli@nd $7.3 million was capitalized into inventorgspectively.

Capitalized interest related to the Company’s prigp@lant and equipment purchases for each ofttreee years ended December 31,

2014 was insignificant.

(9) INVENTORY

Inventory consisted of the following:

Raw materials

Work-in-process

Finished good
Total inventory

(10) SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Other current assets consisted of the following:

Prepaid expenst
Shor-term forward currency exchange contract as
Promissory notes receivable, |
Restricted investmen
Convertible promissory note conversion opt
Other receivable
Other
Total other current asse

Other assets consisted of the following:

Deposits
Escrow balance for SRCC purchi
Deferred debt offering cos
Strategic investmen
Long-term forward foreign currency exchange contraces
Other
Total other asse
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December 31,

2014 2013
$ 22,48t $ 15,30¢
114,39 88,417
62,571 58,87¢
$ 199,45 $ 162,60
December 31
2014 2013
28,865 $ 21,13¢
10,51¢ 59
46,94¢€ —
2,354 5,67C
2,38¢ —
9,73¢ 11,51¢
451% 3,32€
$ 105,31( $ 41,707
December 31,
2014 2013
12,021 $ 7,19€
— 116,50(
11,765 15,37¢
30,811 13,00(¢
5,387 —
5,29¢ 4,101
$ 65,281 $ 156,171
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Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisfetthe following:

Accounts payabl

Accrued accounts payalk

Accrued compensation exper

Accrued vacation expen:

Current portion of contingent acquisition

consideration payab
Accrued rebates payak
Accrued royalties payab
Value added taxes payat

Other accrued operating expen
Current portion of nonqualified deferred

compensation liabilit

Other

Total accounts payable and accrued liabili

December 31

2014 2013

$ 32,77¢ $ 36,89¢
98,49( 58,40¢
45,47¢ 33,49¢
12,54( 10,481

3,89t 11,88:

14,85¢ 10,42¢

9,05C 5,82¢

5,47¢ 3,60¢

8,244 4,87%

2,304 1,365

2,62C 6,008

$ 235,73¢ $ 183,271

The roll forward of significant estimated accruebdates, reserve for cash discounts and allowamamtdtful accounts for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were asvill

Year ended December 31, 20.

Accrued rebate

Reserve for cash discour
Sales return resen
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Year ended December 31, 20

Accrued rebate

Reserve for cash discour
Sales return resen
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Year ended December 31, 20.

Accrued rebate

Reserve for cash discour
Allowance for doubtful accoun

Provision/  Actual Charges Actual Charges

Balance at Provision (Reversals) Related to Related to Balance at

Beginning  for Current for Prior Current Prior Period End of

of Period  Period Sale: Period Sale: Period Sales Sales Period

$ 10,42¢ $ 24,431 $ (1,159 $ (12,768 $ (6,074 $ 14,85¢
388 6,43¢ — (5,747 (389) 688
907 — (907) — — —
529 410 (319) — (130) 490

$ 9625 $ 18,87: $ (1,169 $ (12,029 $ (4,874 $ 10,42¢
372 4,54¢ — (4,191) (342) 388
— 907 — — — 907
348 138 43 — — 529

$ 6,025 $ 16,44¢ $ (4349 $ (8,199 $ (4222 $ 9,62
342 4,214 — (4,189 — 372
513 — (165) — — 348
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(11) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING STRATEGIES
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Exposure

The Company uses forward foreign currency exchaogéacts to hedge certain operational exposusestireg from potential changes
foreign currency exchange rates. Such exposuratt fesm portions of the Company’s forecasted rewenand operating expenses being
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dgitémarily the Euro, the British Pound and the#lian Real.

The Company designates certain of these forwaeldgorcurrency exchange contracts as hedging insitsyand enters into some
forward foreign currency exchange contracts thatcansidered to be economic hedges that are nigindésd as hedging instruments. Whethe
designated or undesignated, these forward foraigmiecy exchange contracts protect against thectieuin value of forecasted foreign
currency cash flows resulting from product revenuegalty revenues, operating expenses and as$iabiity positions designated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The faiugalof forward foreign currency exchange contraptsestimated using current exchange rate:
and interest rates, and take into consideratiortinent creditworthiness of the counterpartietherCompany, as applicable. Details of the
specific instruments used by the Company to hedgexjposure to foreign currency exchange ratedhtins are discussed below. See Not
to these Consolidated Financial Statements fortiaddil discussion regarding the fair value of forvéoreign currency exchange contracts.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had 92 forwargido currency exchange contracts outstandinglt@ setal of 116.1 million Eurc
with expiration dates ranging from January 2016ulgh February 2017. These hedges were enterethintder to protect against the
fluctuations in revenue associated with Edemominated sales. The Company has formally desidribese forward foreign currency excha
contracts as cash flow hedges and expects them ligghly effective in offsetting fluctuations invenues denominated in Euros related to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Company also enters into forward foreign curyegxchange contracts that are not designateddzgeldor accounting purposes. The
changes in fair value of these forward foreign emcy exchange contracts are included as a paG&ASexpense in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations. At Decer®bg?014, the Company had 3 outstanding forwareidorcurrency exchange contract to
sell 82.7 million Euros and one contract to sedl dhillion British Pounds, which were not designagesda hedge for accounting purposes and
matured on January 31, 2015.

The maximum length of time over which the Compankedging its exposure to the reduction in valu®fcasted foreign currency
revenues through forward foreign currency exchamgdracts is through February 2017. Over the neelvie months, the Company expects to
reclassify $10.3 million from accumulated other goehensive income to earnings as the forecasteshvevtransactions occur.

The fair value carrying amounts of the Company'svagive instruments were as follows:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Accounts payable ai

Forward foreign currency exchange contr: Other current asse $ 10,20¢ accrued liabilitie $ —
Other long

Forward foreign currency exchange contr: Other asse 5,387 term liabilities —

Total $ 15,59¢ $ —

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Accounts payable ai

Forward foreign currency exchange contr: Other current asse $ 307 accrued liabilitie $ 12
Total 307 12
Total value of derivative contrac $ 15,90 $ 12
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Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2013
Balance Sheet Locatio  Fair Value Balance Sheet Locatior  Fair Value

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Accounts payable ai

Forward foreign currency exchange contri Other current asse $ — accrued liabilitie $ 2,18¢
Other long

Forward foreign currency exchange contri Other asse — term liabilities —

Total $ — $ 2,18¢€

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Accounts payable ai

Forward foreign currency exchange contri Other current asse $ 59 accrued liabilitie $ —
Total 59 —
Total value of derivative contrac $ 59 $ 2,18¢€

The effect of the Company’s derivative instrumamighe Consolidated Financial Statements for ttaesyended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

2014 2013 2012
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments:
Net gain (loss) recognized in Other Comprehensigere (OCI(Y) $ 18,07¢ $ (1,36€) $ (8,749)
Net gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated Gt income@ 643 49 (3,689)
Net gain (loss) recognized in net I(3) (294) 310 927
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:
Net gain (loss) recognized in net (4 $ 8,01C $ (2,041) $ 674

(1) Netchange in the fair value of the effective pmntclassified as OC

(2) Effective portion classified as net product revet

(3) Ineffective portion and amount excluded from efffiemess testing classified as selling, generalaaimndinistrative expens
(4) Classified as selling, general and administratigease

At December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, accumulategl domprehensive income before taxes associatbdavivard foreign currency
exchange contracts qualifying for hedge accourttisgtment was a gain of $15.9 million, loss of $2illion and a gain of $0.2 million,
respectively.

The Company is exposed to counterparty creditaiskll of its derivative financial instruments. TBempany has established and
maintains strict counterparty credit guidelines anters into hedges only with financial institusdhat are investment grade or better to
minimize the Company’s exposure to potential désadlhe Company does not require collateral toledged under these agreements.
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(12) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company measures certain financial assetsaitities at fair value on a recurring basis, urdihg available-for-sale fixed income
securities and foreign currency derivatives.

The tables below present the fair value of thasanitial assets and liabilities determined usingdhewing input levels.

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014

Quoted Price in
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

For Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivaler
Overnight deposit $ 22515¢ $ — $ — $ 225,15¢
Money market instrumen — 650,327 — 650,32"
Total cash and cash equivale $ 22515¢ $ 650,327 $ — $ 875,48¢
Available-for-sale securities
Shor-term:
Certificates of depos $ — 8 54,17/ $ — $ 54,17«
Corporate debt securitis — 15,532 — 15,532
Long-term:
Certificates of depos — 18,12¢ — 18,12¢
Corporate debt securitis — 79,60/ — 79,60¢
Greek governme-issued bond — 123 — 123
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ — $ 167,56: $ — $ 167,560
Other Current Asset
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan as $ — 8 514 $ — 8 514
Forward foreign currency exchange conti) — 10,51: — 10,51:
Restricted investmen(® — 2,354 — 2,354
Embedded derivativ(3) — — 2,38€ 2,38¢€
Total other current asse $ — $ 13,381 $ 2,38¢ $ 15,76
Other Assets
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan as $ — $ 511z $ — $ 5,112
Forward foreign currency exchange conti®) — 5,387 — 5,387
Strategic investmei®) 30,811 — — 30,811
Total other asse $ 30,811 $ 10,49¢ $ — $ 4131
Total asset $ 25597C $ 841,76¢ $ 2,38¢ $ 1,100,12!
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan liabi $ 1,79C $ 514 $ — 8 2,304
Forward foreign currency exchange contid) — 12 — 12
Contingent acquisition consideration paye — — 3,89 3,89¢
Total current liabilities $ 1,79C $ 526 $ 3,89t $ 6,211
Other lon¢-term liabilities:
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan liabi $ 18,45 $ 511z $ — $ 23,56

Contingent acquisition consideration paye — — 38,761 38,761
Total other lon-term liabilities 18,45 $ 5,112 38,761 $  62,33Z
Total liabilities 20,24: $ 5,63¢ 68,54

&+ |
&+ |
I
N
o
o
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&
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013

Quoted Price in
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

For Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivaler
Overnight deposit $ 156,22¢ $ $ — $ 156,22¢
Money market instrumen — 412 55 — 412,55
Total cash and cash equivale $ 156,22¢ $ 412,55: $ — $ 568,78
Available-for-sale securities
Shor-term:
Certificates of depos $ — $ 30,51 $ — $ 30,51:
Corporate debt securitis — 99,251 — 99,251
Commercial pape — 86,17¢ — 86,17¢
Long-term:
Certificates of depos — 16,491 — 16,491
Corporate debt securitis — 242,15¢ — 242,15¢
U.S. Government agency securit — 8,901 — 8,901
Greek governme-issued bond — 144 — 144
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ — $ 483,64: $ — $ 483,64:
Other Current Asset
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan as $ — 8 136 $ — 8 136
Forward foreign currency exchange contid) — 59 — 59
Restricted investmen(® — 5,67C — 5,67C
Total other current asse $ — $ 5865 $ — $ 5,86E
Other Assets
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan as $ — $ 3/45¢ $ — $ 3,45¢
Restricted investmen(@) — 412 — 412
Strategic investmer(®) 13,00( — — 13,00(
Total other asse $ 13,00C $ 3,871 % — $ 16,871
Total asset $ 169,228 $ 905,931 $ — $ 1,075,15!¢
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan liabi $ 1,227 $ 136 $ — $ 1,362
Forward foreign currency exchange conti®) — 2,18¢ — 2,18¢
Contingent acquisition consideration paye — — 11,88 11,88
Total current liabilities $ 1,227 $ 2322 $ 1188: $ 15431
Other lon¢-term liabilities:
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan liabi $ 12,345 $ 345¢ $ — 8 15,80¢
Contingent acquisition consideration paye — — 30,79( 30,79(
Total other lon-term liabilities $ 12,345 $ 345¢ $ 30,79C $ 46,59/
Total liabilities $ 13,572 $ 5781 & 42,67: $ 62,02F

(1) See Note 11 to these Consolidated Financial Statenfier further information regarding the derivatimstruments

(2) The restricted investments at December 314 2@ture the Company’s irrevocable standby lefteraalit obtained in connection with
certain commercial agreements. The restricted tme&sts at December 31, 2013 secure the Compamgvocable standby letter of cre
obtained in connection with the Comp’s SRCC lease and certain commercial agreemr

(3) The embedded derivative represents the fairevaf the conversion feature of a promissory matéech may be settled in the issuer’s
underlying shares

(4) The Company has investments in marketabletyegacurities measured using quoted prices in timeamarket that are considered
strategic investments. See Note 5 to these Cormrdetid-inancial Statements for additional discusségarding the Company’s strategic
investments
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There were no transfers between levels during #ae gnded December 31, 2014.

The Company’s Level 2 securities are valued ugiirg{party pricing sources. The pricing servicelag industry standard valuation
models, including both income and market-basedagmpres, for which all significant inputs are obaéte, either directly or indirectly, to
estimate fair value. These inputs include repoitades of and broker/dealer quotes on the samiendassecurities, issuer credit spreads,
benchmark securities, prepayment/default projesttmsed on historical data and other observabigsnp

The Company validates the prices provided by itsl{party pricing services by understanding the eiedised, obtaining market values
from other pricing sources, analyzing pricing dataertain instances and confirming those secugriti@ded in active markets. See Note 5 to
these Consolidated Financial Statements for fuitifermation regarding the Company’s financial mastents.

Liabilities measured at fair value using Level Blits were comprised of contingent acquisition aergition payable and asset retiren
obligations.

The Company’s contingent acquisition consideragiayable is estimated using a probability-basedrimeapproach utilizing an
appropriate discount rate. Key assumptions useddiyagement to estimate the fair value of contingeqtisition consideration payable
include estimated probabilities, the estimatedrigmif when a milestone may be attained and assdisedunt periods and rates. Subsequent
changes in the fair value of the contingent actjaisiconsideration payable, resulting from managafraeevision of key assumptions, will be
recorded in Intangible Asset Amortization and Cogéint Consideration in the Company’s Consolidatate®ents of Operations. The
probabilitybased income approach used by management to estineafair value of the contingent acquisition ¢degation is most sensitive
changes in the estimated probabilities.

Contingent acquisition consideration payable atébswer 31, 201 $ 42,672
Changes in the fair value of the contingent actjaisi

consideration payab 12,99(
Milestone payments to former ZyStor sharehol (13,000

Contingent acquisition consideration payable atébswer 31, 201 $ 42,662

Under certain of the Company'’s lease agreemergCtdmpany is contractually obligated to returnéelspace to its original condition
upon termination of the lease agreement. The Coynpenords an asset retirement obligation liabgityl a corresponding capital asset in an
amount equal to the estimated fair value of thégakibn when estimable. In subsequent periodseéoh such lease, the Company records
Interest Expense to accrete the asset retiremdigatbn liability to full value and depreciatesobacapitalized asset retirement obligation asse
both over the term of the associated lease agrégemen

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2 $ 4,122
Accretion expens 182
Additions 536
Release of ARO accruals related to purchases sfqugly

leased office spac (1,075

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2 $ 3,76

The Company acquired intangible assets as a mfsudirious business acquisitions. The estimated/&ue of these lontived assets wi
measured using Level 3 inputs as of the acquisidate.
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(13) CONVERTIBLE DEBT
2018/2020 Notes

On October 15, 2013, the Company issued $750.@mith aggregate principal amount of senior submatid convertible notes
consisting of $375.0 million in aggregate principatount of 0.75% senior subordinated convertibles\due in October 2018 (the 2018 No
and $375.0 million in aggregate principal amouni &0% senior subordinated convertible notes d@cimber 2020 (the 2020 Notes and,
together with the 2018 Notes, the Notes). Net pedsdrom the offering were $726.2 million.

The 2018 Notes and the 2020 Notes bear interestatt of 0.75% and 1.5% per year, respectivelychwis payable semiannually in
arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each yeaginmng on April 15, 2014.

The Notes are senior unsecured obligations, arid(fpaqually to any of the Company’s existing dotlire unsecured senior debt,
(ii) senior to any of the Company’s future indelstesis that is expressly subordinated to the Notek(ig) effectively junior to any secured
indebtedness to the extent of the value of thetesseuring such indebtedness. Upon the occuredfreéfundamental change”, as defined in
the indenture, the holders may require the Compamgpurchase all or a portion of the Notes fohcas100% of the principal amount of the
Notes being purchased, plus any accrued and ungaiest.

The Notes are convertible into 7,965,975 sharéBeCompany’s common stock under certain circuntgsuprior to maturity at a
conversion rate of 10.6213 shares per $1,000 p@hamount of the Notes, which represents a comremice of $94.15 per share, subject to
adjustment under certain conditions. Holders maywed their notes at their option at any time ptmduly 15, 2018, in the case of the 2018
Notes, and July 15, 2020, in the case of the 20@&@4\ only under the following circumstances: (jing any calendar quarter commenc
after the calendar quarter ending on March 31, Z@fd only during such calendar quarter), if tret taported sale price of the Company’s
common stock for at least 20 trading days (whetierot consecutive) during a period of 30 conseeutiading days ending on the last trading
day of the immediately preceding calendar quastgrréater than or equal to 130% of the applicatieversion price on each applicable trading
day; (2) during the five business day period &ty five consecutive trading day period (the mezment period) in which the trading price
$1,000 principal amount of the relevant notes fwhetrading day of the measurement period washess98% of the product of the last
reported sale price of the Company’s common stockthe applicable conversion rate on each sucingathy; or (3) upon the occurrence of
specified corporate events.

Upon conversion, the Company may pay cash, shitee €ompany’s common stock or a combination shcand stock, as determined
by the Company in its discretion.

The Company has separately accounted for theityahitd equity components of the Notes by allogathre proceeds from issuance of
the Notes between the liability component and thbedded conversion option, or equity components @8lfocation was done by first
estimating an interest rate at the time of issudoiceimilar notes that do not include the embedd®muversion option. The Company allocated
$156.2 million to the equity component, net of dffg costs of $5.1 million. The Company recordediszount on the notes of $161.3 million
which will be accreted and recorded as additiont&rest expense over the life of the Notes. Du2@d4, the Company recognized interest
expense related to the accretion of the discouiidfO million and $10.9 million, for the 2018 Nst@nd the 2020 Notes, respectively,
compared to 2013 when the Company recognized stterpense of $2.6 million and $2.2 million, foetk018 Notes and the 2020 Notes,
respectively. The effective interest rate on thbility component of the Notes for the years endedember 31, 2014 and 2013 were 7.3% an
7.5%, respectively.

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, tbe@any incurred $23.8 million of issuance costesehcosts are being amortized and
are recorded as additional interest expense oediféhof the Notes. During 2014, the Company retgpgd $1.9 million and $1.3 million of
amortization of deferred offering costs, for theelNotes and the 2020 Notes, respectively, compar2813 when the Company recognized
$0.4 million and $0.3 million of amortization of féered offering costs, for the 2018 Notes and t202Notes, respectively.

To minimize the impact of potential dilution upoonwersion of the 2018 Notes and the 2020 NotesCtimapany entered into capped
transactions separate from the issuance of thesNwath certain counterparties covering 3,982,988 ah of the Company’s common stock,
subject to adjustment. The capped calls have kegtrice of $94.15 and a cap price of $121.05 aacgercisable when and if the Notes are
converted. If upon conversion of the Notes, thegdf the Company’s common stock is above theespiice of the capped calls, the
counterparties will deliver shares of the Compamgsmmon stock and/or cash with an aggregate vajualeo the difference between the price
of the Company’s common stock at the conversioa dat the strike price, multiplied by the numbesludires of the Comparsytommon stoc
related to the capped calls being exercised. Thepaay paid $29.8 million for these capped callagaztions, which was recorded as
additional paid-in capital.
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2017 Notes

In April 2007, the Company sold $324.9 million iggeegate principal amount of senior subordinated/edible notes due in April 2017
(the 2017 Notes), of which $40.6 million remainedstanding at December 31, 2014. The 2017 Notes i8sued at face value and bear
interest at the rate of 1.875% per annum, payabtg-annually in cash. The 2017 Notes are convertén the option of the holder, at any time
prior to maturity or redemption, into shares of @@mpany’s common stock at a conversion price 632 per share, subject to adjustment in
certain circumstances. The 2017 Notes do not irmctudall provision and the Company is unable ttatarially redeem the 2017 Notes prior to
maturity on April 23, 2017. The Company also megtay the 2017 Notes if there is a qualifying chaingeontrol or termination of trading of
its common stock. If a change of control occurs,@mmpany will pay a make whole premium by incnegu$he conversion rate applicable to
the 2017 Notes.

In connection with the placement of the 2017 Nottes,Company paid $8.5 million in offering costdiigh have been deferred and are
included in other assets. The deferred offeringscase being amortized as interest expense ovdifehaf the debt. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Company recognized amadizakpense of $0.1 million, compared to $0.4 willand $0.9 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

During 2014, the Company entered into two sepag@teements with an existing holder of its senidwosdinated convertible notes dug¢
2017 pursuant to which such holder converted $a6llton in aggregate principal amount of the 2013téé into 809,351 shares of the
Company’s common stock. In addition to issuingrénguisite number of shares of the Company’s comstock, the Company also made
varying cash payments to the holder totaling $0lliam in aggregate, of which $0.7 million was regguzed in total as Debt Conversion
Expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operdiborike year ended December 31, 2014.

During 2013, the Company entered into separateeaggats with 18 of the existing holders of the 208ibfes pursuant to which such
holders converted $262.8 million in aggregate ppalcamount of the 2017 Notes into 12,906,780 shaféhe Company’s common stock. In
addition to issuing the requisite number of shafdhe Company’s common stock pursuant to the 204fés, the Company also made varying
cash payments to each of the holders, totalingg8silion in the aggregate, of which $13.0 millisras recognized in total as Debt Conversior
Expense in the Company’s Consolidated Stateme@pefations for the year ended December 31, 2013 a@dmillion was for accrued
interest. Additionally, the Company reclassified8illion of deferred offering costs to additionelid-in capital in connection with the
conversion of the 2017 Notes.

2013 Notes

In March 2006, the Company sold $172.5 million ggeegate principal amount of senior subordinatetedible notes due in March
2013 (the 2013 Notes), which fully matured on Ma2&h 2013. The 2013 Notes were issued at face \&addéore interest at the rate of
2.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in cash.ZDd& Notes were convertible, at the option of tbklér, at any time prior to maturity or
redemption, into shares of the Company’s commotksaba conversion price of $16.58 per share, stibjeadjustment in certain
circumstances. The 2013 Notes did not include lgpecavision and the Company was unable to unilditeradeem the debt prior to maturity on
March 29, 2013. Upon maturity of the remaining 20l8es outstanding in March 2013, the Company ke requisite 1,403,735 shares of
common stock pursuant to the 2013 Notes to the bofdkrs, in exchange for $23.3 million in prindipad paid one bond holder the par value
at maturity in cash totaling $98.

In connection with the placement of the 2013 Natfes,Company paid approximately $5.5 million inesfifig costs, which were deferred
and were included in other assets. The deferredtin§f costs were amortized as interest expensetbgdife of the debt. For the year ended
December 31, 2013, the Company recognized amaaizakpense of $27, compared to $0.1 million inytear ended December 31, 2012.
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The following table summarizes information regagdihe Company’s convertible debt at December 31.:

2014 2013

Convertible Notes due 2020, net of unamortizedaliat of

$77,045 and $87,975, at December 31, 2014 ahd,20

respectively $ 297,958 $ 287,02t
Convertible Notes due 2018, net of unamortizedadist of

$55,537 and $68,500, at December 31, 2014 ab8, 20

respectively 319,46: 306,50(
Convertible Notes due 20: 40,55¢ 62,041
Total convertible debt, net of unamortized discc $ 657,97¢ $ 655,56¢

Fair value of fixed rate convertible debt

Convertible Notes due in 20:%) $ 456,36( $ 400,87¢
Convertible Notes due in 20:® 442 44¢ 397,691
Convertible Notes due in 20:® 180,98 213,76¢
Total $ 1,079,79: $ 1,012,33!

(1) The fair value of the Company’s fixed rate wertible debt is based on open market trades addssified as Level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy.

Interest expense on the Company’s convertible @elstcomprised of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Coupon interes $ 9,417 $ 4,55C $ 6,67¢
Amortization of issuance cos 3,33z 1,053 960
Accretion of debt discout 23,89: 4,821 —
Total interest expense on convertible ¢ $ 36,64z $ 10,422  $ 7,63¢

See Note 14 to these Consolidated Financial Stattsnfier further discussion of the effect of coni@nson net loss per common share.

(14) NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Potentially issuable shares of common stock incBigees issuable upon the exercise of outstandiapdpgee stock option awards, comn
stock issuable under the ESPP, unvested reststbe®, common stock held by the Deferred Compemsdtlan and contingent issuances of
common stock related to convertible debt. The thblew presents potential shares of common staatkwhre excluded from the computation
as they were anti-dilutive using the treasury stoekhod (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Options to purchase common stc 11,477 13,157 13,89t
Common stock issuable under the 2013 and 2017 | 1,992 3,047 17,36¢
Common stock issuable under the 2018 and 2020 | 7,96€ 7,96€ —
Unvested restricted stock un 1,244 1,15¢ 1,16
Potentially issuable common stock for ESPP purah 195 197 263
Common stock held by the Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Pl 224 193 233
Total number of potentially issuable sha 23,09¢ 25,71¢ 32,921
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The effect of the 2018 Notes and the 2020 Notesexakided from the diluted net income/loss per sisarce they may be settled in casl
shares at the Company’s option, and the Companyigt intention is to settle up to the principadaunt of the converted notes in cash and
any excess conversion value (conversion spreashares of the Company’s common stock. As a rethalt2018 Notes and the 2020 Notes
have no effect on diluted net income/loss per shatithe Company’s stock price at period end exisethe conversion price of $94.15 per

share for the Notes.

(15) INCOME TAXES
The provision for (benefit from) income taxes iséd on income/(loss) before income taxes as follows

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
U.S. Source $ 49,411 $ 46,67 $ 45,42%
Non-U.S. Source (174,279 (223,17¢) (163,700)
Loss before income tax: $ (124,869 $ (176,509 $ (118,279

The U.S. and foreign components of the provisior(lbenefit from) income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

Provision for current income tax expen

Federal $ 28,09: $ 5,06C $ 2,25¢
State and locz 3,011 1,49¢ 1,87¢
Foreign 3,614 2,19¢ 1,85¢

$ 34,71¢  $ 8,75t $ 5,99(C

Provision for deferred income tax expense (bent

Federal $ (20367 $ (6,08 $ (6,055
State and loce (4,982) (2,65¢) (3,89))
Foreign (268) (163) 25

$ (25617) $ (8,905 $ (9,921

Provision for (benefit from) income tax $ 9,101 $ (150) $ (3,93))

The following is a reconciliation of the statutdederal income tax rate to the Company’s effecim®me tax rate expressed as a
percentage of income/(loss) before income taxes:

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

Federal statutory income tax r 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State and local taxe (1.6)% (0.3)% (1.3)%
Orphan Drug & General Business Cre 29.3% 14.7% 27.€%
Stock compensation exper (2.9)% 1.7% (1.6)%
Changes in the fair value of contingent acquisitionsideration payab (3.6)% (2.9)% (2.6)%
Subpart F incom (9-2% — —
Foreign tax rate differenti (51.5% (45.9% (50.00%
Other (3.6)% 1.6% (3.2%
Valuation allowance/Deferred bene 0.3% (0.9% (0.6)%
Effective income tax rat (7.3)% 0.1% 3.3%
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The significant components of the Company’s neédefl tax assets are as follows:

December 31

2014 2013
Net deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 16,20¢ $ 17,73:
Tax credit carryforward 178,36¢ 176,22¢
Property, plant and equipme — 504
Accrued expenses, reserves, and pref 30,62¢ 21,071
Intangible assel 14,55( 8,25¢
Stocl-based compensatic 34,13: 29,60z
Inventory 14,10¢ 12,415
Impairment and capital loss carryforwal 1,997 3,071
Other 928 799
Valuation allowanct (7,812) (8,347
Total deferred tax asse $ 283,10: $ 261,33C

Joint venture basis differen $ (1,781) $ (1,80¢)
Acquired Intangible: (33,049 (34,09))
Convertible notes discou (39,317 (46,029
Property, plant and equipme (4,932) —
Unrealized gain (6,525) (3,617)
Total deferred tax liabilitie $ (85609 % (85,53))

Net deferred tax asse $ 197,49t $  175,79¢

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had fedetadperating loss carryforwards of $25.7 million astdte net operating loss
carryforwards of $185.0 million. The Company alsalliederal research and development and orphancdedg carryforwards of $284.3
million and state research credit carryovers of.$5fillion. The Company has elected to recognieeetkcess benefits related to the exercise
employee stock options under a with and withoutaagh, which will be accounted for as an increasadditional paid-in-capital if and when
realized. As of December 31, 2014, the Companyumaecognized federal and state stock option benefi$201.8 million and $75.2 million,
respectively.

The federal net operating loss carryforwards wiphiee at various dates beginning in 2027 througB3i not utilized. The federal credit
carryforward will expire at various dates beginnin@021 through 2034 if not utilized. The staté oerating loss carryforwards will expire at
various dates beginning in 2015 through 2034 ifuiized. Certain state research credit carryovalishegin to expire in 2019 if not utilized,
with others carrying forward indefinitely.

The Company’s net operating losses and creditsldmilsubject to annual limitations due to ownershignge limitations provided by
Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and similar stateisions. An annual limitation could result retexpiration of net operating losses and
tax credit carryforward before utilization. Therme éimitations on the tax attributes of acquiretites however, the Company does not believe
the limitations will have a material impact on thtdization of the net operating losses or tax @sed

In 2014, the valuation allowance decreased by 80ll®n primarily due to the expiration of fully Wed capital loss carryforwards. In
2013, the valuation allowance increased by $2.8aniprimarily due to investment impairments the¢ aot more likely than not to be realiz:
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The financial statement recognition of the berfefita tax position is dependent upon the benefiighenore likely than not to be
sustainable upon audit by the applicable taxingaity. If this threshold is met, the tax beneditihen measured and recognized at the largest
amount that is greater than 50% likely of beindized upon ultimate settlement. A reconciliatiortloé beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended DbeeBil, 2014 is as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of perit $ 50,81t $ 43,531
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 20,30: 7,47¢
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 545 (194)
Balance at end of peric $ 71,66 $ 50,81¢

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemefiDecember 31, 2014 are potential benefits df&million that, if recognized,
would affect the effective tax rate. The Comparpgticy for classifying interest and penalties ass@el with unrecognized income tax benefits
is to include such items in the income tax expembe.total amount of accrued interest and penalt@snot significant as of December 31,
2014.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and various states and foreigrsglictions. For income tax returns
filed before 2011, the Company is no longer suleetudit by the U.S. federal, state, local or hb8- tax authorities. However, carryforward
tax attributes that were generated prior to 201¥ stil be adjusted upon examination by tax autiesi Currently, the Company has open
income tax return audits with the Internal ReveBeevice for the year 2012 and with the state off@alia for tax years 2010 and 2011.

U.S. income and foreign withholding taxes havebesn recognized on the excess of the amount fandial reporting over the tax basis
of investments in foreign subsidiaries that areesally permanent in duration. This excess totalpproximately $1.1 million as of
December 31, 2014, which will be indefinitely regsted; therefore, deferred income taxes of apprately $0.4 million have not been
provided on such foreign earnings.

(16) EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
2014 Inducement Plan

In December 2014, the Board approved the BioMahiar®aceutical Inc. 2014 Inducement Plan (the 2@#@lddement Plan), which
provides for grants of up to 1.7 million share-lthawards to new employees, including grants ofimtst stock units (RSUs) and grants of
options to purchase common stock at a price equakt fair market value of such shares on the afaggant. The awards are substantially
similar to those granted under the BioMarin Phammngical Inc. 2006 Share Incentive Plan, as ameadddestated on March 22, 2010 (as
further amended, the 2006 Share Incentive Plan) iz BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. 2012 Induceni®ah (the 2012 Inducement Plan). The
2014 Inducement Plan expires on the date of thepgaogis 2015 annual meeting of stockholders.

Share Incentive Plar

The 2006 Share Incentive Plan, which replaced trafgainy’s previous stock option plans (the 1997 ISRlan and the 1998 Directors
Options Plan), provides for grants of options tgkyees to purchase common stock at the fair markdee of such shares on the grant dat
well as other forms of equity compensation. As eEBmber 31, 2014, awards issued under the 200& 8iwantive Plan include both stock
options and restricted RSUs. Stock option awardatgd to employees generally vest over a four-gedod on a cliff basis six months after
the grant date and then monthly thereafter. Thra tdrthe outstanding options is generally ten yeR&Us granted to employees generally ves
in a straight-line annually over a four-year peradtér the grant date. Restricted stock units g directors generally vest in full one year
after the grant date.

As of December 31, 2014, options to purchase ajpeely 10.9 million and 0.6 million shares werdstanding under the Share
Incentive Plan and the Company’s previous stocloagilans, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, an aggregate of approeiga®.0 million unissued shares were authorizeduure issuance under the Sh
Incentive Plan.
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Employee Stock Purchase Ple

Under BioMarin’s ESPP, which was initially approviedJune 2006, replacing the Company’s previous,@ad was further amended on
March 5, 2014, employees meeting specific employrgealifications are eligible to participate anchgarchase shares on established dates
(each purchase date) seaminually through payroll deductions at the loweB8% of the fair market value of the stock at tbenmencement ¢
the offering period or each purchase date of tferiofy period. Each offering period will span upttm-years. The ESPP permits eligible
employees to purchase common stock through pagedlictions for up to 10% of qualified compensatigmto an annual limit of $25,000. T
ESPP is intended to qualify as an “employee stagkhmse plan” under Section 423 of the InternaléRee Code. During 2014, the Company
issued 258,173 shares under the ESPP.

As of December 31, 2014 there were approximatdlyillion shares reserved for future issuance uttie=ESPP.

Board of Director Grants

Each Independent Director is automatically gramtedhitial stock option grant to purchase 10,008rslof common stock and 4,000
RSUs on the date that such person first becomésdapendent Director. The shares of common stobjestto the initial grant vest quarterly
over three years and the initial RSU grant vestaliy over three years. On the date of our annwedting of shareholders, each re-elected
director is granted an additional stock option gtarpurchase 8,500 shares of common stock an® R&8Ws. The shares of common stock
subject to the annual option grant vest quarterBr @ne year and the additional annual RSUs vdsillion the one-year anniversary of the
grant date. Thea additional option grant or RSUnhgfer a director that has served for less thaeax ys prorated to the nearest quarter. These
options and RSUs continue to vest only while thheaor serves on the Board. The exercise pricelpare of each of these options is 100% of
the fair market value of a share of the Compangismon stock on the date of the grant. These optiame a term of 10 years.

Stockholder’ Rights Plan

At December 31, 2014, an aggregate of approxim&2I8 million unissued shares was authorized fur&uissuance under the
Companys stock plans, which includes shares issuable uhde2006 Share Incentive Plan, the 2014 Inducerlamnt and the ESPP. Under
2006 Share Incentive Plan awards that expire ocameelled without delivery of shares generallydmee available for issuance under the
respective plan. Awards that expire or are candelleder the Company’s suspended 1997 Stock PI&8, Dector Option Plan, 2012
Inducement Plan or 2014 Inducement Plan may notissued.

(17) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes activity under then@pany’s stock option plans, including the 2012ucement Plan and those
suspended upon the adoption of the 2006 Sharetlwed?lan for the year ended December 31, 2014option grants presented in the table
had exercise prices not less than the fair valubefinderlying common stock on the grant date:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Price Years Value @
Options outstanding as of December 31, 2 13,157,28. $ 34.0€ 6.7 $ 477,61¢
Granted 1,185,37¢ $ 63.72
Exercisec (2,563,630 $ 27.77
Expired and forfeite: (301,859 $ 49.8¢
Options outstanding as of December 31, 2 11,477,16- $ 38.11 6.2 $ 600,11:
Options expected to vest at December 31, : 2,968,96. $ 56.1:2 $ 101,73¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 8,093,51: $ 30.44 5.3 $ 485,25¢

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value for outstandiptjons is calculated as the difference betweemxeecise price of the
underlying awards and the quoted price of the Campgacommon stock as of the last trading day ferréspective year.
The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstag@ind exercisable includes options with an exemige below $90.40,
the closing price of the Compé's common stock on December 31, 2C
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The weightedaverage fair value per option granted in the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $3B03/7 and $16.9.
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optiameercised during the years ended December 31, 20148 and 2012 was $130.1 million,
$119.2 million and $94.6 million, respectively. Taggregate intrinsic value of options exercised determined as of the date of option
exercise. Upon the exercise of the options, the 2oy issues new common stock from its authorizedesh

There were 11.5 million options that were in-thermyp at December 31, 2014.

Determining the Fair Value of Stock Options and SfoPurchase Right:

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes valuatimdel and the assumptions noted
in the tables below. The expected life of opti@ibased on observed historical exercise pattemmigS of employees that have similar
historical exercise patterns were considered seggtfar valuation purposes, but none were ideadifihat had distinctly different exercise
patterns as of December 31, 2014. The expectedilitplaf stock options is based upon the weighédrage of the historical volatility of the
Company’s common stock and the implied volatilifyraded options on the Company’s common stocKi$oal periods in which there is
sufficient trading volume in options on the Compargommon stock. The riskee interest rate is based on the implied yielddhS. Treasu
zero-coupon issue with a remaining term equal éoettpected term of the option. The dividend yielitiects that the Company has not paid an
cash dividends since inception and does not intemzy any cash dividends in the foreseeable fulithe assumptions used to estimate the pe
share fair value of stock options granted unde20@6 Share Incentive Plan and 2012 Inducementwise as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 44— 45% 44— 47% 45— 46%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life 6.9 years 6.6-6.8year 6.5 years
Risk-free interest rat 1.8-2.3% 1.0-2.4% 0.8-1.1%

The Company recorded $41.1 million, $37.0 milliovd &32.8 million of compensation costs relateduwent period vesting of stock
options for the years ended December 31, 2014, a8d2012, respectively. As of December 31, 2(e fatal unrecognized compensation
cost related to unvested stock options was $88libmiThese costs are expected to be recognized @aweighted average period of 2.5 years

The assumptions used to estimate the per sharealaie of stock purchase rights granted under BieFEwere as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 38- 39% 37% 31%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life 6-24 months  6-24 month:  6-24 month:
Risk-free interest rat 0.1-0.5% 0.1-0.3% 0.2-0.3%

The Company recorded $4.8 million, $3.6 million &®9 million of compensation costs related to@mgigranted under the ESPP for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2€d&atively. As of December 31, 2014, there was 8tllion of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested stock opissugible under the ESPP. These costs are expgediedecognized over a weighted avel
period of 1.5 years.
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Restricted Stock Unit Awards with Serv-Based Vesting Conditions

RSUs are generally subject to forfeiture if empleymterminates prior to the release of vestingimtigins. The Company expenses the
cost of the RSUs, which is determined to be therfeirket value of the shares of common stock uptherithe RSUs at the date of grant,
ratably over the period during which the vestingtrietions lapse.

A summary of non-vested RSU activity under the fitarthe year ended December 31, 2014 as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Grant Date Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Fair Value Years Value
Non-vested units as of December 31, 2 1,133,83! $ 50.97 30 $ 79,76¢
Granted 884,61: $ 64.37
Vested (383,33) $ 46.72
Forfeited (94,417 $ 54.9¢
Non-vested units as of December 31, 2 1,540,70. $ 59.4€ 29 $ 139,28(
Non-vested units expected to vest at December 31, 1,412,62¢ $ 59.1¢ $ 127,70:

The weighted-average grant date fair value peresbBRSUs granted during the years ended Decenih@034, 2013 and 2012, was
$64.37, $66.81 and $37.81, respectively. The fatalalue of restricted stock that vested and redsased in the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 was $22.9 million, $19.7 millamd $7.7 million, respectively.

The Company recorded $21.3 million, $13.0 milliovd&7.3 million of compensation costs related t&JR®iith service-based vesting
conditions for the years ended December 31, 20043 and 2012, respectively. As of December 31, 201ete was $74.6 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvésBds with servicdsased vesting conditions. These costs are exptxtazirecognized ow
a weighted average period of 2.9 years.

Restricted Stock Unit Awards with Performance andaMet-Based Vesting Conditions

Pursuant to the approval of the Board the Compaagtgd RSU awards with performance and market-basstihg conditions to certain
executive officers that provide for a base awar86#,000 RSUs in total (Base RSUs) that may bestetjto 75% to 125% depending on the
performance of the Company’s stock as discussékediubelow. A summary of novested Base RSU activity under the plans for ther gade:
December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Grant Date Remaining Intrinsic
Base Awards Fair Value Years Value
Non-vested units with performance and market vesting
conditions as of December 31, 2( 860,00( $ 34.6€ 22 % 60,501
Granted —
Vested —
Forfeited —
Non-vested units with performance and market vesting
conditions as of December 31, 2( 860,00( $ 34.6€ 12 $ 77,744

The number of RSUs that could potentially vest fithin Base RSUs granted is contingent upon achieveofispecific performance
goals and will be multiplied by the Total Sharelasl&eturn (the TSR) multiplier which could rangenfr 75% to 125% to determine the
number of earned RSUs.
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The vesting of the Base RSUs under these specdittgis contingent upon the achievement of matgdrformance conditions, as
follows:

Percentage of Base Number

Base RSUs to of RSUs
Vest Upon Granted
Achievement Before TSR
Strategic Performance Goals of Goal Multiplier

Product Goals
Approval of Vimizim in the U.S. or EU prior to
December 31, 201 35% 301,00(
Approval of pegvaliase (PEG PAL) or any other
non-Vimizim product in the U.S. or EU prior

to December 31, 201 25% 215,00(

Financial Goal
Total revenues of at least $775.0 million in fis2all5 40% 344,00(
860,00(

The number of RSUs that could potentially vest fithin Base RSUs granted is contingent upon achieveofispecific performance
goals and will be multiplied by the TSR multiplighich could range from 75% to 125% to determinenthmber of earned RSUs. The TSR
multiplier will be determined based on the CompaniSR percentile ranking relative to the TSR ofNe&SDAQ Biotechnology Index on
December 31, 2015. TSR is calculated based onttieding day average prices before the beginnimbesmd of the performance period of the
Company’s common stock and each comparator comipahg NASDAQ Biotechnology Index. The measurengariod for the performance
and TSR conditions is from the grant date througladdnber 31, 2015, subject to certain change ofagmtovisions (the Performance Period).
The RSUs earned at the end of the PerformancedPerilovest on the filing date of the Company’s Arah Report on Form 10-K for the 2015
fiscal year, subject to certain holding periodse Tinaximum number of RSUs that could vest if alfg@nance conditions are achieved and a
TSR multiplier of 125% is applied would be 1,075)MSUs.

The Company utilized a Monte Carlo simulation mddetstimate the TSR multiplier and determineddtent date fair value on each of
the grant dates. The assumptions used to estilmafait value of the RSUs with performance and raaviesting conditions were as follows:

Grant Date
September 5, May 29, June 1,
2012 2012 2011
Fair value of the Compa’s common stock on grant ds $ 37.48 % 39.06 $ 28.11
Expected volatility 31.7% 44.87% 47.95%
Risk-free interest rat 0.37% 0.52% 1.42%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The Monte Carlo simulation model also assumed tadioas of returns of the stock prices of the Comypmcommon stock and the
common stock of a peer group of companies andridaicstock price volatilities of the peer groupamimpanies. The valuation model also L
terms based on the length of the performance panoddcompound annual growth rate goals for totalldtolder return based on the provisions
of the award.

Stock-based compensation expense for this awatdevilecognized over the remaining service periegiining in the period the
Company determines the strategic performance gagbals is probable of achievement. During 2014nagament concluded that the revenue
performance goal was probable and began recogninimgensation expense related to the performanaedavallocated to the revenue
performance goal. During 2013, management concltitstdegulatory approval of Vimizim was probabheldegan recognizing compensai
expense related to the performance based RSUsitbto the Vimizim performance goal. For the yemmded December 31, 2014 and 2013,
the Company recorded $12.9 million and $6.5 milli@spectively, of compensation expense relatg@tiormance awards. The Company did
not recognize compensation expense for these a@rttse years ended December 31, 2012 becaugeaim@any’s management had not yet
determined the goals were probable of achieverdentf December 31, 2014, there was $7.2 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost
related to the unvested awards allocated to thaéAfimand revenue performance goals. These cosexpected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 1.2 years.
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Compensation expense included in the Company’s @idlated Statements of Operations for all stockedasompensation arrangements
was as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Cost of sale: $ 6,07¢ $ 4,86C $ 4,89(
Research and developme 33,83t 27,762 20,73¢
Selling, general and administrati 46,49¢ 31,75 22,34¢
Total stocl-based compensation expe! $ 8641 $ 64,37¢ $  47,97¢

Stock-based compensation of $8.2 million, $6.liarilland $4.3 million was capitalized into inventofgr the years ended December 31
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Capitalizedkstmsed compensation is recognized as cost of séles the related product is sold.
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(18) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following table summarizes amounts reclassifietlof Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income&g).¢8OCI) and their effect ¢
the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operafmrthe years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Amount Reclassified
from AOCI (Gain)
Loss

Years Ended
December 31,

Details about AOCI Components 2014 2013
Gains on cash flow hedge
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: $ (1,008) $ (37) Net product revenue
Forward foreign currency exchange contri — (40) Selling, general and administrat
365 28 Provision for income taxe

$ (643) $ (49) Net loss

Consolidated Statement of
Operations Classification

The following table summarizes changes in the acdat®d balances for each component, of other camepigve income/(loss),
including current period other comprehensive ince@me reclassifications out of AOCI, for the yeansed December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Before Tax Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
Amount Benefit Amount
AOCI balance at December 31, 2C $ 7,75€ $ (2,736) $ 5,01¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm (75) — (75)
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securities
Unrealized holding gain 8,01¢ (2,937) 5,08¢
Less: reclassification adjustment for gain realizedet loss — — —
Net unrealized holding ga 8,01¢ (2,937) 5,08¢
Net unrealized holding gain on cash flow hed
Unrealized holding gai 19,29: (1,219 18,07¢

Less: reclassification adjustment for gain realizedet loss 1,00€ (365) 643

Net unrealized holding ga 18,28¢ (849) 17,43t
Other comprehensive incor 26,22¢ (3,780 22,44¢
AOCI balance at December 31, 2( $ 33,98¢ $ (6,516 $ 27,46¢

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Before Tax Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
Amount Benefit Amount
AOCI balance at December 31, 2( $ (182 $ (20) $ (202)
Foreign currency translation adjustm 361 — 361
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securities
Unrealized holding gain 9,81C (3,535) 6,275
Less: reclassification adjustment for gain realizedet loss (1) — (2)
Net unrealized holding ga 9,80¢ (3,53E) 6,274
Net unrealized holding gain on cash flow hed
Unrealized holding gai (2,155) 789 (1,366)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gain realizedet loss 77 (28) 49
Net unrealized holding ga (2,232) 817 (1,415)
Other comprehensive incor 7,93€ (2,718) 5,22(C
AOCI balance at December 31, 2( $ 7,75€ $ (2,736 $ 5,01¢
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(19) REVENUE AND CREDIT CONCENTRATIONS

Net Product RevenueFhe Company considers there to be revenue congentrisks for regions where net product revenueeexs ten
percent of consolidated net product revenue. Theeaatration of the Company’s net product revenubiwihe regions below may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s revendaasults of operations if sales in the respeatgtons experience difficulties.

The table below summarizes consolidated net progweinue concentrations based on patient locatiolifmizim, Naglazyme, Kuvan
and Firdapse and the headquarters for Genzymeldflurdzyme. Although Genzyme sells Aldurazyme woitthy the royalties earned by the
Company on Genzyme’s net sales are included iVtBeregion, as the transactions are with Genzyheses headquarters are located in the

u.s.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Region:
United State: 51% 52% 50%
Europe 19% 22% 22%
Latin America 16% 13% 15%
Rest of world 14% 13% 13%
100% 100% 100%

Total net product revent

The following table illustrates the percentagehaf tonsolidated net product revenue attributetiédompany’s four largest customers.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Customer A 15% 15% 15%
Customer E1) 14% 16% 16%
Customer C 12% 9% 12%
Customer C 11% 11% 9%
Total 52% 51% 52%

(1) Genzyme is the Company’s sole customer fourddyme and is responsible for marketing and ggllin
Aldurazyme to third-parties. Net product revenuest Genzyme are comprised of royalties on worldwide
Aldurazyme sales and incremental product transfeemue

On a consolidated basis, the Company’s two larggstomers accounted for 42% and 18% of the DeceBihe1014 accounts receivable
balance, respectively, compared to December 313 2Btn the two largest customers accounted for 488615% of the accounts receivable
balance, respectively. As of December 31, 2014Rexckmber 31, 2013, accounts receivable for the @ogip largest customer balance
included $34.5 million and $26.3 million, respeetiy, of unbilled accounts receivable related toinetemental Aldurazyme product transfers
to Genzyme. The Company does not require collateyal its customers, but does perform periodic itreehluations of its customers’
financial condition and requires immediate paynmemertain circumstances.

The Company is subject to credit risk from accouateivable related to product sales. The majofithe Company’s trade accounts
receivable arises from product sales in the U.8.the European Union (the EU). The Company’s prodales to government-owned or
government-funded customers in certain Europeantdes, including Italy, Spain, Portugal, Greecd &Russia, are subject to payment terms
that are statutorily determined. Because thes@mets are government-owned or government-fundedCttmpany may be impacted by
declines in sovereign credit ratings or sovereigfadlts in these countries. A significant or furtbecline in sovereign credit ratings or a det
in these countries may decrease the likelihoodtHieaCompany will collect accounts receivable oynmarease the discount rates and the
length of time until receivables are collected, ethtould result in a negative impact to the Com{saperating results. In the year ended
December 31, 2014 the Company’s net product resefarghese countries was 4%. Additionally, appreadely 8% of the Company’s
outstanding accounts receivable at December 34 &flated to such countries.
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As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s accountsvable in certain European countries, specific@ligece, Italy, Portugal, Spain
and Russia, totaled approximately $11.4 millionwbich $0.4 million were greater than 90 days plagt and $0.3 million were greater than
180 days past due and $18 was greater than 365daysue.

The Company also sells its products in other ceemthat face economic crises and local currenggldation. Although the Company
has historically collected receivables from custmnie those countries, sustained weakness or fuditerioration of the local economies and
currencies may cause customers in those countries tinable to pay for the Company’s products. Chepany has not historically
experienced a significant level of uncollected realeles and has received continued payments fremdre aged accounts. The Company
believes that the allowances for doubtful accouvelsted to these countries is adequate based anatgsis of the specific business
circumstances and expectations of collection fohe# the underlying accounts in these countries.

(20) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in one business segment, wtiiohrily focuses on the development and commbzei#on of innovative
biopharmaceuticals for serious diseases and methealitions. All products are included in one seghieecause the majority of our products
have similar economic and other characteristiadyuding the nature of the products and productimtgsses, type of customers, distribution
methods and regulatory environment.

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net product revenue by produ
Vimizim $ 77,31¢ % 85 $ —
Naglazyme 334,44 271,24« 256,92¢
Kuvan 202,981 167,42 143,10¢
Aldurazyme 105,61¢ 83,54t 82,23¢
Firdapse 18,04 16,06¢ 14,22¢
Total net product revent $ 738,41€¢ $ 538,36( $ 496,49

The following table summarizes total revenues fextternal customers and collaborative partners logigohic region. Net product
revenue is based on patient location for Vimiziragkzyme, Kuvan and Firdapse and Genzyme's heaggsifor Aldurazyme. Although
Genzyme sells Aldurazyme worldwide, the royaltiasmed by the Company on Genzyme'’s net sales adrededt in the U.S. region, as the
transactions are with Genzyme whose headquartetlseated in the U.S.

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Total revenues by geographic regi
United State: $ 380,04 $ 284,30 $ 249,74«
Europe 139,94( 115,72¢ 109,86t
Latin America 118,56: 67,33¢ 74,39(
Rest of world 112,49 81,11« 66,72¢
Total revenue $ 751,04 $ 548,48t $ 500,72

The following table summarizes non-monetary lonvgdi assets by geographic region. Non-monetary liweg-assets primarily consists
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assgiedwill and deferred tax assets.

December 31,

2014 2013
Long-lived assets by geograpt
United State: $ 820,35¢ $ 651,81t
Rest of world 104,081 82,13(
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 924437 $  733,94¢
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(21) ACQUISITION OF ZACHARON PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

On January 4, 2013, the Company entered into aenagyeement with Zacharon, a private biotechnotmgypany focused on
developing small molecules targeting pathways wéah and glycolipid metabolism, for a total purahasice of $11.5 million.

In connection with its acquisition of Zacharon, bempany made an upfront payment of $9.7 millionash to the Zacharon
stockholders for all of the outstanding common lsticZacharon, net of transaction cost of $0.8iomllpaid on behalf of the Zacharon
stockholders. The transactions costs related soattijuisition were recognized as SG&A expense eiCtmpanys Statement of Operations
the year ended December 31, 2013. The Companygteed to pay the Zacharon stockholders additiooraideration in future periods of up
to $134.0 million (undiscounted) in milestone pawtsaf certain clinical, development and sales stdaees are met. The fair value of the
contingent acquisition consideration payments wia8 illion and was estimated by applying a proligbbased income approach utilizing an
appropriate discount rate. This estimation wasdbasesignificant inputs that are not observablthaénmarket, referred to as Level 3 inputs.
assumptions included a discount rate of 4.7% anidws probability factors. See Note 12 to thesed@tidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion regarding fair value meas@m@siof the contingent acquisition consideratioyabée.

The following table presents the final allocatidrthe purchase consideration for the Zacharon adépn, including the contingent
acquisition consideration payable, based on fdirezal he final allocation includes an adjustmergoodwill and the deferred tax assets of
approximately $0.7 million resulting from the fifzdtion of Zacharon's tax returns.

Cash and cash equivale $ 560
Other current asse 216
Property, plant and equipme 398
Acquired deferred tax asst 2,62t
Other asset 38
IPR&D 11,68(
Total identifiable assets acquir 15,513
Accounts payable and accrued expet (1,182
Debt assume (1,319
Deferred tax liability (4,219
Total liabilities assume (6,712
Net identifiable assets acquir 8,80%
Goodwill 2,71t
Net assets acquire $ 11,52(

A substantial portion of the assets acquired ctewsisf intangible assets related to Zacharon’s SENG technology. The Company
determined that the estimated acquisition-dateviine of the intangible assets related to the SENG technology was $11.7 million.

The $2.6 million of deferred tax assets resultirmgr the acquisition was primarily related to fedared state net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. The $4.2 million of deferttadt liabilities relates to the tax impact of fut@ortization or possible impairments
associated with the identified intangible assetpiaed, which are not deductible for tax purposes.

The excess of the consideration transferred owefain values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was $2.7 million,
which represents the amount of goodwill resultirgqt the acquisition. The Company believes thagiedwill primarily represents synergies
expected from the acquisition and other benefas do not qualify for separate recognition as asglintangible assets. None of the goodw
expected to be deductible for income tax purpobBles.Company recorded the goodwill in the Compa@gdssolidated Balance Sheet as of the
acquisition date.

Zacharon'’s results of operations prior to and stheeacquisition date are insignificant to the Camyps Consolidated Financial
Statements.

See Note 6 to these Consolidated Financial Statenfi@nfurther discussion of the acquired intangiassets.
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(22) COLLABORATIVE AGREEMENTS
Merck Seronc

In May 2005, the Company entered into an agreemihtMerck Serono for the further development antchmercialization of 6R-BH4,
both in Kuvan for PKU and for other indicationsdgregvaliase (phenylalanine ammonia lyase, fornrefigrred to as PEG PAL). Through the
agreement and subsequent amendment, Merck Serquwextexclusive rights to market these productliterritories outside the U.S.,
Canada and Japan, and the Company retained exchights to market these products in the U.S. aatb@a. The Company and Merck Sei
may collaborate on the development of Kuvan and/@ése. If they agree to collaborate Merck Senatibgenerally share equally all
development costs following successful completibRltase 2 trials for such product candidate in $ndlzation. Merck Serono has “opted-
out” of the pegvaliase development program, a dmtihat does not affect its exclusive rights tgyadiase in its territory. Unless or until
Merck Serono elects to opt-in, it is not obligategbay any of the milestones related to the progsato reimburse the Company for any of the
pegvaliase development costs. Merck Serono may ®ept in at any time. If it elects to opt in @rito the unblinding of the first Phase 3 trial,
it must pay 75% of the Phase 3 costs incurred poiopting in and a $7.0 million development mitest if the Phase 3 trial has started. If
Merck Serono opts in after the unblinding of thstfPhase 3 trial for pegvaliase, it must pay 1@%e Phase 3 costs incurred prior to opting
in and a $7.0 million development milestone.

The Company and Merck Serono are individually resfide for the costs of commercializing the produeithin their respective
territories. Merck Serono will also pay the Compaayalties on its net sales of these products.t€ha of the agreement is the later of 10 y
after the first commercial sale of the productsherperiod through the expiration of all relatetepés within the territories. As of December
2014 and 2013, amounts due from Merck Serono fortrersable development costs for Kuvan totaled $@ilRon and $0.3 million,
respectively.

Other Agreements

The Company is engaged in R&D collaborations wahiaus other entities. These provide for sponsprehR&D by the Company and
may also provide for exclusive royalty-bearing ligtetual property licenses or rights of first négtibn regarding licenses to intellectual
property development under the collaborations. @3ipi, these agreements can be terminated for dauséher party upon 90 days written
notice.

In September 2007, the Company licensed to Asub@Ra Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of Daiichi Sankyoglasive rights to data and
intellectual property contained in the Kuvan newglapplication. The Company receives royalties etrsales of the product in Japan.

In October 2012, the Company licensed to Catallgariaceutical Partners, Inc., (Catalyst) the NArtrerican rights to develop and
market Firdapse. In consideration of this licenang@ngement, the Company received from Catal$&t@ million convertible promissory no
Under the terms of the note agreement, the Compangived 6.7 million shares of Catalyst commonlistquon the automatic conversion of
convertible promissory note on December 10, 20h2. donversion price was based on $0.75 per shaiehwesulted in a $2.0 million loss on
conversion, which was included as a component béihcome (Expense) on the Company’s Consolidatattment of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2012. In exchange for gnthMmerican rights to Firdapse the Company magike royalties of 7% to 10% on r
product sales of Firdapse in North America. As etBmber 31, 2014 and 2013, amounts due from Cafalysimbursable development costs
totaled $0.1 million and $0.8 million, respectively

In May 2013, the Company entered into a non-exetusbyalty bearing license with Shire Human Genglierapies, Inc., (Shire). Under
the terms of the agreement, Shire was grantedgheto use patents related to the intrathecaldgfi of lysosomal enzymes that are within the
Company’s control. In consideration of this licewgsagreement, the Company received a $3.0 millamnefundable upfront payment, future
milestone payments of up to $18.0 million if cemtdevelopment and commercial milestones are attdigeShire and royalties ranging from
3% to 5% on Shire net sales of the product. Thestohe payments to be made by Shire are basey aplah Shire’s performance; therefore
the Company expects to recognize the paymentssaaue upon receipt, provided that the other reveacegnition criteria have been satisfi
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Other Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Company &t various firm purchase commitments primandiated to active pharmaceutical
ingredients and certain inventory related itemsoABecember 31, 2014, these commitments for thxé fie years were approximately $61.0
million. The amounts primarily related to activeapmaceutical ingredients represent minimum purcheggirements and post marketing
commitments related to the Company’s approved prisdu

(23) COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS AND PLANS
Employment Agreemer

The Company has entered into employment agreemaéttitgertain officers. Generally, these agreemeatsbe terminated without cat
by the Company upon prior written notice and payneéispecified severance, or by the officer upam fweeks’ prior written notice to the
Company.

401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors the BioMarin Retirement Savitign (the 401(k) Plan). Most employees (Partidigeare eligible to participate
following the start of their employment, at the lmeng of each calendar month. Participants mayrdmute to the 401(k) Plan up to the lesser
of 100% of their current compensation or an amanto a statutorily prescribed annual limit. Then@any pays the direct expenses of the
401(k) Plan and matched 100% of each Participaotdributions, up to a maximum of the lesser of @the employees annual compensatir
or $6,000 per year through December 31, 2013. Tdrepgany’s matching contribution vests over four gdawm employment commencement
and was approximately $8.3 million, $3.4 milliondg$2.8 million for the years ended December 3142@013 and 2012, respectively.
Employer contributions not vested upon employemiteation are forfeited.

Deferred Compensation Ple

In December 2005, the Company adopted the Def&oadpensation Plan. The Deferred Compensation Bansaeligible employees,
including members of the Board, management andicenighly-compensated employees as designateldebpeferred Compensation Plan’s
Administrative Committee, the opportunity to mals#untary deferrals of compensation to specifiedfeitdates, retirement or death.
Participants are permitted to defer portions ofrthalary, annual cash bonus and restricted sfité. Company may not make additional direct
contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plabemalf of the participants, without further actimnthe Board. Deferred compensation is
held in trust and generally invested to match tivestment benchmarks selected by participantsrdd¢mded cost of any investments will
approximate fair value. Company stock issued ineoReferred Compensation Plan is recorded and atetdor similarly to treasury stock in
that the value of the employer stock is determimedhe date the restricted stock vests and theslsae issued into the Deferred Compensatic
Plan. The Company stock issued into the Deferredgigmsation Plan upon vesting is recorded in stddeins’ equity. As of December 31,
2014 and 2013, the fair value of Company stock bglthe Deferred Compensation Plan, was $20.2anillind $13.6 million, respectively,
which is included in current and non-current liditlgs. The change in market value amounted to 2d6$4.8 million in 2014, compared to
losses of $4.2 million and $3.2 million in 2013 &2, respectively. See Note 12 to these Congslidainancial Statements for additional
discussion regarding the fair value of the Defe@etnhpensation Plan assets and liabilities.
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(24) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Commitmen

The Company leases office space and researcmgesid manufacturing laboratory space in variouasitias under operating
agreements expiring at various dates through 202&ain of the leases provide for options by thenfany to extend the lease for multiple
five-year renewal periods and also provide for ahmuinimum increases in rent, usually based onmswmer price index or annual minimum
increases. Minimum lease payments for future yasgsas follows:

2015 $ 5,73¢
2016 4,882
2017 3,87¢
2018 3,207
2019 930
Thereaftel 1,677

Total $ 20,31¢

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2018,and 2012 was $7.9 million, $10.4 million &1d.1 million, respectively.
Deferred rent accruals at December 31, 2014 tofle® million, of which $0.7 million was currenteferred rent accruals at December 31,
2013 totaled $9.9 million, of which $0.9 million sraurrent. The December 31, 2013 deferred rentialcmcluded $8.8 million related to
SRCC which was released upon the completion optinehase of SRCC during the first quarter of 2014.

See Note 7 to these Consolidated Financial Statenfi@nadditional discussion regarding the purctas@RCC.

Research and Development Funding and Technolognkes

The Company uses experts and laboratories at witiesrand other institutions to perform certain[R&ctivities. These amounts are
included as R&D expense as services are provided.

The Company has also licensed technology, for whishrequired to pay royalties upon future sagegyject to certain annual minimur
As of December 31, 2014, such minimum annual comerits were approximately $0.7 million.

Contingencies

From time to time the Company is involved in legefions arising in the normal course of its busin@se most significant of these
actions are described below.

The process of resolving matters through litigattorother means is inherently uncertain and ibissgble that an unfavorable resolution
of these matters could adversely affect the Compigyesults of operations, financial conditiordarash flows. The Company’s general
practice is to expense legal fees as servicesadered in connection with legal matters, and towcfor liabilities when losses are probable
and reasonably estimable.

Patent Lawsuit Against Dr. Rec’s Laboratories, Inc. and Dr. Reddy’s Laboratoriésd.

The Company has received a paragraph IV noticer|atated October 3, 2014, from Dr. Reddy’s Lalmieas, Inc. and Dr. Reddy’s
Laboratories, Ltd. (collectively, DRL), notifyingné Company that DRL has filed an abbreviated nawy dpplication (ANDA) seeking
approval of a proposed generic version of Kuvaprgaterin dihydrochloride) 100 mg oral tablets ptimthe expiration of the Company’s
patents listed in the U.S. Food and Drug Adminigirés Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic B@lénce Evaluations ( the Orange
Book).

On November 17, 2014, the Company, together withckl& Cie (Merck), filed a lawsuit against DRL iha United States District Cot
for the District of New Jersey alleging patentimfiement for the Company’s patents relating to Kuvan January 16, 2015, the Company,
together with Merck, filed an Amended Complaintuesting a declaratory judgment that DRL has ndikegie basis to trigger the ANDA
process, alleging that DRL did not have a propeDANbecause, upon information and belief, it did swbmit proper bioequivalence data in
support of its purported ANDA.
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BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amats or as otherwise disclosed)

Declaratory Judgment Actic

On January 16, 2015, the Company filed a lawsuiténUnited States District Court for the SouthBistrict of New York, seeking a
declaratory judgment that the Company is underegallobligation to sell or otherwise provide sarsgé&Kuvan (sapropterin dihydrochloride)
to DRL. DRL seeks such samples to conduct bioedeince testing in support of its proposed genetieaf (sapropterin dihydrochloride)
product.

Contingent Payments

As of December 31, 2014 the Company is also subjembntingent payments totaling approximately $8,3 million upon achievement
of certain regulatory and licensing milestonefét occur before certain dates in the future ardattyuisition of Prosensa Holdings N.V.
(Prosensa). Of this amount, $52.8 million relateprograms that are no longer being developed &80.% million relates to payments made in
January and February 2015 in connection with tlygia@tion of Prosensa.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has record2d $nillion of contingent acquisition consideratipayable on its Consolidated
Balance Sheet, of which $3.9 million is expectetéaid in 2015.

(25) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Tender Offer for Prosensa Holding N.V.

On December 12, 2014, the Company commenced arteffde(the Offer) to acquire all of the ordinaslgares (the Prosensa Shares) of
Prosensa, a public limited liability company orgaau under the laws of The Netherlands in an ah tensaction for $17.75 per Prosensa
Share for an upfront purchase price of approxirge6BO million. In addition, for each Prosensa 8haurchased, the Company issued one
non-transferable contingent value right, which esents the contractual right to receive a cash payof up to $4.14 per Prosensa Share, or
approximately $160 million, upon the achievementertain product approval milestones.

On January 15, 2015, the Company closed the imiffating period relating to the Offer, purchas&d496 of the Prosensa Shares and
immediately launched a subsequent offering petiadl ¢xpired on January 29, 2015. On January 15,20& Company paid approximately
$659.3 million for approximately 35.0 million Prosa Shares, representing approximately 96.8% tielbutstanding Prosensa Shares
outstanding and options that vested pursuant tdefiaitive purchase agreement. On February 125204 Company completed the asset
transfer and paid an additional $20.8 million te temaining Prosensa shareholders. Effective Fgbfila 2015, Prosensa has been dissolved
and is in liquidation under Dutch law.

Public Offering of BioMarin Common Sto
In January 2015, the Company sold 9,775,000 sldries common stock at a price of $93.25 per sirmen underwritten public offering
pursuant to an effective registration statementiptssly filed with the SEC. The Company receivet preceeds of approximately $888.2

million from this public offering.
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Exhibit 10.60
BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

2014 Inducement Plan (the “Plan”)

STOCK OPTIONS AGREEMENT

Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms defingde Plan shall have the same defined meanintigsrStock
Options Agreement.

[.NOTICE OF STOCK OPTION GRANT

You have been granted an Option to purchase Shatee Company (the “Option Shares”), subject ® th
terms and conditions of the Plan and this StockddptAgreement, as follows:

Grant Number

Grant Date

Exercise Price per Shai
Total Number of Share
Granted:

Type of Option:
Term/Expiration Date See below

Vesting Schedule:
Subject to accelerated vesting as set forth ifPtha, this Option may be exercised, in whole grart, in
accordance with the following schedule, conditionad/our Continuous Service to the Company on siatés:

6/48ths of the Option Shares shall vest upon yoargetion of six months of Continuous Service faling
the Grant Date (the “Initial Vesting Date”).

1/48 of the Option Shares shall vest upon your detigm of each additional month of Continuous Sesvi
following the Initial Vesting Date.

The Option expires 10 years after the Grant Dafigiest to earlier termination as set forth in thenP

BMRN/36814.v2



Exhibit 10.61
BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICAL INC.

2014 Inducement Plan (the “Plan”)

Agreement Regarding Restricted Share Units

Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms defingde Plan shall have the same defined meanintissrAgreement
Regarding Restricted Share Units.

[.NOTICE OF RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

You have been granted Restricted Share Units tetatthe Shares of the Company, subject to thestarma
conditions of the Plan and this Agreement, as ¥zdto

Grant Number

Grant Date

Total Number of Unit:
Granted:

Vesting Schedule:
The Restricted Share Units granted under this aslaad vest, conditioned on your Continuous Serticthe
Company, on each Vesting Date (as defined belowgrding to the following schedule:
25% of the Restricted Stock Units shall vest upacheof the first four anniversaries of the GranteD@ach
such anniversary date, a “Vesting Date”)
Upon vesting, the units will automatically be corted into Shares of the Company on a 1:1 basigesuto
adjustment as provided in the Plan.

Tax Implications:

Upon the vesting of your Restricted Share Units,applicable employment tax and withholding requiats (if
any) will be satisfied on a “net settlement” bagi®aning that the number of Shares that you reckiego vesting
will represent the difference between the total benof Shares in which you vest and a number ofeShaaving a
fair market value sufficient to pay the minimum ueqd statutory withholding due for such taxes.

BMRN/36815.v2



Subsidiaries of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. as oDecember 31, 2014

Exhibit 21.1

Name Direct Parent(s) Ownership  Jurisdiction of Incorporation
BioMarin GALNS Ltd. BioMarin Pharmaceutical In: 10% Ireland
BMRN 701 Limited BioMarin Pharmaceutical In: 10% Ireland
BioMarin Brasil Farmaceutica Ltd BioMarin Pharmaceutical In: 10% Brazil
BioMarin Holdings (LUX) S.A.R.L. BioMarin GALNS Ltd. 10(% Luxembourg
BioMarin Europe Ltd BioMarin Holdings (LUX) S.A.R.L 10(% Ireland
BioMarin Manufacturing Ireland Ltc BioMarin GALNS Ltd. 10(% lIreland
Ireland

BioMarin Parp Limitec BioMarin Pharmaceutical In 10C%



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdggstration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-297333-201504, 333-
188620, 333-168552, 333-136963, 333-84787, 3338586 333-181697) and the registration statementoon S-3 (Nos. 333-
191604 and 33381766) of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. and sulasids of our reports dated February 27, 2015, weitipect t
the consolidated balance sheets of BioMarin Pheaemtamal Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31428nd 2013, and t
related consolidated statements of operations, oeimepsive loss, stockholdermsquity, cash flows for each of the years in
threeyear period ended December 31, 2014, and the wHeetss of internal control over financial repagtias of December &

2014, which reports appear in the December 31, 28idual report on Form 18& of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. a
subsidiaries.

/s KPMG LLP
San Francisco, California
March 2, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Jean-Jacques Bienaimé, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitsde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts under which such statements were made, nktadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of ogerastand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures teesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financial répgt or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'sldésire controls and procedures and presentedsimgiport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and promes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting
Date: March 2, 201

IS/ JEAN-JACQUES BIENAIME
Jear-Jacques Bienainm
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel Spiegelman certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts under which such statements were made, ngadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of ogerastand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures teesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financial répgt or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsimgiport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and promes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; a

. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 2, 201

/S/ DANIEL SPIEGELMAN

Daniel Spiegelma
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fB@mMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. (the Company) foe frear ended December 31, 2014, a:
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the Report), we, Jean-JacqumBné, and Daniel Spiegelman, hereby
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adoptedyant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20i0&; t

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc
(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/SI JEAN-JACQUES BIENAIME

Jear-Jacques Bienain
Chief Executive Office
March 2, 201t

/S/ DANIEL SPIEGELMAN

Daniel Spiegelma
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
March 2, 201¢



